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Key consolidated financial data for the last five years

Preliminary comments:

In 2018, Yivendi applied twe new acceunting standards:

s FRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with (FRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenues, thereby ensuring comparability of the data refative to each period of 2018 and 2017 contained in this
report. The data presented below with respect to fiscal years 2014 to 2018 are historical and therefore are unrestated, and

s /MRS 3 ~ Financial Instruments: in accordance with IFRS 8, Vivendi appiied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Famings and Statement of Comprehensive fncome and restated its opening baiance sheet as of January 1, 2018,
therefore, the data relative to prior years contained in this report is not comparable.

For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Staterments for the year ended December 31, 2018.

In addition, Vivendr deconsolidated GVT, SFR and Maroc Telecom group as from May 28, 2015, November 77, 2014 and May 14, 2014,
respectively, i.e., the date of their effective sale by Vivendi. in compliance with IFRS 5, thase businesses have been reported as discontinued
operations for the relevant periods as set out in the table of selected key consofidated financial data below in respect of data reflected in the
Statement of Eamings and Statement of {ash Flaws.

Year ended December 31,

2018 207 2016 2015 2014

Consaiidated data
Revenues 13,932 12518 10,819 10,762 10,089
Income from sperations fa) 1,439 1,098 863 1,061 1,108
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (a) 1,288 969 724 947 939
Earnings hefore interest and income taxes (EBIT) 1,182 1,018 8e7 521 545
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 127 1.216 1,208 1932 4,744

of which earnings from continuing operations attributable 1o Vivendi SA shareowners 127 1,216 1,236 698 {290}
Adjusted net income (3} 1,157 1,300 755 597 626
Net Cash Position/(Financial Net Debt) {a) 176 (2,340} 1,23 7172 4,681
Total eguity 17,534 17,866 19612 21,086 22,988

of which Vivendi SA sharcowners' equity 17,313 17,644 19383 20,854 22 BO6
Cash flow from operations {CFFO} a) 1,126 989 129 892 843
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) {a) 822 1.346 3N {69) 4
Financial investments (694) {3.685) {4,084) (3927) {1,244)
Financial divestments 2,303 976 1,971 9,013 17,807
Dividends paid by Vivend: SA ta its shareholders 068 459 2588 () 2727 (b 1,348 e}
Purchases/{sales) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares - 203 1523 492 32
Per share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 17635 12627 12725 1,361.5 13458
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic 010 047 099 142 3407
Adjusted net income per share 0.92 1.04 0.59 051 046
Number cf sharas outstanding at the end of the period (excluding treasury shares) 1,268.0 1,286.7 1,259.5 1,342.3 1,351.6
Equity per share, attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 13.65 14.04 156.39 15.54 18.73
Dividends per share paid 045 0.40 2,00 (b} 2.00 (b} 1.00 {c)

In millians af eurcs, number of shares in milligns, data per share in euros.

a. The non-GAAP measures of Income from operations, EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), Cash flow
from operations (CFFO) and Cash fiow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) should be considered in addition to,
and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial perfarmance as presented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes, or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicatars of the
group's operating and financial performance. Each of these indicators is defined in the appropriate section of this Financiat Report. In
addition, it should be noted that other companies may have definitions and calculations for these indicators that differ from those used
by Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.

b, With respect to fiscal year 2015, Vivendi paid an ordinary dividend of €3 per share, i.e, an aggregate dividend payment of
£3,951 million. This amount included €1,363 million paid in 2015 (first interim dividend of £1 per share) and €2,588 million paid in 2016
{€1,318 million for the second interim dividend of €1 per share and €1,270 million representing the balance of €1 per share). In addition,
in 2015, Vivendi paid a dividend with respect to fiscal year 2014 of €1 per share, i.e., €1,364 million.

¢ OndJune 30, 2014, Vivendi SA paid an ordinary dividend of €1 per share to its shareholders from additional paid-in capital, treated as a
return of capital distribution to shareholders.
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Nota:

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 809/2004 (Article 28}, which sets out the disclosure abligations for issuers of securities
listed on a reguiated market within the European Union {implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the “Prospectus Regulation™), the following items are
incorporated by reference into this report:

= the 2017 Financial Report, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, prepared under IFRS and the
related statutory auditors” report on the Consolidated Financial Statements, presented on pages 1688 to 317 of the Document de Référence
No. D.18-0126, which was filed on March 13, 2018 with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and on pages 188 to 317 of the
English translation of the Document de Adférence No. D.18-0126; and

« the 2016 Financial Report, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, prepared under IFRS and the
related statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements, presented on pages 182 to 299 of the Document de Référence
No. D17-0170, which was fileg on March 14, 2017 with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and on pages 182 to 299 of the
English translation of the Document de Aéférence No. D.17-0170.

Financiat Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / b
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I- 2018 Financial Report

Preliminary comments:

On February 11, 2018, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018. Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, which met on February 12, 2018, the Supervisory Board, at its
meeting held on February 14, 2018, reviewed the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018, as previously approved by the Management Board on February 11, 2019,

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year endad December 31, 2018 have been audited and certified by the statutory auditars
without qualified opinion, The statutory auditors” report on the Consolfdated Financial Statements is included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements.

1 Earnings analysis: group and business segments

Preliminary comments:

Change of accounting standards
in 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards:

e JFRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with IFAS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenues, thereby ensuring comparability of the data relative to each period of 2018 and 2817 contained in this
report” and

s [FRS 8 — Financial Instruments: in accordance with IFRS 8, Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 7018
Statement of Earings, therefore, the data refative to 2017 contained in this report /s not comparable.

For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018,

Non-GAAP measures

“Income from operations”, “EBITA” and “adjusted net income”, all non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a
substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related Notes, or as described in this Financial Report Vivendi considers these ta be relevant indicators for the group’s operating and
financial performance.

Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management and planning purposes
because they exclude most non-recurring and non-operating items from the measurement of the business segments’ performances. Under
Vivendi's definition:
= the difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acguired through business combinations, the
impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, the income from equity affiliates
- operational, as well as other charges and income related to transactions with shareowners,
+ ncome from operations is calculated as FBITA, as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Earnings, before share-based
compensation costs and special items. due to their unusual nature and particular significance, and
e adjusted net income includes the following items: EBITA, income from equity affifiates, interest {corresponding fo interest expense
on borrowings net of interest income eamed on cash and cash equivalents) income from investments fincluding dividends and
interest received from unconsofidated companies) and taxes and non-controlling imterests related to these jtems. It does not include
the following items: amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations and refated to equity affiliates,
impairment losses on goodwill and other intangible assets acquired through business combinations, other charges and income
related to transactions with shareowners, other financial charges and income, earnings from discontinued operations, provisions for
income taxes and adjustments attributable to noncontroiling interests, non-ecurring tax items (in particular the changes in deferred
tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s Tax Group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Svstems and the reversal of tax liabilities
related to risks extinguished over the period).

Moreover, it should be noted that other companies may have definitions and calculations for these non-GAAP measures that differ from
those used by Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.
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REVENUES
Cost of revenues

Selling, general and administrative expenses excluding amartization of intangible assets acquired

through bustness combinations

income from operations*

Restructuring charges

Other aperating charges and income

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)*

Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Reversa! of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States

Income from equity affiliates - operational
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXES {EBIT)
Income from equity affiliates - non-operational

Interest
Income from investments
Other financial charges and income

Eamings before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations

Eamings from discontinued operations

Earnings

Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDI SA SHAREOWNERS

Earnings aftributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic (in guros)
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted (in euros)

Adjusted net income*
Adjusted net income per share - basic (in euros)*
Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros}*

in millions of euros, except per share amounts.

* non-GAAP measures.

Year ended December 31,

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

2018 2017 # Change
13.022 12518 +113%
(7518) 7.302)
(£.875) (4.118)
1439 108 +31.0%
(115) (8]
(36) (41
1,268 %9 +330%
113) (124
. 27
7 146
1182 1018 +161%
122 .
{47) {53}
20 29
763) 100}
(790) (124)
514 894  -424%
(367) 355
157 1209 -87.4%
157 1209 -B7.4%
{30 {33}
127 1216 -89.6%
010 097
010 0.94
1,157 1300 -111%
092 104
091 1.00
Vivendi /7
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1.2 Analysis of the Consolidated Statement of Eamnings

1.21 Revenues

in 2018, Vivendi’s revenues amounted to €13,932 million, compared 1o €12,518 million in 2017, an increase of €1,414 million [+11.3%),
notably as a resutt of the consolidation of Havas (+£1,108 million). At constant currency and perimeter’, Vivendi's revenues increased by
4.99% compared to 2017. Far the second vear in a row, Universal Music Group’s revenues increased by 10.0%¢ and Canal+ Group's revenues
were stable.

For the second half of 2018, at constant currency and perimeter, Vivendi's revenues increased by 5.7% compared to the second haif of 2017,
an improvernent compared to the first half of 2018 (+3.9% compared to the first half of 2017), mainly driven by Universal Music Group
(+12.8% for the second half, compared to +6.8% for the first half).

For the fourth quarter of 2018, at constant currency and perimeter, Vivendi's revenue growth was +5.6% compared to the fourth quarter of
2017, as opposed to +3.3% far the first quarter of 2018, +4.6% for the second quarter, and +5.7% for the third quarter (for quarterly revenues
by business segment, please refer to the appendix to the Financial Report).

For a detailed analysis of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 1.3 below.
122 Operating results

Cost of revenues amounted to £7,618 miliion, compared to €7,302 million in 2017, an increase of £316 million.

Selling, gereral and administrative expenses excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations amounted to €4,875 million, compared to €4,118 million in 2017, an increase of £757 million.

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in seliing, general and
administrative expenses. Depreciation and amortization, excluding amertization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations, amounted to £340 million {compared to €337 milier: in 2017}, and notably related to Canak Group's set-top boxes, as well as
Studiocanal’s catalogs, films and television programs.

Income from operations amounted to €1,433 million, compared to €1,098 million in 2017, an increase of €341 million (+31.0%), notably
resulting from the consoiidation of Havas (+£123 million}. At constant currency and perimeter, income from operations increased by
€250 million (+22.7%) driven by the growth of Universal Music Group (+€177 million) and Canal+ Group (+£78 miltion), which continues its
recovery in France.

EBITA amounted to €1,288 million, compared to €969 million in 2017, an increase of €319 million (+33.0%), notably resulting from the
consolidation of Havas (+€104 million). At constant currency and perimeter, EBITA increased by €240 million (+24.7%), driven by the growth
of Universal Music Group (+£168 million) and Canal+ Group (+€98 million), which continues its recovery in France. In addition, EBITA
included:

» restructuring charges of €115million, compared to €88 million in 2017, primarily incurred by Havas (€30 million, compared to
€15 million for the second half of 2017), Universal Music Group (€29 million, compared to €17 million in 2017), Canal+ Group
(€28 miltion, compared to €49 million in 2017) and Corporate (€19 million, compared to €1 million in 2017); and

« other operating charges and income excluded fram income from operations, which was a net charge of €36 million, compared to
a net charge of €41 miilion in 2017, They natably included a -€22 million charge relating to share-based compensation plans in 2018,
compared to -€31 millicn in 2017,

For a detailed analysis of income from operations and EBITA by business segment, plaase refer to Section 1.3 helow.
EBIT amounted to £1,182 million, compared to €1,018 million in 2017, an increase of £164 million. It included the following:

« amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations for £113 million, compared to
€124 million in 2017, a €11 million improvement;

+ the reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action fitigation in the United States, which represented a net profit of
€27 million for the first half of 2017. As a reminder, on April 6, 2017, Vivendi announced that it had entered into an agreement tc
settle the remaining claims still in dispute with certain class plaintiffs for $26 million, which together with the judgments previcusly
entered, resolved the entire litigation for an aggregate amount of $78 mitlion; and

' Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acquisition of Havas {July 3 2017), the acquisition of Fayiogic by Vivendi Viltage (Aprit 15, 2018) and the sale of Radionomy by
Vivend: Vitlage (August 17, 2017).
- At constant currency and perimeter, compared to 2017,

Financial Repert and Audited Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi/ 8
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+ income from equity affiliates — operational, which was a profit cf €7 million, compared tc a profit of €146 million in 2G17. This
decrease of €139 million resulted from the reclassification in 2018 of Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia's net earnings (€122 millian)
in "income from equity affiliates - non-operational”, tc account for the decrease of Vivendi's influence aver Telecom ltalia in 2018
{please refer below and to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018). In 2017, this
amount primarily included Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia’s net eamings, calculated based on the financial information publicly
disciosad by Telecom ltalia, which represented a profit of €144 million.

1.23 Income from equity affiliates - non-operational

income from equity affiliates - non-operational amounted to a profit of €122 million, compared to nil in 2017. In 2018, this amount
related to Vivendi's share of Telecom Italia’s net earnings, calculated based on the financia! information publicly disclosed by Tetecom
Italia . In 2017, the share of Telecom Italia’s net earnings (€144 million) was recorded as "income from equity affiliates - operational” {please
refer above and to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financiat Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

1.24 Financial results

In 2018, interest was an expense of £47 miilion (compared to €53 million ir 2017). In this amount:

e interest expense on borrowings amounted to €64 million, compared tc €68 million in 2017. This change notably reflectad the
decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings te 1.39% (compared to 1.60% in 2017}, partially offset by the increase in the
average outstanding borrowings to €4.6 billion (compared to €4 3 billion in 2017); and

e intergst income earned on the investment of cash surpiuses amounted to €17 million, compared to €15 million in 2017. This change
reflected the increase in the average interest rate on cash investments to 0.50% (compared to 0.40% in 2017}, partially offset by the
decrease in the average putstanding cash investments to €3.4 billion (compared to €3.7 billion in 2017).

Income from investmants amounted to €20 million, compared to €23 mitlion in 2017. This amount mainly included dividends received from
Telefonica of €11 million (compared to £20 million in 2017}, as well as the interest from the bonds issved by Banijay Group Holding and Lov
Banijay and subscribed to by Vivendi for €6 million {compared to €7 million in 2017).

Other financial charges and income were a net charge of £763 miliion, compared to a net charge of €100 million in 2017. In 2018, ather
financial charges included the write-down of the value of the Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method, for
£1,066 million, Notwithstanding Vivendi's expected improvement of Telecom italia’s outlook, Vivendi wrote-down the value of its interest in
Telecom ltalia accounted for under the equity method notably to take into account the uncertainty affecting Telecom italia‘s governance,
which increases the non-execution risks associated with the company’s industrial plan given Vivendi’s lower power to participste in Telecom
Italia’s financial and operating policy decisions, and to take into account the changes in Telecom ltalia’s competitive and regulatory
environment. Other financial income included the revaluation between January 1 and December 31, 2018 of the interests in Spotify and
Tencent Music for an aggregate amount of €312 million, as well as in Ubisoft for £53 million, reported to profit or loss in accordance with
the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018.

in 2018, Vivendi realized a capital gain of £1,213 million on the sale of its interest in Ubisoft. Of this amount, only the portion carresponding
to the revaluation of such interest in 2018 {£53 miltion) was recorded in the Statement of Eamings for the year ended December 31, 2018, in
accordance with the new IFRS 9 accounting standard, applicable since January 1, 2018, The remaining portion of the capital gain
(€1,160 million) related to the revaluation of such interest up until December 31, 2017, was recorded in “charges and inccme directly
recognized in equity” as of December 31, 2017, in accordance with the former IAS 39 accounting standard, and reclassified as retained
earnings as of January 1, 2018 as a result of the first-time appfication of IFRS 9. Under I1AS 39, which was applicable up until December 31,
2017, it would have been reported to profit or [oss.

125 Provision for income taxes

In 2018, provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €253 million, compared to a net income of
€195 million in 2017, representing an unfavorable change of €448 million. In 2017, the tax net income reported to adjusted nat income
notably included (i) a current tax income of €409 million recerded following the litigation relating tc the Consolidated Global Profit Tax
System of 2011, where Vivendi SA secured a favorable settlement, and (i} the current tax income of €25 million, corresponding to
moratorium interest, relating to the refund to Viverdi SA and its subsidiaries of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions,
following the decision of the French Constitutional Counci! dated October 8, 2017, where it was ruled that this tax contribution was
unconstitutional (please refer to Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

* On November 8, 2018 (Financial Statements for the first nine months af 20181 and on March 8 2018 (Fnancial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017): please refer
to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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Excluding these two non-recurring favorable impacts, provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income in 2017 would have been a
net charge of £239 million, compared ta a net charge of €253 million in 2018, i.e., an unfavorable change of €14 million. This change mainly
reflected the increase in the tax charges of Universal Music Group and Canal+ Group, partially offset by the increase in current tax savings
from Vivendi's Tax Group System in France. In 2018, the growth in Universal Music Group's taxable income in the United States resulted in a
fedaral tax charge of £48 miltion, which reflected the impact of the tax reform applicable from January 1, 2018. in 2017, the federal tax
charge was nil, taking into account the current tax savings resulting from the utilization of the tax losses carried forward in the United States
(€96 million). The growth in Canal+ Group's taxahle income primarily resulted from the recavery of its businesses in France. The increase in
current tax savings from Vivendi's Tax Group System in France in 2018 (€168 million, compared to €86 millien in 2017) notably resulted frem
the integration of Havas and its subsidiaries as from January 1, 2018,

in 2018, the effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income amounted to 20.1%, compared to 25.3% in 2017 restated from the two
nan-recurring favorable impacts. This decrease of approximately 5 points in the effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income mainly
reflected the increase in 2018 of the current tax savings from Vivendi's Tax Group System in France, as well as the decrease in the federal
tax rate in the United States, while unutilized tax losses generated by businesses under development were almest stable.

In 2018, provision for income taxes reported to net income was a net charge of £357 million, compared to a net income of €355 miltion
in 2017. In 2017, the tax net income reported to net income notably included (i} a current tax income of €409 million recorded following the
Iitigation redating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where Vivendi SA secured a favorable settlement, as well as (i} a
current tax income of €243 million corresponding to the refund to Vivendi SA (€207 million principal and €24 million moratorium interest) and
to its subsidiaries (€11 mitlion principal and €1 million moratorium interest) of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions,
following the decision of the French Constitutional Council dated October 6, 2017, where it was ruled that this tax contribution was
unconstitutional {please refer to Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

Excluding the two non-recurring favorable impacts, the provision for income taxes reported to net income in 2017 would have been a net
charge of €297 million, compared to a net charge of €357 million in 2018, i.e., an unfavorable change of €60 millian. In addition to the
explanatory reasons for the increase in the tax charge reported to adjusted net income, in 2018, this increase in the tax charge reported to
net income included, the deferred tax charge relating to the revaluation through profit or loss of the interests in Spotify and Tencent Music
for an aggregate amount of -€7Z million, in accordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018. In 2017,
provision for income taxes also included a net deferred tax income of €79 miltion following the change of the corporate federal tax rate
applicable in the United States since January 1, 2018. This also included a deferred tax charge of -€119 million corresponding to the write-
off of deferred tax assets related to losses carried forward by Havas, primarily in France. In additior, the deferred tax savings relating to
Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System were almost stabie (a charge of €2 million in 2018, compared to an income of €3 million in 2017).

1.26 Non-controlling interests

[n 2018, earnings attributable to non-controlling interests amcunted to €30 million, compared to £33 million in 2017. They mainly
included the non-controlling interests of nc+ in Poland, Canal+ International and VTV in Vietnam.

1.2.7 Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

In 2018, earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to 2 profit of €127 million {or €0.10 per share - basic), compared to
£1,216 miilion in 2017 {or €0.97 per share - basic), a decrease of £1,089 mitlion (-89.6%). In 2018, the increase in EBIT (+€164 million) and the
revaluation between January 1 and December 31, 2018 of the interests in Spotify, Tencent Music and Ubisoft for an aggregate amount of
+£365 million, were offset by the write-down of the Telecoem !talia shares accounted for under the equity method (-€1,066 million} and the
increase in provision for income taxes {(-€712 million). In 2017, the tax net income reported to adjusted net income notably included a current
tax income of €409 million recorded following the litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where Vivendi SA
secured a favorable settlement. This also inciuded the current tax income of €243 millien (including €25 million of maratorium interest)
refating to the refund received by Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries of the amounts paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions. Excluding
these two non-recurring favorable tax impacts, the net income would have heen a profit of €564 miltion in 2017.
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1.28 Adjusted net income

{in millions of evros)

Revenues

Income from operations

EBITA

Income from equity affiliates - operational

Income from equity affiliates - non-operational
Interest

Income from investments

Adjusted eamings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Adjusted net income befare non-controlling interests
Nor-centrolling interests

Adjusted net income

Thursday February 14, 2018

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017 % Change
13,932 12518 +113%
1,439 1,098 +31.0%
1,268 969 +33.0%
7 205
182 i
(47) (53)
20 79
1.450 1150 +26.1%
(253) 195
1197 1345
(40) (45}
1157 1,300 S11.1%

In 2018, adjusted net income was 2 profit of £1,157 million {or £0.92 per share - basic), compared tc €1,300 million in 2017 (or £1.04 per
share - basic), a decrease of €143 million {-11.1%}. The growth in EBITA (+£319 million}, resulting from the conselidation of Havas and the
performance of Universal Music Group and Canal+ Group, was offset by the correlative increase of provisian for income taxes {-€448 million).
In 2017, the tax net income reported to adjusted net income notably included a current tax income of €409 million recorded following the
litigation relating to the Consclidated Global Profit Tax System of 2011, where Vivendi SA secured a favorable settlement. This aiso inctuded
the current tax income of €25 million corresponding to moratorium interest relating to the refund received by Vivendi SA and s subsidiaries
of the amounits paid under the 3% tax on dividend distributions. Excluding these two non-recurring favorable tax impacts, the adjusted net
income would have been a profit of €866 million in 2017, compared to a profit of £1,157 million in 2018, 1.e., an increase of €291 million

{+33.6%).

Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (a) 127 1,216
Adjustments

Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 13 124
Amortization of :ntangible assets related to equity affiliates 60 59
Reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States {a) - 127)
Other financial charges and income 763 100
Provision for income taxes on adjustments 104 {160)
Impact of adjustments on non-controlling interests {10} [12)
Adjusted net income 1,157 1,300

a. Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,

Adjusted net income (in millions of euros}

Number of shares {in millions)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b}

Potential dilutive effacts related to share-based compensation

Adjusted weighted average number of shares
Adjusted net income per share (in euros}

2018 2017
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
1,157 1,157 1,300 1,254 f(a)
1,263.5 1,263.5 1,2562.7 1,2527
- 5.1 - 48
12635 1,268.5 12627 1,257.5
0.92 091 1.4 1.00

a  Corresponded only to the impact for Vivendi of Telecom [talia’s dilutive instruments, calculated based on the financial information
publicly disclosed by Telecom talia with a three-month reporting lag {ptease refer to Note 11.2 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

b Net of the weighted average number of treasury shares (38.5 million shares in 2018, compared to 37.5 million in 2017},
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1.3 Analysis of revenues and operating results by business segment

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant currency

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change constant currency _ and perimeter (a)
Revenues

Universal Music Group 6,023 5573 +6.2% +10.0% +10.0%
Canal+ Group 5,168 5.198 06% -0.3% -0.3%
Havas 2.319 1.211 na na na
Gameloft 293 320 -8.3% 5.1% -5.1%
Vivendi Village 123 109 +12.8% +13.1% +11.5%
New Initiatives 66 51 +30.5% +30.5% +30.5%
Elimination of intersegment transactions {58) {44)

Total Vivendi 13,932 12,518 +11.3% +14.1% +.9%

income from operations

Universal Music Group 946 798 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
Canal+ Group 4729 349 +23.1% +22.4% +22.4%
Havas 258 135 na na na
Gameloft 4 10 60.4% -56.4% -56.4%
Vivendi Village 9 16

New Initiatives {79) (87}

Corporate {110) {101}

Total Vivendi 1439 1,088 +31.0% +33.9% +22.1%
EBITA

Universal Music Group 902 761 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
Canal+ Group 400 300 +33.8% +32.8% +32.8%
Havas 215 11 na na na
Gameloft 2 4 -65.8% -41.9% -41.9%
Vivendi Village {9 (18)

New Intatives (99) 22)

Corporate (123) {87}

Total Vivendi 1,288 969 +33.0% +36.1% +24.1%

na: not applicable.

a.  Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acquisition of Havas {July 3, 2017), the acquisition of Paylogic by Vivendi Village
{April 16, 2018) and the sale of Radionomy by Vivendi Village (August 17, 2017).
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Universal Music Group {UMG)
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Year ended December 31,

% Change &t

% Change at constant
constant currency and
{in miliicns of euros) 2018 2017 % Change currency nerimeter
Recorded music 4,828 4,558 +5.9% +9.8% +9.8%
Subscriptions and streaming 2 596 1,871 +31.7% +37.3% +37.3%
Other digital sales (a) 479 665 30.0% -26.6% 26.6%
Physical sales 9489 1,156 -17.9% 161% -16.1%
ficense and other 804 747 +7.5% +10.7% +10.7%
Music publishing a4 854 +10.3% +14.5% +14.5%
Merchandising and other 273 283 -35% -15% -1.5%
Elimination of intersegment transactions {19) [23)
Revenues 6,023 5,673 +65.2% +10.0% +10.0%
Income from operations 946 798 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
Income from operations margin 15.7% 14.1% +1.6pts
Restructuring charges {29 {17)
Income/icharges) related to share-based compensation olans (4} (9
Other special items excluded from income from operations {11) {11
EBITA 902 161 +18.4% +22.1% +22.1%
EBITA margin 15.0% 13.4% +1.6pts
Recorded music revenues by geographic area
North America 2224 2,090 +6.4% +11.5% +11.5%
Europe 1,580 1,513 +4.4% +5.5% +5.5%
Asia 618 563 +8.8% +13.0% +13.0%
Latin America 153 155 -15% +14.5% +14.5%
Rest of the waorld 753 238 +6.2% +11.3% +11.3%
4828 4,559 +5.9% +9.8% +9.3%
a  Mainly included dewnload sales.
Recorded music best sellers, in value (Source: MusicMart)
Year ended December 31, 2018 Year ended December 31, 2017
Artist Title Artist Title
Drake Scorpion Taylor Swift Reputation
Post Malone Beerbongs & Bentleys Kendrick Lamar DAMN
Lady Gaga and Bradley Cooper A Star Is Born Drake More Life
The Beatles The Beatles (White Album/ The Weeknd Starboy
XXXTertacion ? Luis Fonsi Despacito & Mis Grandes Exitos
Migos Culture If Various Artists Moana
Imagine Oragons Evolve Imagine Dragons Evolve
Ariana Grande Sweetaner The Beatles Sgt. Pepper's
Kendrick Lamar Biack Panther: The Afbum Post Malone Stonay
Post Matone Stoney Sam Smith The Thrill Of It All
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In 2018, Universal Music Graup's (UMG) revenues amounted to €6,023 million, up 10.0% at constant currency and perimeter compared to
2017 (+6.2% on an actual basis).

Recorded music revenues grew by 9.8% at constant currency and perimeter thanks to the growth in subscription and streaming revenues
{+37 3%], driven by the increase in subscribers and a stronger market share, which mare than offset the continued decline in both download
(-23.5%) and physical (-16.1%) sales.

Recorded music best sellers for the year included releases from Drake, Post Malone, The Beatles and XXXTentacion, as well as the
soundtrack release from A Star is Born.

Globally, UMG had every one of the top five tracks, the top four artists and the top three albums on Spotify in 2018. Additionally, UMG
artists pccupied the top five positions and 14 of the top 20 positions on Apple Music's Global Top 100 Songs 2018.

Music publishing revenues grew by 14.5% at constant currency and perimeter, also driven by increased subscription and streaming
revenues, as well as higher revenues generated from performance rights and synchrenization.

Merchandising and other revenues decreased by 1.5% at constant currency and perimeter, due to fower touring activity.

Driven by the growth in revenues, UMG's income from operations amounted to €946 million, up 22.1% at canstant currency and perimeter
compared to 2017 {(+18.4% on an actual basis), and UMG’s EBITA amounted to €302 million, up 22.1% at constant currency and perimeter
compared to 2017 (+18.4% on an actual basis).

in 2018, several of the world’s most iconic artists signed or re-signed with UM®G, including ground-breaking deals with Taylor Swift, The
Relling Stones and Sir Elton John, demonstrating that UMG is the preferred partner for artists for al! stages and virtually every aspect of
their careers.
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Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at

constant constant qurrency

{in millions of auros) 2018 2017 % Change currency and perimeter
TV in Mainland France (a) 3137 3,249 3 4% -34% -3 4%
International TV 1,667 1482 +5.7% +6.8% +5.8%
Studrccanat 462 467 -1 2% -06% -0.6%
Revenues 5.166 5198 0.6% 0.3% -0.3%
Inceme from operations 429 349 +23.1% +22.8% +22.8%
Income from operations margin 33% 68.7% +1.6 pts
income/{charges) related to share-based compensatien plans {3) 131
Other spacial items excluded from income from operations ? 6
EBITA before restructuring charges 428 349 +22.6% +21.8% +21.8%
Restructuring charges {28) {48)
EBITA 400 300 +33.6% +32.8% +32.8%
EBITA margin 77% 5.8% +1.9 pts
Pay-TV subscribers (in thousands)
Self-distributed individual subscribers in Mainland France 4733 4,950 217
Canal customers wa wholesale partnerships (b) 3,093 3117 -24
International individual subscribers 7.831 6,948 +883

Africa 4110 3,458 +652

FPoland 2,194 2171 +23

Overseas 583 530 +53

Vietnam 884 783 +95

Myanimar (Burma} 60 - +60
Total Canal+ Group individual subscribers 15.657 15015 +642
Collective subscrisers 581 579 +12
Total Canal+ Group subseribers 16,248 15,594 +654
Mainland France Pay-TV
Churn rate {over a 12-month ralling period} (c} 13.6% 15.8% 2.2 pts
Net ARPU Premium (in euros) {d) 448 455 €07
Net ARPU {in euros) {e) 454 157 -€0.3

a.  Corresponds to pay-TV and free-to-air channels (C8, CStar and CNews) in mainland France.

b Includes the strategic partnership agreements with Free, Orange and Bouygues Telecom. Certain subscribers may also have subscribed

to a Canal+ offer.

¢.  Churn rate by individual subscriber with commitment over a 12-month period, excluding customers via whalesale partnerships and those

benefiting from a LDA (Liberté d"Annulen option.

d  Net ARPU (Average revenue per user) per individual Premium subscriber with and without commitment, excluding wholesale

partnerships,

e.  Net ARPU per individual subscriber with commitment, excluding wholesale partnerships.
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In 2018, Canak+ Group's revenues amounted to €5,166 million, almost stable comgared to 2017 {-G.3% at constant cusrency and perimater).

At the end of December 2018, Canal+ Group's overall subscriber pertfolio (individual and collective subscribers in France and internationally)
stood at 18.2 million, compared ta 15.5 million at the end of December 2017, representing net growth of 654,000 subscribers.

Revenues from television operations in mainland France decreased slightly {-3.4% at constant currency and perimeter) due to the decline in
the individual subscriber base (7.8 mitlion, compared to 8.1 million at the end of December 2017}, despite a positive change in the churn rate,
which decreased by 2.2 points over the year to 13.6%. This decline was due in particular to the drop in Canalplay’s subscriber base and the
termination of the Canalsat offer in favor of the new Canal offers and subscriptions via wholesaie partnerships with telecom operators.

However, the Canal+ channel’s individual subscriber base recorded a net year-on-year increase in subscribers of 251,000. Including collective
subscriptions, the total subscriber portfolio in mainland France reached 8.3 million.

International operations delivered a strong increase in revenues of 6.8% at constant currency and perimeter, primarily due to the very strong
growth in the individua! subscriber base {+883,000 vear-on-year) to which all the territories contributed, witheut exception.

Studiozanal's revenues amounted to €462 million, a slight year-on-year decrease (-0.6% at constant currengy and perimeter) due to an
unfavorable 2017 comparable basis (particularly with the worldwide success of Paddington 2) and despite significant growth in TV
operations and increased catalog revenues.

In France, Studiocanal was the second fargest french fifm distributor in 2618 with more than 10 miiiion theater tickets sofd, thanks in
particular to the success of Sink or Swim (4.3 miliion tickets sold), Mia and the White Lion (1.4 million tickets sold), and /n Safe Hands
(0.8 million tickets scld} during the fourth quarter.

In 2018, Canal+ Group's profitability increased sharply compared to 2017. Income from operations amounted to €429 million, camparad to
€349 million in 2017 (+22 4% at constant currency and perimeter}.

EBITA before restructuring charges amounted to £428 million, up nearly €80 million year-on-year. EBITA after restructuring charges
amounted to €400 million, compared to £300 million in 2017 {+32.8% at constant currency and perimeter). This strong EBITA growth was
notably due to the cost savings plan initiated in 2016, the significant improvement (n mainfand France and sustained internaticnai
development.

On November 8, 2018, Canal+ Group anncunced the renewal of its agreement with the French cinema, extending untii the end of 2022 a
historic partnership of mare than 30 years. This agreement was a prerequisite for the signing on December 21, 2018 of the new media
retease chranalogy which pratects and strengthens the unique position of Canal+ which can now offer new movies to its subscribers as early
as § months after their theatrical release,

In the fourth quarter of 2018, Canal+ Group also strengthened its sports offer, especially around football, with the acquisition of the
broadcasting rights in France tor the English Premier Luague aud in Poland for the Ekstraklasa. Canal+ Group is proud tn have won the
exclusive rights in France for the Premier League, the most widely broadcast football league in the world, Canal+ will offer the 380 Premier
League matches on its channels and on myCANAL. The agreement covers three seasons (2019/2020, 2020/2021 and 2021/2022) and will
start in August 2019

In addition, the acquisition of Moto GP's rights for the first time illustrates the group's desire to diversify its sports affer, in fing with recent
developments in boxing and women's football.

A new global distribution agreement entered into on November 14, 2018 with the TF1 Group allows all TF1 Greup channels and related non-
linear services to be integrated into the Canal offers. The group had entered into a similar agreement with MG Group in early 2018.
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1.34 Havas

As a reminder, since July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolidated Havas.

Year ended December 31, 12-month pro forma data
% Change at
constant currency
{in millions of guros) 2018 2017 (a) 2017 % Change and perimetar
Revenues 2,318 121 2,374 -2.3% +0.5%
Net revenues (b} 2,195 1,151 2259 -2.8% +0.1%
Income from operations 258 135 4 +1.8% -
Income from operations/net revenugs 11.8% 11.7% 11.2% +0.6pts
Income/icharges) related to share-based compensation plans {12} (3} 10}
{ther special items excluded from income fram operations 1) {6) {8
EBITA before restructuring charges 245 126 236 +3.8% +1.9%
Restructuring charges 30) (15) {24
EBITA 215 1M 212 +1.7% -0.7%
EBITA/net revenues 9.8% 85% 4% +0.4 pts
Net revenues by geographic area
Eurepe 1,109 575 1,123 12% -1.4%
Of which France 438 226 452 -3.1% 34%
United Kingdom 261 123 242 +8.1% +4.8%
North America 766 m 789 -2.9% +1.3%
Asia Pacific and Africa 192 1 201 -4.9% -
Latin America 128 74 146 -127% +5.8%
2,195 1,151 2259 -2.8% +0.1%

a. Correspends to the financial data consolidated by Yivendi since July 3, 2017.

b, Net revenues correspond to Havas's revenues less the pass-through costs rebilled to customers (please refer to Note 1.3.4.3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018}

Reflecting an excellent fourth quarter 2018, Havas's revenues amounted to €693 million, up 6.5% at constant currency and perimeter.
Organic net revenue growth was 4.8% compared to the fourth quarter of 2017 {(+6.7% excluding the impact of Arnold).

in 2018, Havas's revenues amounted to €2,319 million, up 0.5% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2017 {pro forma). Net
revenues amounted to £2,195 million {compared to €2,.259 million in 2017 pro forma), up 0.1% organically (+1.9% excluding the impact of
Arnold) and down 2.8% on an actual basis mainly due to negative currency effects.

With an organic growth of 2.7% in the second half of 2018, compared to -2.9% in the first half of 2018, Havas confirmed the net sequential
improvement in organic net revenue growth. All its businesses (creative, health and weliness and media) contributed to this upturn.

In 2018, Havas increased its profitability. Havas's income from operations reached €258 million, compared to €254 million in 2017 (pro
forma), a +0.6-point increase in the income from operations/net revenues margin to 11 8%. EBITA amounted to €215 million, compared to
€212 million in 2017, representing an increase of +0.4 points in the EBITA/net revenues margin. EBITA before restructuring charges was up
3.8% compared to 2017 (+1.9% organicaly).

The North American agencies performed very well in the fourth quarter of 2018, thanks to Havas Media, Havas Health & You, Havas Edge
and Abernathy/AMO.

Business in Europe continued to show progress at the end of the year, supported once again by robust performances in France and in the
United Kingdom. In France, BETC, Havas Paris and Ekino/Fullsix agencies were the major contributors. The United Kingdom corfirmed its
recovery driven by the excellent performance from the media businesses, and the continued dynamism of the healthcare communications
business at Havas Lynx and the creative business at Havas London. Italy continued to show steady growth, while perfermances from the
other European countries remainaed mixed.

Latin America confirmed its recovery, driven by the media businesses.
Asia-Pacific returned a slightly negative performance, penalized by Australia, while China and India both repartad sustained growth.

Havas pursued its policy of targeted acquisitions, completing several acquisitions in Z018:
« Catchi, the leading digital conversion rate optimization (CRO) specialist across Australia and New Zealand;
« Deekeling Arndt Advisors (DAA), a leading German communications consultangy providing communicative support and political
flanking of equity market transactions, reputation management and crisis communications;
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» Fioile Rouge, a communications agency dedicated to luxury and lifestyle brands in France;
+ MB&C consultancy, a UK-based specialist in healthcare market access; and
= Republica, the leading independent multicultural marketing agency in the United States, based in Miami, Florida.

In additicn, on December 14, 2018, Havas Group entered into an agreement to acquire a 51% interest in the largest Baltics-based
communications group, formed by the merger of Estonian-owned Idea Group and tithuanian-owned Publicum Group. The new combined
entity wili operate under the name Havas Baltics and will represent the Havas Group in Estonia, Lithuania and Latvia.

Major awards won by Havas

In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Palau Pledge campaign, created by Australian agency Host/Havas for the Palau | egacy Project, continued to
garner awards, notably at the D&AD tmpact Awards and at the LIAA. In 2018, it became one of the most awarded campaigns worldwide.
Havas Group's agencies won 6 awards at the LIAA. At the Clio Health Awards, Havas Lynx took 5 awards, BETC Brazil was awarded 1 Gold
and Havas Republica, one of the agencies acquired by Havas in 2018, carried off 1 Silver and 1 Bronze.

Several Havas agencies did weil at the Epica Awards, taking home a total of 23 awards. At the Cristal Festival, Host/Havas was awarded the
Grand Prix in the Promo & Activation category, other agencies scooped a total of 35 awards and Havas was, once again, named Advertising
Network of the Year. Adweek named Rosapark its international Agency of the Year.

Major account wins over the fourth quarter of 2018
» Healthcare communications: Havas Health & You: Novarlis Genentech, AbbVie, Chemocentryx and Sage Therapeutics;
« (Creative: Adidas, Henkel, Nestle, Savencia, Amway; and
« Media: Puma, Reckitt, Correos, Caisse des dépdts, Gameloft,

135 Gameioft

Year ended December 31,
% Changeat % Change at
constant  constant currency

{in miltions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change  currency and perimeter
Revenues 293 320 -8.3% -51% -8.1%
lncome from operations 4 10 -60.4% ~58.4% -56.4%
Restructuring charges {4} M
Charges related to share-hased compensation plans 7 (5)
Other special items excluded from income from operations - -
EBITA 2 q -55.8% -41.9% -41.9%
Revenues by geographic area
EMEA (Eurcpe, the Middle East, Africa) 100 107
Asia Pacific 73 89
North America g7 94
|atin Amenica 23 30
293 320
Average Unique Users {in millions)
Monthiy Active Users (MAU) 9 128
Daily Active Users (DAY} " 15

In 2018, Gameloft's 07T revenues (sales of games on platfarms such as Apple, Geogle, Microsoft and Amazon} which represents 72% of
Gameloft's total revenues, were up 2.1% at constant currency. This increase partially offset the decline in the activity related to telecom
operators, which is structurally in declina due to the gradual replacement of traditional mobile phones by smartphones, and the decrease in
advertising sales. n 2018, Gameloft's revenues amounted to €293 millien, down 5.1% at constant currency and perimeter.

Gameloft released two new games on smartphones in 2018 Dungeon Hunter Champions and Asphalt 3: Lagends, the latest opus of the
No. 1 mobile racing franchise that has recorded more than 35 million downloads since its launch on July 26, 2018 and was among
Gameloft's Top b bestselling games in 2018.

Gameloft's catalogue (83% of 2018 revenues generated by its own franchises), including its bestseiling games such as Ofsney Magic
Kingdoms, March of Empires. Dragon Mania Legends, Asphait 8: Airborne and Asphalt 9: Legends, which accounted for 47% of Gameloft's
total revenues in 2018, is particularly resilient.

In 2018, Gameloft's income from operations amounted to €4 millien, and EBITA amounted to €2 miilion, including restructuring charges for
€4 million.
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Gameloft and the LEGO Group anncunced the release in 2019 of & LEGO game that will bring 40 years of LEGO minifigure history and
uriverses to mobiles.

in December 2018, Gamaloft acquired FreshPlanet, the multi-award-winning maker of the SongPop mobile games with more than 100 million
downloads. In ine with Gameloft's philosophy to pravide the best gaming experiences to players of all ages and countries, this acquisition is
a new milestone in the company's expansion strategy.

136 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant
constant currency and
tin millions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change currency perimater (a)
Revenues 123 109 +126% +13.1% +11.5%
of which Vivendi Ticketing 58 52 +0.9% +11.7% 4.0%
tive 34 18 +94.9% +94.3% +84.9%
Income from operations 9} (6}
Restructuring charges {2} 12}
Income/{charges] related to share-based compensation plans . .
Other special items excluded from income from operaticns ? {10)
EBITA {9} (18}

a  Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the acquisition of Paylogic (April 16, 2018) and the sale of Radionomy {August 17, 2017).

In 2018, Vivendi Village's revenues amounted to €123 million, an increase of 12.6% (+ 11.5% at constant currency and perimeter) compared
to 2017,

Ticketing revenues amounted to €58 million, up 9.9% compared to 2017 following the acquisition of Paylogic in April 2018. Vivendi Vitlage
now has a ticketing network with a strong presence in Continental Europe, the United Kingdom and the United States, which had a record
year with more than 20 million tickets sold.

Live activities, which encompass Olympia Production, festivals and venues in France and Africa, recorded revenues of €34 mitlion, an
increase of 94.9% compared to 2017. Oiympia Production recerded very strong growth with more than 1,100 shows. It has a diversified
portfolio of 32 artists (music and comedy} and four regional festivals in France (compared to two in 2017), including Garorock, one of the
country’s largest festivals with an attendance of 145,000 peapte, acquired at the end of 2018. L'Oiympia enjoyed a very good year with
280 shows, its level of activity prior to November 2615.

In Africa, CanalClympia, with 11 cinema and entertainment venues in eight countries at the end of 2018, is meeting the challenge of strong
demand for cinema: its average attendance rate (24%) is almost double that of France.

Vivendi Sports organized its first two events in 2018, le Tour de {'Espoir (a cycling race in Cameroon) and Jab&Vibes (a boxing competition in
Senegal).

Vivendi Village's income from operations amounted to a loss of €9 million in 2018, compared to a loss of €5 million in 2017. Excluding the
investments in Africa, income from operations was positive at €2 million. EBITA amounted to a loss of €9 million, compared to a loss of
€18 million in 2017.

1.3.7 New Initiatives

In 2018, New initiatives, which includes Dailymation, Vivendi Content and GVA, recorded revenues amounting to €66 miliion, up 30.5%
compared to 2017.

GVA is deploying a fiber network on the African continent, enabling major cities to benefit from very high-speed Internat services. In 2018,
GVA opened two locations in Gabon and Togo, and acquired a business in Congo. GVA is planning to make significant investments, which
will weigh on its profitability for the first few years of operation.

Since June 2017, Dailymotion has focused on premium content and has improved its videc base. Its audience for premium content has
almost doubled in the space of a year, reaching 2.2 billion views at the end of 2018, compared to 1.2 billion at the end of 2017. This strategy
has enahled Datlymoticn to enter into many partnerships with leading global publishers. In total, more than 300 agreements were concluded
in 2018, including 100 in the United States and dozens in territories where Dailymotion previously had little presence (Korea, Vietnam, India).
The audience in these new countries has grown significantly.
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in 2018, Dailymotion also reviewed its advertising ecosystem. The company created its own programmatic platform and content
monetization system {live or programmatic). It is currently working on new farmats.

New Initiatives’ income from operations amounted to a loss of €79 million, compared to a loss of €87 million in 2017. New Initiatives’ EBITA
amounted to a loss of €99 miliion, compared to a loss of €92 million in 2017.

138 Corporate

Corporate’s income from operations was a net charge of €110 miilion, comparad t¢ a net charge of €101 millian in 2017, an unfavorable
change of €9 million, primarily due to the increase in legal fees, notably refating to ongoing fitigation and non-recurring positive items
recorded in 2017.

Corporate’s EBITA was a net charge of £123 million, compared to a net charge of €37 million in 2017, an unfavarable change of €26 mitiion
mainly refating to the change in ingome from operations and an increase in restructuring charges.

2 Lliquidity and capital resources

2.1 Liquidity and equity portfolio

Prefiminary comments:

» The "Net Cash Position” and the “Financial Net Dabt”, non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as & substitute
for, GAAP measures presentad in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position, as well as any other meastire of indebtedness
reported In accordance with GAAP. Vivend considers these to be relevant indicators of the group’s liquidity and capital resources.
Vivendi Management uses these indicators for reporting, management and planning purposes.

e The Net Cash Position (and the Financial Net Debt) are calculated as follows:

i. cash and cash equivalents, as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, corresponding to cash in banks, money
market funds and hond funds, which satisfy ANC and AMF position expectations expressed in Novembar 2018, and other highty
liquid short-term investments with initial maturities of generally three months or fess, as required by IAS 7 {please refer to Note
1.2.5.11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018}

il. cash management financial assets, included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”. refating
to financial investments, that do not satisfy the criteria for classification as cash equivalents set forth in IAS 7, and, with respect to
money market funds, which satisfy ANC and AMF position expectations exprassed in November 2018 and

Jii. derfvative financial instruments, net (assets and liabilitias! where the underlying instruments are Financial Net Debt items, as well
as cash deposits securing borrowings included in the Consofidated Statement of Financiaf Position under “financial assets”;

less:

iv. value of borrowings at amortized cost.

e for a detailed description, please refer to Note 14 “Cash position” and to Note 19 "Borrowings and other financial liabifities and
financial risk management” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

211 Changes in liquidity

Cash and cash Borrowings at ar_raoni;ed N Nethash_
cost and other financial Position/(Financial Net

) equivalents :
{in millions of euros) items (a} Debt)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2017 1,951 (4.291) 12,340}
{Qutflows) / inflows:

Operating activities 1,187 - 1.187

Investing activities 1,288 520 1,806

Financing activities (610) 120 {490)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {21) 34 13
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2018 3793 (3,617} 176

a.  "Other financial items" include cash management financial assets and derivative financial instruments relating to the interest rate and
foreign currency risk management {assets and liabilities).
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As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi's Net Cash Position amounted to £176 million, compared to a Financial Nat Debt of -€2,340 miliion as of
December 31, 2017, an increase of €2,516 million. This favorable change was mainly attributable to the following items:

e 2 £1,580 million inflow as part of the sale of Vivendi's 27.27% interest :n Ubisoft at a price of €66 per share for an aggregate
consideration of €2.0 hillion {including €1,511 million received on March 23, 2018, €69 million received on October 3, 2018 &and
€429 million still to be received under the forward sale of the remainder of its interest which is expected to occur on March 5,
2019; please refer to Note 2.3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018);

« 2 €373 million inflow as part of the sale on the market of the Telefonica shares held by Vivendi in November and December 2018;

o 2 £267 million inflow received on July 12, 2018 as part of the sale of Vivendi's interest in Fnac Darty {please refer tp Note 2.4 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018}; and

+ netcash provided by operating activities (after income tax paid} for €1,187 million.

These inflows were partially offset by the dividend paid by Vivendi on April 24, 2018 with respect to fiscal year 2017 for €568 million and net
capital expenditures for €341 million.

During the first quarster of 2019, the following events will impact the cash position:

+  On January 31, 2019, Vivendi completed the acquisition of 100% of Editis’s share capital, representing an €833 miilion outflow,
which includes the repayment of Editis’s debt (please refer to Note 2.2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018);

«  On February 11, 2019, pursuant to a decision of the Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal regarding the use of foreign tax
receivables by Vivendi for the payment of the tax income in respect of the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2012, Vivendi received a
request for repayment from the tax authorities in the amount of £239 million. Vivendi has 30 days to satisfy this request {please
refer to Note 6.1 to the Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018); and

« DnMarchb, 2019, Vivendi will receive €429 million under the forward sale of its remaining interast in Ubisoft {please refer to Note
2.3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

21.2  Equity portiolio

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held a portfolic of listed non-controlling equity interests, including a receivable of €423 million on the
ferward sale of its remaining interest in Ubisoft (please refer to Note 2.3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018). As of December 31, 2018, the aggregate market value of this portfolio was approximately €3.9 billion (before taxes),
compared to €6.4 billion as of December 31, 2017 {which notably included the entire interest in Ubisoft, as well as the interests in Telefonica
and Fnac Darty}; ptease refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

As of February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi’s Management Board meeting that approved the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018}, the value of this portfolio was approximately €4.0 billion (before taxes),
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2.2 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comment:

“Cash flow from operations” (CFFO) and "cash flow from operations after interest and taxes” (CFAIT), non-GAAP measures, should be
considered in addition 1o, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes or as described in this Financial Report, Vivendi considers these to be relevant
indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance.

Year ended December 31,

(in miliions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change
Revenues 13,932 12518 +11.3%
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization {12,192) (11.147) -9.4%
1,748 1,377 +26.3%
Restructuring charges paid {106) (73) -45.7%
Content investments, net {137) 217} +56.8%
of which payments to artists and repertoire owners, net at UMG:
Paymaents (333) (834) -11.8%
Recoypment and other 812 657 +17.4%
fz1 (142} +154%
of which fiim and television rights, net at Canal+ Group:
Acquisition paid {508) {615} +17.4%
Consumption 670 708 54%
162 93 +73.4%
of which sports rights, net at Canal+ Group:
Acquisition paid {906} {911} +.6%
Consgmption 865 941 B1%
41 30 na
Neutralization of change in provisions included in operating expenses (29) (30) +5.6%
Other cash operating items 9 (3 na
(Other changes in net working capitaf {28) 265 na
Net cash provided by/(used for} operating activities before income tax paid 1,449 1219 +18.8%
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies 18 29 -395%
Capital expenditures, net {capex, net) [341) {259 -31.5%
Cash flow from operations {CFFO) 1,126 989 +13.8%
Interest paid. net (47) (53) +12.0%
Other cash items related to financial activities 5 {61) na
Income tax (paid)/received, net {262) 471 na
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) 82 1,346 -39.0%

na; not applicable.

221 Changes in cash flow from operations (CFFO)

In 2018, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by the group’s business segments amounted to €1,126 miltion {compared to
£989 million in 2017}, & €137 million improvement. These amounts included capitai expenditures (net) generated by the group’s business
segments for €341 million {compared to €259 million in 2017), a deterioration of -€82 millign mainly at Universal Music Group {-€47 million)
and Canal+ Group (€22 million). In 2018, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by the group’s business segments, before capital
expenditures {net), amounted to €1,467 million {compared to €1,248 million in 2017), an improvement of £219 million. This change mainly
resulted from the strong operating performance of Universal Music Group (+€239 million), primarily driven by the growth in subscription
streaming services, 8s well as Canal+ Group's growth (+£43 miltion), partially offset by the decline of Havas {-861 million), whith resulied
from the consolidation of Havas as from the second half of 2017. Havas’s change in working capital is usually unfavorable in the first half,
due to the seasonality of cash generation. For the second half of 2018, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by Havas, hefore capital
expenditures [net}, amounted to €356 million, compared to €329 million for the secend half of 2017.
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222 Cash flow trom operations {CFFO) by husiness segment

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017 % Change
Universal Music Group 838 645 +298%
Canal+ Group 259 238 +8.7%
Havas 230 308 na
Gameloft 1 7 na
Vivend: Village {3) 120}

New Initiatives (82) 190)

Corporate 7 {100)

Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 1,126 989 +13.8%

na: not applicable.
223 Changes in cash flow from operations after interest and inceme tax paid {CFAIT}

in 2018, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) was ar €822 million net inflow (compared to £1,346 millicn in
2017), a decrease of €524 million, primarily resulting from the unfavorable change in cash flow relating to income taxes.

In 2018, cash flow reiating to income taxes was a €262 million net cutfiow {compared to a €471 million net inflow in 2017). In 2017, it
notably included (i} a €346 million inflow received on April 18, 2017 as part of the litigation settlement relating to the tax credits utilized oy
Vivendi in fiscal year 2012, (i1) a €223 million inflow relating to the refund to Vivendi SA of the amounts paid with respect to the 3% tax on
dividend distributions following the decision of the French Constitutional Council, dated October B, 2017, where it was ruled that the tax
contribution was ynconstitutional, as well as (iii) a refund of tax installments paid in 2016 under the French Tax Group System for fiscal year
2018 (€136 million), and (iv) a €10 miliion inflow at Universal Music Group in the United Kingdom, refating to a litigation settlement.

In 2018, the financial activities generated a €42 miflion net outflow {compared to €114 million in 2017). In 2018, they mainly included net
interest paid {(-€47 million, compared to -€53 million in 2017). In addition, cash generated by foreign exchange risk hedging instruments was
a +£13 million inflow, compared to a -€52 million gutflow in 2017, notably due to the depreciation of the dollar (USD) against the euro.

224 Reconciliation of CFAIT to net cash provided by operating activities

Year ended December 31,

fin millions of euras) gk 2017

Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) 822 1,346

Adjustments

Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) W 259
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsclidated companies (18) (29}
interest paid, net a7 53

Other cash items related to financial activities {5} 61

Net cash provided by operating activities (a) 1,187 1,690

a. Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
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2.31 Investing activities

(in miffions of euros}

Financial investments

Acquisition of cash management financial assets
Other

Total financial investments

Financial divestments
Sale of Ubisoft shares

Sale of Telefonica shares
Sale of Fnac Darty shares

Redemption of the balance of the "new ORAN 1" issued by Banijay Group Holding

QOther

Total financial divestments

Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies
Capital expenditures, net

Net cash provided by/{used for} investing activities {a)

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

2.3.2 Financing activities

{in miliions of euros)

Transactions with shareawners

Distribution to Vivendi SA's shareowners

Capital increase subscribed by employees as part of the Stock Purchase Plan
Exercise of stock options by executive management and employses
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests
Other

Total transactions with shareowners

Transactions on horrowings and other financial liabilities
Redemption of bonds

Interest paid, net

Other

Total transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilities

Net cash provided by/{used for| financing activities (aj

a.  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Refer to Notes to
the Consolidated

Year ended

Financial December 31, 2018
Statemertts
14 {520)
[174)
(634)
23 1,580
12 373
24 267
1.1 25
58
2,303
18
3 (341}
1.286
Refer to Notes to
the Consalidated Year endad

Financial December 31, 2018
Statements

15 {568)

18 100

18 89

{47

{15}

14m)

19 {100}

] (47

{22)

{189}

(610
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3 Outlook

Dividend

Vivendi's Supervisory Board approved the Management Board's proposal to pay an ordinary dividend of €9.50 per share with respect to fiscal
year 2018, which will be submitted ¢ the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 15, 2019 for approval. This dividend
represents an increase of 11.1% compared to the dividend distributed with respect to fiscal vear 2017 and a return of approximately 2.3%.
The coupon detachment date would be April 16, 2018 and the payment date April 18, 2019.

Outiook

Vivend: is confident in the evolution of its main businesses in 2019. As regards Canal+ Group, after a strong improvement in its profitability
in 2018, it will continue its improvement efforts and its 2019 profitability 1s expected to be even better than it was in 2018.

4 Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of operations, business,
strategy, plans and outlook of Vivendi, including the impact of certain transactions, the payment cf dividends and distributions as well as
share repurchases. Although Vivendi beligves that such forward-iooking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements
are not guarantees of future performance. Actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking statements &s a result of a number
of risks and uncertainties, many of which arg autside Vivendi's control, including, but not timited to, the risks related to antitrust and other
regulatory approvals, and to any other approvals which may be required in connection with centain transactions, as well as the risks
described in the documents of the group fited by Vivendi with the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF"} (the French securities
regulator), and in its press releases, if any, which are also available in English cn Vivendi's website (www.vivendi.com}. Accordingly, readers
are cautioned against relying on such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this
Financial Report. Vivendi disclaims any intention or obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or atherwise.

5 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does not spansor any American Depositary Receipt (ADR) facility in respect of its shares. Any ADR facility currently in existence is
“unsponsored” and has ne ties whatsoever to Vivendi. Vivendi disclaims any liability in respect of any such facility.

Translation

This Financial Report is an English translation of the french version of the report and is provided solely for the convenience of
English-speaking readers. This translation is qualified in its entirety by the French version, which is available on the company’s website
www.vivendi.com}. In the event ¢f any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the
French version will prevail.
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{in miltions of euras)

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivend: Village

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Revenues

{in millions of suras)

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas (a}

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Revenues

2018
Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
1,222 1,806 1,495 1,800
1,298 1,277 1,247 1,344
506 567 553 693
70 Fal 74 78
23 29 36 B
18 16 15 19
{11} {14} (191 14)
3124 3,362 3401 4,055
2017
Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended  Three months ended
March 31, Jure 30, September 30, December 31,
1,284 1,382 1,319 1,688
1,272 1,283 1,252 139
- - 552 659
84 T 18 81
26 30 75 28
10 13 " 17
{3) 13) (16} {22}
2673 2,782 3. 3842

a.  Asareminder, since July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolidated Havas.

Note: As from January 1, 2018, Vivendi applied the new accounting standard IFRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers (please

refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).
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Ill- Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2018

Preliminary comment:
In 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards:

» [FRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with IFRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenues, thereby ensuring comparability of the data relative to each period of 2018 and 2017 contained in this
report, and

» [FRS 3 — Financial Instruments: in accordance with IFRS 8 Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Comprehensive Income and restated its opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2018;
therefore, the data relative to 20717 contained in this raport is not comparabie.

For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

To the Annual General Meeting of Vivend,

Opinion

In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your annuai general meetings, we have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Vivend: for the year erded 31 December 2018.

In aur opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

The audit cpinion expressed above is consistent with our report to the Audit Committee.

Basis for Opinion
» Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accerdance with professional standards applicable in France. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtaired is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

s Independance

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence rules applicabie to us, for the period from 1 January 2018 to the date
of our report and specifically we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014
ar in the French Code of Ethics for Statutory Auditors (Code de déontologie de fa profession de commissaire aux comptas),

Observations

Without qualifying our conclusion above, we draw your attention to sections 1.1.1 and 1.1.2 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, which describe the changes in accounting methods relating to the mandatory application as from 1 January 2018 of standards
IFRS 9 "Financiat instruments” and FRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”.

In particular, the cumulated unrealized capital gain as at 31 December 2017 relating to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft (€1,160m) was recorded
as retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 as part of the first-time application of accounting standard IFRS 9. In accordance with {AS 38
which was applicable until 31 December 2017, it would have been reported to profit or loss as part of the sale that occurred during the
period.
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In accordance with the requirements of Articles L.823-9 and R.823-7 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) relating to the
justification of our assessments, we inform you of the key audit matters relating to risks of material misstatement that, in our professional
judgment, were of most sigrificance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, as well as how we addressed

those rigks.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consotidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn
therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on specific items of the consolidated financial statements.

o Valuation of goodwill {notes 1.35.2, 1.3.5.7 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

As at 31 December 2018, goodwill is recorded in the balance
sheet for a net carrying amount of €12,438m, for a total balance
sheet of €34,403m. It has been allocated to the cash generating
units {CGUs) or, where applicable, groups of cash-generating
units, of the activities into which the companies acquired have
been integrated.

Each year, management ensures that the carrying amount of the
goodwill does not exceed its recoverable amount. The impairment
test methods thus implemented by management are described in
the notes to the consolidated accounts; they involve a significant
amount of judgements and assumptions, aotably concerning:

- Future cash-flow forecasts;

- Perpetual growth ratas used for projected flows;

- Discount rates {WACC) applied tc estimated cash flows;

- The selection of samgle companies included among the
transaction or stock market comparables.

Consequently, any variation in these assumptions may have a
significant impact on the recoverable amount of the goodwill and
necessitate the recognition of an impairment loss, where
applicable.

We consider the valuation of goodwill to be a key audit matter
due to {i) its materiality in the group's accounts, (i} the
judgements and assumptions required to determine its
recoverable amount.
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Our response

We analyzed the compliance of the methods adopted by vour
company with the accounting standards in force, in particular
concerning the determination of the cash generating units (CGUs)
and the methods used to estimate the recoverable amount.

We obtained the impairment tests for each CGU or group of CGUs
and examined the determination of the value of each CGL. We paid
particular attention to those where the carrying amount is close to
the estimated recoverable amount, those where the historical
performance showed differences in relation to the forecasts, and
those operating in volatile economic environments.

We examined the competence of the experts appointed by your
company for the valuation of certain CGUs or groups of CGUs. We
tonk note of the key assumptions used for all the CGUs or groups of
CGUs and:

- compared the business forecasts underpinning the
determination of cash flows with the information available,
including the market prospects and past achievements, and in
relation to management’s latest estimates {assumptions,
budgets and strategic plans where applicable);

- compared the perpetual growth rates used for the projected
flows with market analyses and the consensus of the main
professionals concerned;

- compared the discount rates used {WACC) with our internal
databases, assisted by financial valuation specialists included
inour teams;

- examined the selection of companies inciuded among the
transaction or stock market comparables in order to compare it
with the relevant samples according to market analysts and our
knowledge of the market.

We obtained and reviewed the sensitivity analyses performed by
management, which we compared with our own calculations to
assess what level of variation in the assumptions would require the
recognition of goodwill impairment.

Lastly, we assessed the appropriateness of the infarmation disclosed
in the notes to the consclidated financial statements,
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s Valuation of the Telecom Italia equity affiliate (notes 1.3.2 and 11.2 to the consolidated accounts/

Key audit matter

The value of the Telecom [falia equity-accounted investment
amounts to €3,130m after depreciation as at 3} December 2018.
At year-end, your company ensures that it is not necessary to
recognize an impairment loss for this investment, by comparing its
recoverable amount with the carrying amount seccrded in the
group’s accounts.

The recoverable amount has been estimated using the usual
valuation methods (discounted cash flows; market comparables
model).

Your company used the services of an expert to assist you in the
valuation of the recoverable amount of this asset. Given the
valatitity observed in the company’s stock market performance
during the last financial year, we consider that the assessment of
this equity-accounted investment represents a key audit matter.

Our response

We obtained the documentation relating to the valuation of the
equity-accounted value of Telecom Halia,

We examines the competence of the expert appointed by your
company.

With the assistance of cur valuation specialists;

we took note of the models and key assumptions used to
determine discounted cash flows ileng-term growth rate,
forecast margin rate, discount rate), comparing these items
with the information in our internal databases,

- we took note of the market multiples used by the expert to
assess the selevance of the estimates resulting from the
discounted cash flows method, comparing these items with
market practice and data.

Finally, we assessed the appropriateness of the information
disclosed in the noies to the consolidated financial statements.

e Analysis of the disputes with the Mediaset group and with the former minority shareholders (notes 1.3.8, 1.5, 6.5, 16, 22.4 and

23 to the consolidated financial statements)
Key audit matter

The group’s activities are conducted in a constantly evolving
environment and within a complex international regulatory
framework. The group is not only subject to significant changes
in the legislative environment and in the application and
interpretation of regulations, but it alse has to contend with
litigation arising in the normal course of its business.

Your company exercises its judgement in assessing the risks
run relative to the disputes with the Mediaset group and with
certain  foreign institutional investors, and recognizes a
provision when the expense liable to result from these disputes
is probable and the amount can either be quantified or
estimated within a reasonable range.

We consider this subject 1o be a key audit matter given the
amounts at stake and the level of judgement required for the
determination of the provisions.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

Qur response

We analyzed al! the information made available te us, including, when
applicable, the written confirmations from external advisors mandated
by your company, relating to {i) the dispute between your company and
the Mediaset group and its shareholders and {ii} the dispute between
your company and certain loreign instilutional investors concerning
alleged harm resulting from the financial communication of your
company and its former CEQ between 2000 and 2002,

We examined the estimates of the risk performed by the management
and notably cormpared them with the information made available to us
by the Vivendi group’s advisers.

in addition, we analyzed the lawyers’ answers received in respanse to
our requests for confirmation concerning these disputes.

Finally, we verified the information concerning these risks disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated aceounts.
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Specific Verifications

As required by French legal and regulatory texts, we have also verified in accordance with professional standards applicable in France the
information pertaining to the Group presented in the managemant report of the Management Board.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated finarcial statements.

We attest that the consolidated non-financial statement provided for in Article L. 225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code (Code de
commerce) is included in the Group's management report, it being specified that, in accordance with the provisions of Article L. 823-10 of
said Code, the information cortained in this statement has not been verified by us regarding its faimess or consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

s Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

We were appointed as statutory auditors of Vivendi by the annual general meetings held on 25 April 2017 for DELOITTE & ASSOCIES and on
15 June 2000 for ERNST & YOUNG et Autres,

As at 31 December 2018, DELOITTE ET ASSOCIES and ERNST & YOUNG et Autres were in the second year and nineteenth year of total
uninterrupted engagement respectively.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue &s a gaoing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless it is expected to
liguidate the Company or to cease ocperations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of internal control and risks
management systems and where applicable, its internal audit, regarding the accounting and financial reporting procedures.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by your Management Board.
Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

s Objectives and audit approach

Our role is to issue a report on the consolidated financial statements. Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with professicnal standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As specified in Article 1.823-10-1 of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce), our statutory audit does net include assurance on the
viahility of the Company or the guality of management of the affairs of the Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the statutory auditor exercises professional
judgment througheut the audit and furthermore:

Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
designs and performs audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence considered to be sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for his opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

- Evaluates the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and refated disclasures
made by management in the consolidated financial statements.
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- Assesses the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ahility to continue as a going concern. This assessment is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the data of his audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease to continue as a going cancern. If the statutory auditor
concludes that a material uncertainty exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in the audit repart to the related disclosures
in the consolidated finangial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided or inadequate, to modify the opinion expressed
therein.

Evaluates the overall presentation of the consclidated financial statements and assesses whether these statements repiesent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The statutory auditor is responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated financial statements and for the apinion expressed on these
consclidated financial statements.

s Report to the Audit Committee

We submit a report to the Audit Committeg which includes in particular a description of the scope of the audit and the audit program
implemented, as well as the results of our audit. We also report significant deficiencies, if any, in internal control regarding the accounting
and financial reporting procedures that we have identified,

Our report to the Audit Committes includes the risks of material misstatement that, in our professional judgment, were of mast significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial stataments of the current period and which are therefore the key audit matters that we are required
to describe in this report.

We also provide the Audit Committee with the declaration provided for in Article 6 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2034, confirming our
independence within the meaning of the rules applicable in France as set out in particutar in Articles L.822-10 to L822-14 of the French
Commercial Code (Code de commarce) and in tha French Code of Ethics for Statutory Auditors {Code de déontologie de la profession de
commissairg aux comptes) Where appropriate, we discuss with the Audit Committee the risks that may reasenably be thought to bear on
our independence, and the related safeguards.

Paris-La Défense, February 14, 2019

The Statutory Auditors
French original signed by

DELOITTE & ASSOCIES ERNST & YOUNG et Autres

Jean Paul Séguret Jacques Pierres
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Consolidated Statement of Farnings

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Reversal of reserve refated to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States
Income from equity affiliates - operational

Eamings before imerest and income taxes (EBIT)

Income from equity affiliates - non-operational

Interest

Income from investments
Other financial income
Other financial charges

Eamings before provision for income taxes

Provision for Income taxes

Eamings from continuing operations

Earnings from discontinued operations

Eamings

0f which

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareownars

Non-controlling interests

Eamings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings attributzble to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

In millions of eures, except per share amounts, in euros.

Note

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017
13832 12,518
17.618) [7,302)
{5,022) {4,781)
{118) (88)
{2) 12)
- 77
7 145
1,182 1,018
122 -
47} ]
20 29
418 43
{1,181} (143)
{790) 124)
514 894
1357} 355
157 1.249
157 1,249
127 1,216
30 33
0.10 0.97
0.10 0.94

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,
tin millions of ewros) Note 2018
Eamings 157 1,289
Actuanial gains/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net il 29
Financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income {233 na
Comprehensive income from equity affiliates, net 2} 14
ftems not subsequentiy reclassified to profit or loss {204 9
Foreign currency translation adjustments 228 {848)
Unrealized gains/{iosses}, net 2 685
Comprehensive income from equity affiliates, net 1 (162) (46)
Other impacts, net 38 140}
tems 1c he subsequently reclassified ta profit or loss 106 (248}
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 3 198} {206}
Total comprehensive income ] 1,043
Of which
Total comprehensive inceme attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners L} 1.002
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-cantrolling interasts 19 41

na: not applicable.

The accompanying riotes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in mitligns of guras) Note December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018 {2}
ASSETS

Goodwill 9 12.438 12,084

Non-current content assets 10 2,194 2,087

Other intangible assets 437 440
Property, plant and equipment 986 930

Investments in equity affiliates " 3,418 4,526

Non-current financial assets 12 2,102 4,502

Deferred tax assets 6 675 527

Non-current assets 22,250 25,196

Inventories 206 77

Current tax receivables 6 404 408

Current content assets 10 1,346 1,160

Trade accounts receivable and other 13 5314 5,208

Current financia! assets 12 1,080 138

Cash and cash equivalents 14 3,793 1,951

Current assets 12,153 9,040

TOTAL ASSETS 34,403 34,236

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital 7,184 7128

Additional paid-in capital 4,475 4,341

Treasury shares {649} {670)
Retained earnings and ather 6,303 5,835

Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 17,313 12,634

Non-controfling interests 22 272

Total equity 1% 17.534 12,85

Non-current provisions 16 1,431 1,515
tong-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 3.448 4170
Deferred tax liabilities 6 753 589
Other non-current lizbilities 248 226
Non-current liabilities 5,880 6,500

Current provisions 16 438 1412
Short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 19 888 373
Trade accounts payable and other 13 8,572 9,019
Current tax payables 6 91 16
Current liabilities 10,989 9,880
Total liabilities 16,869 16,380
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 34,403 34,236

a. In 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards: IFRS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers and [FRS 9 — Financial
Instruments, with no significant impact on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Note 28 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018,

Tha actompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

tin millions of guros)
Operating activities
EBIT
Adjustments
Content investments, net
Gross cash providad by sperating activitigs before income tax paid
Other changes in et working capital
Net cash provided by operating activitias before incoma tax paid
Income 1ax (paid)/received, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Capital axpandituras
Purchases of consolidated companies, after acquired cash
Investments in equity affifiates
Increase in financial assets
Investments
Proceeds from sales of property, plamt, equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after divested cash
Disposal of equity affiliates
Decrease in financial assets
Divestitures
Dividends received from equity affiliates
Dividends received from unconsolidated companies
Net cash provided by/{used for} investing activities

Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuanse of common shares i coanection with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans
Sales/{purchases) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares
Distributions to Vivendi SA's sharecwners
Other transactions with shareowners
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their non-canirolling interests
T fons with shareownars
Setting up of fong torm Borrowings and ncrease in othar long-term financial liabilities
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease in other long-term financial fiabities
Principai payment on short-tarm hormowings
Other changes in short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities
Interest paid, nat
Other cash items related to financial activities
Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilities
Net cach provided by/{used for) financing activities

Fareign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations
Change in cash and cash equivalems

Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the period
At end of the period

Note

201

8.2

11
12

W2

H
12

18
15
15

19
19

Thursday February 14, 2019

Year ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2018 2017
1,182 1,018
432 253
1137) (317)
1477 954
{28} 265
1,445 1219
{262} 471
1,187 1,690
(351} {261}
(116) {3.481}
{31 (2i
{575) {2029
{1,045} (3,946
10 2
15 {5}
2 -
2,285 961
2313 978
5 B
13 73
1,286 {2,939)
190 152
- 1203)
{568} {499)
(18} (10}
147y (40}
(441 (600}
4 855
3 (4
(193i (1,024}
85 64
(47 (53)
5 161)
{169) (227)
{610) {827}
21 45)
1,842 {2.121)
1,951 4072
m 1,951
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Yeat ended December 31, 2018 Caypitel Retainad earnings and other
Common shares
Additional Orher Total
haumber of Share: paid-in TGS g g | Totened comprehengive  Suftatal | equity
shares ! shares earnings
———————  capital capital Income

{in muihans of ewos, except numbet of shares) Note| fin thousanons! .

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBEER 11, 2017 - RESTATED 1,296,059 EAP: ] 34 {670) 10,799 6537 7.067 17,866
Attributabie lo Viveadi SA shareowners s . o 1,296,859 7128 4341 (670 10799 62 551 5045 17644
Atiributabie to ron-controiling interests - - - - - 243 21 22 &

Rastatemants relsted 1o the agplication of IFRS & - - - - - 1,342 11,338 4 ]
Attnbutable to Vivend SA shareawners . L N - 1.342 N “3:?81.’ R 4 4
Attnbutable to npncontiofhng mterests - - - - - - -

Rastatoments related to the application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 by equity affiliates - - - - - {16 z' {14) )
Attnbutable to Vivandr SA shareownsrs o . I - - - - (18} 7. H‘:fi o

b Artnbutable to non centiothing mieresis - - - . - . . - .

BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2018 1,296,059 [AL:] 434 (610) 10,738 7,863 {B06) 1057 17.8%
Attribeinble to Vivendi SA shareowners . 1296059 7128 434 1679/ 10,793 7,620 {785 6835|176
Changes in Yivendi $A's hip intereat in its subsidiaries that do ot result in a Joss of control - - - - - 243 {21) 22 2

Contributions by/diatributiana to Vivendi 5A ah 0975 5 134 2 m {572) - (272} {381)
Dividend paid on Apnl 24, 2018 with cespect to fiscal year 2017 {80 45 per share] 15 - - - - {hES) i 1968) 1568)
Capial inctease related 1o share-based compensation plans 18 10175 o5 134 21 21 144 - 1} 207

of which employee Stock Putchase Plans (July 19, 28} LRy 3 ' 78 72 - e - -1 - 100
exercice of stock-option by executive management and employees 4509 27 &7 - a3 - - - g2

Changes in Vivendi SA's hip intarest in its idi that do not result in a loas of centrel - - - - - - - - -

CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE T0 VIVENDH SA SHAREOWNERS (A) 10975 5 134 2 21 {572) - (572 1381)

Contnbutions by/distnbutions to non-controlling mterests - - - - - (a0t {40) {404

Changes in non_controfling :nterests that result in 2 gaindloss) of controt - - - - . 20 - 20 20

CHANGES IN EQUIVY ATTRIBUTABLE T0 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (8) - - - - - (20§ - 120} {20}

Earmungs - - - 157 - 157 57

Charges and ingome duectly recogmzed in equity B - - - 38 {138 199} {981

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (C) - - - - - 195 {136) 59 5
10,175 55 3 2 211 {387/ (136) 1533) (32)
10175 i) ot peg (133 1532) t321)
- 2 13 i [l

1,306,234 JAL) 4475 #4900 1.466 {942} 6524 17.534

o 1306234 7184 4475 (64 iete| . je18) 63| 13

- . - - - 245 {24) 221 221
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Year ended December 31, 2017 Capital R ings ond othar
Common shates
Addiuonat Other Totel
Noimber of Share pasd-in Treasury Sutbtotal Retaned compiehensive  Subiotal equity
shares share: earnings
) capital capilal neome
{nmillions af euros, except nunier of shares) fur thousands)
BALANCE AS DF DECEMBER 31, 216 1,287,088 70719 4238 {4731, 0844 9,004 164 8,768 19,612
| Attributebls fo Vivendi SA shareownsrs o L i | 1zeroes _nom 4238 CHp) asu 7.248 il a519| 19382
Attributable to poa-controlling interests - - - - - 255 127} 229 2%
|Contributions by/distributions to Vivendi SA shareewners 8971 L <] LilH] 145) 481} - (a81) (526}
Sales/lpurchases) of treasury shares - - - 1203} 1263} - - 1203)
Dadend paid an May 4, 2017 with raspect ta frscal year 2016 (60 40 per share) o, - - Lt - {484) {99
Capital increase | elated 1o share-based compensation plans 8871, 49 103 6" 158 18 18 78
of which employae Stock Porchase Plans {July 25, 2017} 4160 23 45 68 - - 2]
gxereise of STOCk-options by execuTive management and amployees 4811 78 58 B4 - - &4
Changon in Vivendi SA's ownership interast related to a combination of businesses under comman contral - - - - - (2,155 {65} {2,720} (22205
Acyuisition of Havas - 12,1551 (65t (2.220) {2.220)
|Changes in Vivendi SA's ownership intorest in its subsidiaries that do not resulitin a loss of control - - - - - L] - 4 4
CHANGES IN EQUETY ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDI SA SHAREOWNERS (A} 8971 L] 1 lLH] as| 263 {65) (2,897} {2,721
Contnbutions by/distiibutions to noi-controling Inferests ' 134} 34) 341
Changes in non-cantroling interests retated to a combunation of husinesses under common control (4} {4y 18) (8
Recagntion of Havas's non-contralling imnterests % {4} 5 15
Changes 1 non-controlling interests that result 1n a gan/lioss) of consrol - 15} ) @J
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TQ NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS {B) - - - L - [[x)] (4 un (47
Earmings 1,261 1,261 1,261
Charges and imcome dirgetly recognized in equity - 141} {165) {206} (206}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {C) - - - - - 1220 {165) 1,088 1,056
TOTAL CHANGES OVER THE PERIOD (A B+ L} asrn 49 183 229) 1,589, 1,734}
Attribytable to Vivend: SA shareowners . 8971 49 03 1197 45} 1,442 (2400 11.727)
Atinbutable to non-cantioliing intarests - - -] 13 & 7
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 - AS PUBLISHED 1206058 A% 4341 {60) 10,799 L 5549 538 12,878
Artributablo 1o Vivendi SA shergownars . L - 1206085 71 A3 7) 10793 6306 2 17,656
Atributable to non controlling interasts - - - - - 243 121 pro
Rostatementy relstod to the application of IFRS 75 with retrospective sffect - - - - - {12 - (12 112
Attributatie to Vrvends SA sharawrors o _ B - - - ir2) - f12) {12)
Aftrtbutatrie to non-contralting mierests - - , - -
IBALINCE AS OF DECEMBER 1. 217 - RESTATED 1,296,058 7128 4381 530 7,087 17,866
Attri te to Vivendi SA sharsowners o . | 1296059 A 4,341 L . )
Attributable to non-contrelling interests N - - [r1l] pr+4 prrd
The accompanying notes ace an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivendi is a limited liability company (socigté anonyme) incorporated under French law and subject to Frerch commercial company law
including the French Commerciai Code (Code de commerce) Viverdi was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or uriess its term is extended. Its registered office is located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Paris {France). Vivendi is listed on Euronext Paris (Compartment A}.

Vivendi is an integrated content, media and communications group. The comparny operates businesses throughout the media value chain,
from talent discovery to the creation, production and distribution of content. Universal Music Group is the world leader in music, engaged in
recorded music, music publishing and merchandising. It owns more than 50 labels covering all music genres. Canal+ Group is the leading
pay-TV operator in France, also engaged in Poland, Africa and Asia. Its subsidiary Studiocanal is a leading European player in the production,
sale and distribution of movies and TV series. Havas is one of the world's largest global communications group cavering all the
communications disciplines: creativity, media expertise and healthcare/wellness. Gameloft is one af the leading mobile game publishers in
the world, with 2 million games downloaded daily across all platforms. Vivendi Village brings together Vivendi Ticketing {in Europe and the
United States), the companies that own and manage all Paddington intellectual property rights {except for the publishing rights), as well as
live performance threugh Olympia Production, Festival Production and venues in Paris (L'Olympia and Théatre de L'CEuvre} and in Africa
{CanalCGlympia). New Initiatives groups together Dailymotion, one of the world's Jargest video content aggregation and distribution platforms,
as well as Vivendi Content, the new content creation unit, and Group Vivendi Africa {GVA), a subsidiary dedicated to the development of
ultra-high-speed Internet service in Africa.

The Censolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries {the “group”) together
with interests in equity affiliates. Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million.

On February 11, 2019, at a meeting held at the headguarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Audited Consotidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. They were reviewed by the Aucit Committee at its
meeting hetd on February 12, 2019 and the Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 14, 2018,

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 will be submitted to Vivendi's shareholders for approval at the
Annua! General Sharehalders’ Meeting to be heid on April 17, 2019.

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board (I1ASB) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2018.

Among the new IFRS standards and IFRIC interpratations, which applied from January 1, 2018, the main subjects for Vivendi relate to
financiaf instruments and revenues.

1.1.1 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments, which was issued by the IASB on July 24, 2014, endorsed by the EU on November 22, 2016 and published in
the Official Journal of the EU on November 29, 2016, applies mandatorily from January 1, 2018. Vivendi applied this standard with
retrospective effect from January 1, 2018,

IFRS 9 applies to all financial instruments and sets the principles governing the ciassification and measurement of financial assets and
liabilities, impairment for credit risk on financial assets {including impairment of trade receivables) and hedge accounting.

The main impacts for Vivendi on the accounting of financial instruments relates to the classification of financial assets. Thus, from
January 1, 2018, financial assets have been classified into the accounting categories “financial assets at amartized cost”, “financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income” and “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”,

This classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and on contractual terms enabling to determinge
whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI). The financial assets that contain an embedded derivative are
considered in their entirety to determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.
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For Vivendi, the main material impact of the application of this standard relates to the election of the accounting classification far the equity
portfolio, considering the removal of the “available-for-sale” category under which these interests were accounted for until
December 31, 2017:

» for certain equity securities, including Ubisoft, Vivendi elected to classify such securities into the category “fair value through profit
or loss”; the difference {€1,338 million) betweaen the carrying value as of December 31, 2017 and the purchase price was reclassified
from charges and income directly recognized in equity, to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, to retained eamnings. in
particutar, as part of the initial application of the IFRS 9 accounting standard, the cumulative unrealized capital gain as of December
31, 2017, relating to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft (1,160 million), was recorded as retained eamings as of January 1, 2018. Under
IAS 39, which was applicable until December 31, 2017, it would have been reported to profit or loss as part of the sale that occurred
during the first half of 2018 {please refer to Note 2.3}, and

» for pther equity securities, Vivendi elected to classify such securities into the category "fair value through other comprehensive
income not reclassified subseguently to profit or loss”; the difference {-€197 million) between the carrying value as of December 31.
2017 and the purchase price was reclassified from charges and income directly recognized in equity, to be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss, to charges and income directly recognized in equity, not to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The application of this standard has no other material impact on Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements. On January 1, 2018,
consolidated equity was adjusted to account for the cumulative impacts of the application of IFRS 9, For a description of these main impacts,
please refer to Nate 28. The comparative period in the notes 10 the consolidated financial statements, which were impacted by IFRS 9, is
presented as of January 1, 2018, to the extent applicable.

11.2  Revenues

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued by the IASB on May 28, 2014, endorsed by the EU on September 22, 2016,
published in the Official Journal of the EU on October 29, 2016, and applies mandatarily from January 1, 2018

Vivendi applied IFRS 15 retrospectively from January 1, 2017. The 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements, mainly the Statement of
Earnings, have been adjusted for comparison purposes. The main impacts for Vivendi of the application of IFRS 15 are not material on
Vivendi’s Consolidated Financial Statements and are detailed in Note 28.

IFRS 15 sets forth new principles in terms of revenue recognition (notably regarding the identification of performance obiigations and the
allocation of the transaction price for contracts involving multiple elements), and changes criteria for analyzing agent and principal
considerations, as well as the inclusion of variable consideration. The main point of attention for Vivendi relates to the accounting of
intetlectual property licensing revenues.

Intellectual property licensing (musical and avdiovisual works)

These licenses transfer to a customer either a right to use an entity's intellectua! property as it exists at the point in time at which the
license is granted {static license), or a right to access an entity’s intellectual property as it exists throughout the license period {dynamic
licensel.

Revenues are accounted for when the performance obligation promised in the contract is satisfied {static license) or over time as it is
satisfied (dynamic license), i.e., when the seller transfers the risks and rewards of the right to use/access the intellectual property and the
customer obtains control of the use/access of that license. Consequentiy, revenues from static licenses are recognized at the point in time
when the license is transferred, and the customer is able to use and benefit from the license. Revenues from dynamic licenses are accounted
for over time, over the license period from the date the customer is able to use and benefit from the license.

Analysis of the Agent/Principal relatienship in the sales transactions involving a third party

If the nature of the entity’s promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself, then the entity acts on its
own behalf and it is “principal” in the sale’s transaction: it accounts for revenue for the gross amount of consideration to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for the goods or services provided, and the commission due to the third-party as cost of revenues. If the entity
arranges for a third-party to provide the goods or services specified in the contract, then it recognizes as revenues, the net amount of
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods or services provided.

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.2.1  Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main line items presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affitiates, interest,
pravision for income taxes, net earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and net eamings. The Consolidated Statement of
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Earnings presents a subtotal of Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those
financing activities, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes).

The charges and income relating to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 1.2.3 and prasented in Note 5.

Changes in presentation of the Consclidated Statement of Earnings

To ensure the consistency of the presentation of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings with the one prepared by Bolloré Group,
which decided to fully consolidate Vivendi into its Consolidated Financial Statements as from April 26, 2017, Vivendi made the following
changes in presentation of its Consolidated Statement of Earnings as from January 1, 2017

+ when the companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence engage in operations that are similar in nature to the
group’s operations, income from equity affiliates is classified to “Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes”™ (EBIT); and

¢ the impacts related to financial investment operations, which were previously reported in “cther operating charges and income” in
EBIT, are reclassified to "other financial charges and income”. They include capital gains or losses cn the divestiture or depreciation
of equity affilistes and other financial investments.

Mareover, the impacts of transactions with sharecwners {except when directly recognized in equity), in particular the €240 miilion reversal of
reserve recorded as of December 31, 2016 relating to the Liberty Media litigation in the United States, continue to be recorded in EBIT.

In accordance with 1AS 1, Vivendi has applied these changes in presentation to all periods previously published.
122  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities is calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT. EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital. Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangihle assets.

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and eguipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affiliates). It also includes any cash flows arising from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries.

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings. cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as wal! as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums fram the early redemption of barrowings and the settlement of
derivative instruments. [t also includes cash flows from changes in pwnership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
(including increases in awnership interests).

1.23  Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivendi considers Adjusted Eamings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), income from operations, Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow
From Operations (CFFQ), non-GAAP measures, to be refevant indicators of the group's operating and financial performance.

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data. It enables Vivendi to compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance
is driven by the operating segmant’s organic growth or by acquisitions. To calculate EBITA, the accounting impact of the following items is
excluded from the income from EBIT:

= the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations;

» impairment fosses on goodwill and other intangibies acquired through business combinations;

» income from equity affiliates having similar operating activities; and

« other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners, which include gains and losses recognized in business

combinations, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control in a business.
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Income from operations

Vivendi considers income from operations, a non-GAAP measure, t¢ be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating
segments as reported in the segment data. As defined by Vivendi, income from operations is caiculated as EBITA, before share-based
compensation costs related to equity-settled plans and cash-settled plans, and special items due to their unusual rature or particular
significance.

Adjusted net income

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance. Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it provides a better illustration of the underlying performance of
continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and non-operating items. Adjusted net income includes the following items:

o EBITA**};

« income from equity affiliates (*};

« interest (*), equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned en cash and cash equivalents;

+ income from investments {*}, incfuding dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies; and

» taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items.

It does not include the following items:

« amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**) as well as impairment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations (*} {(**);

« other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners (*), as defined above;

= ather financial charges and income {*}, equal to capital gains or losses related to divestitures, or the depreciation of equity affiliates
and other financial investments, the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the termination or change
in value of financial liabilities, which primarily include changes in the fair value of derivative instruments, premiums from the early
redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of issuing or cancelling credit facilities, the cash
impact of foreign exchange transactions (other than those related to operating activities, included in EBIT), as well as the effect of
undiscounting assets and iiabilities, and the financial components of employee benefits (interest cost and expected return on plan
assets);

» garnings from discontinued operations {*); and

» provisions fer income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-contralling interests and non-recurring tax items {notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA's tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabilities relating to risks extinguished over the period).

(™) ftems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, (**) ltems as reported by each operating segment as reported in the
segment data.

Cash Flow From Dperations (CFFQ)

Vivendi considers cash flow from operations (CFF)J, a non-GAAP measure, to he a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance. The CFFQ includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies. It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of praceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

The difference between CFFO and net cash provided by opesating activities consists of dividends received from equity affiliates and
unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net (which are included in net cash used for investing activities), income tax paid, net
and net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations, which are excluded from CFFO

1.24  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Assets and liabilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity's normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recerded as current assets or liabilities. If their maturity exceeds this periad, they are recorded as non-current

assets or liabilities. Moreover, certain reclassifications were made to the 2017 and 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to
the presentation of the 2018 and 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.3 Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFAS principies, the Consclidated Financial Statements have heen prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities, for which IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures applies. Relevant
categories are detailed below.

The Consolidated Financial Statements inciude the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidianies after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions. Vivendi has a December 31* year-end. Subsidiaries that do not have a December 31% year-end grepare interim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months preceding Cecember 317,

Acquired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition.
1.31  Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management tp make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic. Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivendi
Managament, based in particular on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings.

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of:

« revenue: estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees (please refer to Note 1.3.4);

» provisions: risk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead to a risk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 16);

+ employee benefits: assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and the inflation rate {please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 17);

* share-based compensation: assumptions are updated annualty, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield {please refer to Notes 1.3.10 and 18);

+ deferred taxes: estimates used for the recognition of deferrad tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1.3.9 and 6);

« goodwill and other intangible assets: valuaticn methods used to identify intangible assets acquired through business combinations
{please refer to Note 1.3.5.2);

» goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress: assumptions relating to impairment tests performed
on each of the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates are updated annually {please refer to
Notes 1.3.57 and 9};

» UMG content assets: estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who received advances are racognized in the Statement of
Financial Position {piease refer to Notes 1.3.5.3 and 10); and

» certain financial instruments: valuation method at fair value defined according to the three following classification fevels (please
refer to Notes 1.3.6.8,1.3.7,12, 14 and 19);

- Level 1: fair value measurement based on quotad prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices included under Level 1}; and
- Level 3: fair value measurement based on valuation techniques using inputs for the asset ar fiability that are not based on
observable market data,
The fair value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable is a reasonable
estimate of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments.

132  Principles of consolidation

For a list of Vivendi’s major subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities, please refer to Note 24.
Consolidation

All companies in which Vivendi has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to govern financial and operational policies
to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated.

Control as defined by IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements is based on the three criteria below to be fulfilled cumulatively to assess
if the parent company exercises control:

« aparent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, i.e., the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns. Power may arise from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual arrangements. Voting rights must be substantial, i.e., exercisable at any time
without limitation, particularly during decision making processes related to significant activities. Assessment of the exercise of
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power depends on the nature of the subsidiary's relevant activities, the internal decision-making process, and the allocation of rights
amang the subsidiary’s other shareowners;

» the parent company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary’s performance. The concept of retumns is broadly defined and inciudes, among other things, dividends and other
egonomic benefit distributions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business synergies,
and

e the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns. Exercising power without having any impact on returas
does not qualify as control.

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as if the group was a single econcmic entity with two categories of owners:
{i} the owners of the parent company {Vivendi SA shareowners) and {ii) the owners of nan-controlling interests (minority shareholders of the
subsidiaries). A non-controlling interest is defined as the interest in a subsidiary that is not atiributable, whether directly or indirectly, to a
parent company. As a result, changes tc a parent company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in & loss of control only
impact equity, as control of the economic entity does nat change. Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a
consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-
controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributabie to Vivendi SA shareowners. Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved
in stages or a loss of control gives rise to profit or loss in the statement of earnings.

Accounting for joint arrangements
IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement.

In & joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement. An entity that
is a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives al! the parties or a group of the parties contrg? of the
arrangement colfectively. Once it has beer established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
controt exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimcus consent of the parties that collectively contral the
arrangement.

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories:
< joint operations: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Those parties are called joint operators. A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of whoily-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenuss of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly; and

« joint ventures: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Those parties are called joint venturers. Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 — lnvestments in
Associates and Joint Ventures |please refer below).

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivendi exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method.

Significant influence is deemed to exist when Vivendi holds, whether directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the vating rights in an entity
unless it can be clearly established that Vivendi does not exercise a significant influence. Significant influence can be evidenced through
other criteria, such as representation on the entity's beard of directors or equivalent governing bady, participaticn in policy-making of
financial and operational processes, material transactions with the entity or the interchange of managerial personne!.

1.3.3  Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in mitlions of euros. The functional currency of Vivendi SA and the presentation
currency of the group is the euro.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functionai currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the closing date, fareign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity’s functionai currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date. AN fareign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrewings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity. These differences are allocated directly
to charges and income directly recegnized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment.
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Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, ;oint ventures or other agsociated entities for
which the functional currency is not the euro are translated into euros as follows: the Censolidated Statement of Financial Position is
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consolidated Statement of Eamings ard the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows are translated using average monthiy exchange rates for the period. The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as
foreign currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity. In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi elected to
reverse the accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004. These foreign currency
transiation differences resulted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use foreign currencies as their
functional currencies. Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associates whose functional currency is not the euro.

1.34  Revenues and associated costs

Revenues from contracts with custemers are recorded when performance obligations promised in the contract are satisfied, and for an
amount for which it is highly probable that a significant reversai in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. Revenues
are reported net of discounts.

1.3.4.1 Universal Music Group {UMG}

Recorded Music

The sales of recorded music {physical, digital downloading or streaming) are intellectual property licenses granted by UMG to distributors or
digital platforms and which give them certain rights over the company’s musical works. In its relationship with the distributor/digital
platform and the end customer, UMG cannct be “principal”, as the distributor or the digital platform is responsible for setting the transfer of
control conditions af the right of use granted by the license to the end customer (broadcasting, price setting and conditions for resalling the
physical devices).

Physical sales of recorded music (CDs, DVDs and Vinyls)

These intellectual property licenses are static licenses transferring to the customer a right to use UMG's recordings as they exist at the point
in time at which the license is granted, i.e., on the physical device sold.

Revenues from the physical sales of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1.3.4.5) and rebates, if any,
are accounted for, either: {i) upon the sale to the distributor, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB) or on delivery for
products sold free on destination; or (i} upon the sale to the final customer for consignment sales.

Digital sales of recorded music, via downloading or streaming by subscription or free of charge

These intellectual propesty licenses are generally dynamic licenses providing a right to access the entire catalog of recorded music as it
exists throughout the license period considering potential add-ons to, or withdrawals from, the catalog during that period.

The consideration paid by the digital ptatform is variable in the form of 3 sales-based or a usage-based royalty. Revenues are then accounted
for when these subsequent sales or usages occur. Revenues from digital sales of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate,
and reliable data from digital platforms, are recognized at the end of the month in which the sale or usage is made by the end customer. If
such data is not available, revenues are recognized when the digital platform notifies UMG of the sale or usage by the end customer.

For digitai sales of recorded music streaming by subscription or free of charge, certain contracts may include a non-refundable minimum
guarantee which is generally recoupable and is in substance an advance payment. {n the case of a dynamic license, the minimum guarantee
is spread over the pericd to which it relates to and takes into account the amount of royalties that is actually recoupable. The minimum
guarantee is hence apportioned in accordance with the acceunting for these royalties.

Music publishing

Music publishing refates to the use by a third party of the copyrights on musical warks owned or administered by UMG, which are
intellectual property licenses that UMG grant to the third party and which provides a right to access a catalog of recorded music, as these
intellectual proparty licenses are dynamic licenses.

The consideration paid by the third-party, notably a collection society (e.g., company for the collective management of intellectual-property
rights} is variable in the form of a royalty based on the usage by the third party. The vanable consideration being accounted for when these
subsequent usages occur, revenues fram music publishing are accounted for when the collection society notifies UMG of the usage ty the
end customer and collectability is assured.
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Merchandising

Revenues from merchandising are recognized either upon sale to the end customer, from direct sales during touring, concessions and over
the internet; an delivery for sales by a third-party distributar, when e contract is signed, or when an invaice has been issued and the
collectahility is assured for sales of rights attached to merchandising products.

1.3.42 Canal+ Group

Terrestrial, satellite or ADSL television subseription services
Suliscrigtion to programs

Each subscription to a contract for pay-tv services is considered as a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and that have
the same pattern of transfer to the customer. The provision of set-top boxes, digital cards and access fees do not represent distinct services
or goods, and they are combined with the subscription service as a single performance obligation satisfied over time, as the customer
simultaneously receives and cansumes the benefits providedt by Canal+ Group's performance as the pay-tv services are supplied. In its
relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group acts as “principal” in the transaction with the end customer
for the self-distributian contracts as it is respansible for the activation of the subscription of the end customer and for setting the selling
price.

Revenues, net of potential gratuities granted, are then accounted for over the period the service is provided from the activation date of the
subscription and as the service is provided.
Video-gn-demand and television-on-demand services

The video-on-demand service, which aliows custamers to have unlimited access to a catalog of programs through streaming and the
television-on-demand service, and through providing access to one-time programs by downloading or streaming, are distinct services from
the subscription service, In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group is not “principal”, as the third-
party distributar is responsible for the performance of the service both technically and commercially.

The video-cn-demand service is a performance obligation which is satisfied over time, and the revenues are accounted for over the period it
is provided to the customer. The television-on-demand service is a performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, and the revenues are
accounted for when the content is available for broadcasting.

Sales of advertising spaces

These are sales of television advertising spaces (in the form of classic TV commercials and of partnerships for shows or events) or
advertising spaces on the website {videos and advertisirg basimers).

Pay and free-to-air television

In regard to commercials, the distinct performance obligation is the reach of a gross rating point which generally cemprises a set of
advertising messages aimed at a specific target audience and satisfied over time. Revenues from these sales, net of rebates if any, are
accounted for over the period of the advertising campaign, generally because the advertising commercials are broadcasted considering
potential free periods granted.

Wabsite

Each type of advertising impression {advertising display) represents a distinct performance obligation, because the advertiser can benefit
separately from each type of advertising imprint, satisfied at a point in time. Revenues from the sale of advertising spaces on the website,
net of rebates, if any, are accounted for when the advertising imprints are produced, i.e., when the advertisements are broadcasted on the
website.

Film and television programs
Physical sales of movies (DVDs and Blu-rays}
Please refer to the section an physical sales of recorded music (CDs, DVDs and Vinyls) at UMG.

Sales of exploitation rights of audiovisual works

These sales are inteliectual property licenses granied by Canal+ Group to broadcasters or to distributors and which give them certain rights
over its audiovisual works. These licenses are static licenses because they transfer a right to use the films as they exist at the point in time
at which the licenses are granted. in its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group is not “principal” in
the transaction with the end customer, as the distributor is responsible for the delivery of the film and for the price setting to the end
customer.
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Revenues from the sale of the exploitation rights are recorded from the moment the client is able to use it and obtain the remaining benefits.
When the consideration paid by the customer is a fixed price, revenues from the sales of exploitation rights are recorded from the latest of
the delivery and the cpening of the exploitation window set contractually or legatly (refer to the media chronology in France). When the
considaration paid by the customer is variable in the form of & sales-based royalty to the end customer, revenues are recognized as the
subsequent sale ocours.

1343 Havas

Revenues from Havas derive substantially from fees and commissions for its activities:
« Creative: advice and services provided in the fields of communications and media strategy, and
» Media: planning and purchase of adveartising spaces.

For each sale's transaction, Havas identifies if it acts as “principal” or not, based on its level of responsibility in the execution of the
performance obligation, the control of the inventory and the price setting. Revenues are then recognized, net of costs incurred for production
when Havas does not act as “principal”.

When Havas acts as “principal”, certain pass-through costs rebilled to customers, which were deducted from revenues in accordance with
IAS 18 (applicable until December 31, 2017), are now recorded as revenues and as costs of revenues in accordance with IFRS 15. Given that
these pass-through costs are not included in the measurement of the operating performance, Havas decided to use a new indicator, “net
revenues”, corresponding to revenues less these pass-through costs rebilled to customers.

Commissions are accounted for at a point in time, at the date the service is performed or at the date the media is aired or published.

Fees are accounted for as revenues as per the following:
« one-off or project fees are recognized at the point in time when the service is performed. If these fees include a gualitative aspect,
they are result is assessed by the client at the end of the project; and
+ fixed fees are generally recognized aver time on a straight-line basis reflecting the expected duraticn of the service; fees based on
time spent are recognized as work is performed.

Certain contractual arrangements with clients also include performance incentives pursuant to which Havas is entitled to receive additicnal
payments based upon its performance for the client, measured against specified gualitative and quantitative objectives. Havas recognizes
the incentive portion of the revenue under these contractual arrangements when it is considered highly probable that the qualitative and
quantitative goats are achieved in accordance with the arrangaments.

1344 Gameioft

Digital sales of video games on mobile devices

The gaming experience sold by Gameloft is composed of a license to use a video game on mobile devices {which can be pre-set on the
mobile terminal), and, if any, adds-in, which allows the player to progress in the video game {virtual elements, time-limited events and multi-
player functionality).

The grant of a video game to an end customer through a third-party distributor, digital platform, telecom operator or mabile device
manufacturer, as well as the virtual elements acquired in the video game, the time-limited events and the multi-player functionality,
represent a single performance cbligation in the form of an intellectual property license granted by Gameloft to third-party distributors.

These licenses are static because they transfer a right to use the video game as it exists at the paint in time at which the license is granted,
as Gameloft has no obligation to update the video game. In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Gameloft
acts as “principal” in the transaction with the end customer, when Gameloft is responsible for providing the video game license and for
setting the price to the end customer.

The consideration paid by the third-party distributor is variable in the form of a sales-based royalty. Revenues are then accounted for when
the subseguent sale occurs.
Sales of advertising spaces in video games, in the form of videos and advertising banners

The advertising dispiay in a video game is an advertising impression corresponding to a distinct performance obligation, as the advertiser can
benefit separately from each type of advertising impression, satisfied at a point in time.

Revenuas from the sale of advertising spaces in video games, net of rebates if any, are then accounted for when the advertising impressions
are produced, i.e., when the advertisements are published. When the sale is made by a third party {media agency or auction platform),
Gameloft is generally “principal” in the sale’s transaction with the advertiser, notably when Gameloft is resporsible for technically supplying
the advertising impression, as well as for setting the price.
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1345 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors. The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to fina
customers.

Selling, general and administrative expenses grimarily include salaries and empioyee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance cests, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, piovisions for receivables and other operating
@XpENnSES.

Advertising costs are sxpensed when ingurred.

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues. However, cooperative advertising at UMG
is treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit is individualized and can be estimated.

135  Assets
1.35.1 Capitalized financial interest

When appropriate, Vivendi capitalizes financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition period of intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, these interests being included in the cost of qualifying assets.

1.3.52 Goodwill and hisiness combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method. Under this method, upon the initiaf consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control:
« the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acguisition date; and
» non-contraliing interests are measured either at fair value or at the nan-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets. This option is available on a transaction-by-transaction hasis.

On the acquisition date, goodwill is initiatly measured as the difference between:
(i) the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree ard, in a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and
{ii) the net fair value of the identifiahin assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair vaiua results in an increase in geodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill”. The purchase price allacation shall be performed within 12 manths after the
acquisition date. If goodwilt is negative, it is recognized in the Statement of Eamings. Subsequent to the acguisition date, goodwill is
measured at its initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1.3.5.7 below).

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinattons:

= on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination;

e contingent consideration in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
accurring after the purchase price allocation period is recognized in the Statements of Earnings;

» acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred;

» in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivend recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a ¢hange in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners; and

» goodwill i$ not amortized.

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivendi elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004. IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method. Howevar, its provisions differed fram those of its tevised standard in respect of the
main following items:
« minority interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquireg’s net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value;
= contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only if the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured;
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s transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition: costs; and
s inthe gvent of the acquisiticn of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill.

1.35.3 Content assets

UMG

Royalty advances to artists, sengwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularity and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conciude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable to
them is reasonabiy assured. Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher. Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties is expensed during the period
in which the lass becomes evident. These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues.

Royalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the period during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns.

Change in estimate

Music rights and catalogs include music catatogs, artists’ contracts and music publishing rights acquired through business combinations. The
annual review of the value of the intangible assets, undertaken by Vivendi at year-end 2016 led to a change in the amortization method of
music rights and catalogs as from January 1, 2017, which notably resulted in an exiension of the amortization period fram 15 to 20 years. As
part of this review, Vivendi concluded that the value of music rights and catalogs had increased and that the useful life was longer than
previously estimated, given recent changes in the outlook for the international music market, driven in particular by the develcpment of
subscription streaming services. In 2017, the impact over the period of this forward-tooking change in estimate on the amortization expense
amounted to €34 million (net of deferred taxes).

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting rights, the rights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments. They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows:
« film and television broadcasting rights are recognized at their acguisition cost when the program is available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period;
= sports broadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting pericd of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast; and
« expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights is included in cost of revenues.

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquired to be sold to third parties

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquired before their initial exhibition to be sold to third parties, are recorded as a content
asset at capitalized cost (mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisttion cost. The cost of theatrical films and television
rights are amortized, and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue methed (i.e., hased on the ratio of the current
pericd’s gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis). Vivendi considers that
amortization pursuant to the estimated revenue methad reflects the rate &t which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits
related to the asset, and there is a high correlation between revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the
intangible assets.

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis.

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs comprise film rights acquired fer a second television screening, or produced or acquired fi'm and television rights that are sold to
third parties after their first television screening (i.e., after their first broadcast on a free terrestrial channel). They are recognized as an asset
at their acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method.
1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred. Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particuiar, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain.
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Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the devalopment of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage. Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing. Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resufting in additional functionality are also capitalized.
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years. Maintenance, minor upgrades, and enhancement costs are expensed as they are
incurred.

Cost of developing video games

Devefopment costs of video games are capitalized when both the technical feasibility and the management’s intention to camplete the game
so that it will be available for use and sale are verified, and when the recoverability is reasonably assured. Because of the uncertainty that
exists regarding those criteria, the recognition requirements of 1AS 38 are usually not met until the game s launched. Therefore, costs of
developing mobile games are expensed as incurred,

1355 Other intangible assets

Intangibie assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date. The historical cost model is applied o intangible assets after they have been recognized,
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test. Amortization is accrued for assets with a
finite useful {ife. Usefut life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Other intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses. By contrast, music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and
market shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets.

1356 Property, plant and eguipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attributable to transporting ar asset ta its physical location and preparing it for
its operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation
of the physical location resulting from the incurred obligation.

When property, piant and equipment inciude significant comporents with different usefui lives, they are recorded and amortized separately.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets. Useful lives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reperting period and are as follows:

« buildings: 5 to 40 years,

+ equipment and machinery: 3 to 8 years;

¢ set-top boxes: 510 7 years; and

+ other 2 to 10 years.

Assets fmanced by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future lease payments and the market value and
the related debt is recorded as "Borrowings and other financial liabilities”. In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful life, torresponding to the duration applicable to praperty, plant and equipment in the same categery. Amortization
expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amoartization expenses.

After initial recognition, the cost mode! is applied to property, plant and equipment,

Vivendi has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004.

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains # lease, which mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group satellite capacity, which are commercial
service agreements that, in general, do not convey a right to use a specific asset. Contract costs under these agresments are consequently
expensed as operational costs for the period.

1.35.7 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate a risk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, and assets in progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets. In addition, in accordance with appiicable accounting
standards, goodwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets in progress are all subjsct to an annual
impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of sach fiscal year. This impairment test is performed to compare the recoverable amount of
each Cash Generating Unit [CGU) or, if necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including goodwill). A
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CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. Vivendi operates through different media and content businesses. Each business offers different products and
services that are marketed through various channels. CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group
operating segments. For a description of Vivendi's CGUs and groups of CGUs, please refer to Note 9.

The recoverable amount is determined fos each individual asset as the higher of: (i) its value in use; and {ii} its fair value {less costs to sell} as
described heresftes. If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the group of assets. In particular, an impairment test of goodwill is performed by Vivendi for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the tevel at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations,

The value in use of each asset or group of assets is determined, subject to exceptions, as the discounted value of future cash flows
{Discounted Cash Flow method (DCF)) by using cash flow projecticns consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent
forecasts prepared by the operating segments.

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the time vatue of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets.

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates.

The fair value (fess costs to sell) is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell. These values are generaliy determined on the basis of market data
(stock market prices or comparison with similar listed companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent
transactions) or, in the absence of such data, on the basis of discontinued cash flows.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying value cf an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the differance is
recognized in EBIT. In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss is first recorded against goadwill.

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets {other than goodwill) may be reversed in
a later period if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previously recognized.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwili cannot be reversed at a later date.

1.35.8 Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value carresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, which is best evidenced by the
acquisition cost {including associated acquisition costs, if any). Thereafter, financial assets are measured at fair value or at amortized cost
depending on which financial asset category they belong to.

From January 1, 2018, financial assets are classified into the accounting categories “financial assets at amortized cost”, "financial assets at
fair value through other compyehensive income” and “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™.

This classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and on contractual terms enabling to determine
whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPY. The financial assets that contain an embedded derivative should
be considered in full to determine whether their cash flows are SFPI.

Financial assets at fair value

These include financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments with a positive value
(please refer to Note 1.3.7) and other financial assets measured at fair value threugh profit or loss. Most of these financial assets are
actively traded in organized financial markets, as their fair vatue is calcuiated by reference to the published market price at the period end.
Fair value is estimated for financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market. As a last resort, when a reliable
estimate of fair value cannot be made using valuation technigues in the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at
historical cost, iess any impairment losses.

Finarcial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income include:

* Unconsolidated companies that are not held for trading: Vivendi elected to classify these into the category “fair value through
other comprehensive income”. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognized in charges and income directly recognized in equity until the firancial asset is soid. collected or remaoved from the
Statement of Financial Position in another way, at which time the accumulated gain or toss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity is transferred to retained earnings and never reclassified te profit or toss. Dividends and
interest received frem unconsolidated companies are recognized in profit or loss.
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*  Debt instruments held within a business mode! whose ebjective is achieved by both callecting cantractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and whase contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in charges and income directly recognized in equity until the financial asset is sold, collected
or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in other ways, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported
in charges and income directly recognized in equity is expensed in other financial charges and income.

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivendi intends to sell in
the near future (primarily marketable securities) and other financial assets uniess it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
ather comprehensive income. Unrealized gaing and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and income.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of debt instruments heid within a business modef whose objective is to hofd financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At the end of each
period, these assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable
amount (equal to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s initial effective interest rate), is
recognized in prefit or (oss. impairment losses may be reversed if the recoverabie amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future.

Impairment of financial assets

Vivendi assesses the expected credit [oss associated with its financial assets recognized at amortized cost and debt instrument recognized at
fair value through other comprehensive income on a prospective basis. A loss allowance for expected credit loss based on probability of
default is recognized at initial recognition. The loss allowance is updated for changes in these expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

To assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, Vivendi compares the credit risk at the reporting date with the credit
risk at the date of initial recognition based on reasonabie forward-looking infarmation and events, including credit ratings if available,
significant adverse economic changes (actua! ar expected), financiat or business enviranment that are expected to result in a material change
in the borrower's ability to mest its obligations.

The definition of default and write off policy are defined specifically within each operating entity.
1.359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs. These are usually calculated using the weighted average cost methed. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the normal course of business, less estimated campletion costs and seiling casts.

1.3.5.10 Trade accounts receivahle

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair vatue, which is generally equal to their nominal value. Expected loss rates on trade
receivables are calculated by the relevant operating entities over their lifetime from initial recognition and are based on historical data that
also incorparates forward-looking information. In addition, account receivables from customers subject to insoivency proceedings or
customers with whom Vivendi is involved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full,

1.35.11 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivaients” category, defined in accordance with §AS 7, consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy ANC
and AMF position expectations expressed in November 2078, and ather highly liquid investments with initial maturities of generatly three
months or less. Investments in securities, investments with initial maturities of more than three months without an early termination option
and bank accounts subject to restrictions (blocked accounts), other than restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector
le.g., exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as financial assets. Moreover, the historical performances of the
investments are monitored reqularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting classification,

136  Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilities is held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its

divestiture and not by its continued utilization, To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture
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must be highty probable. These assets and (iabilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liakilities associated with assets held for
sale, without offset. The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value {net of
divestiture fees) and the carrying value (ie. at their cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses), and are no longer
depreciated.

An operation is qualified as discontinued when it represents a separate major line of business and the criteria for classification as an asset
held for sale have bean met or when Vivendi has sold the asset. Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operatians until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinued cperations. In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Fiows for the relevant periods.

137 Financial liahilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities inctude:
« bonds and credit facilities, as well as various other borrowings {including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and
related accrued interest;
« obligations arising cut of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests;
» bank overdrafts; and
» the negative value of other derivative financial instruments. Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing. Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently vatued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the internal yietd
rate that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrawing. In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded derivative
ie.g., an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument (e.g.. a convertible bond), the amortized cost is calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument. In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e.g., redemption
occurs earlier than initially expected), the amortized cost is adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows,
discounted at the initial effective interest rate.

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendi has committed to purchase the non-controlling interests of some of the minority shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidiaries.
These purchase commitments may be optional (e.q., put options) or mandatory (e.g., forward purchase contracts).

The following accounting treatment has been applied in respect of commitments made or: or after January 1, 2009:

« upor initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests is recognized as a financial Hability for the present
value of the purchase price under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset by the book value of nen-controlling
interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners;

« subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are reccgnized as a financial liability through an adjustment to equity
attributable to Yivendi SA shareowners; and

« upon maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed; if
the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilities is reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests.

Derivative financial instruments

Vivendi uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates. All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties. These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange cortracts. All these derivative financial instruments are used
for hedging purposes. At the inception of the hedging relationship there is the formal designation and documentation of the hedging
relationship and the entity’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Derivatives are inftially measured at fair value on the settlement date and are subsequently remeasured at fair value on each succeeding
reporting date. The recognition of subseqguent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument
and, if applicable, the nature of the hadged item and the type of hedging relationship designated. When these contracts qualify as hedges
for accounting purposes, gains and losses arising on these contracts are offset in earrings against the gains and losses relating to the
hedged item.
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When forward contracts are used as hedging instruments, Vivendi only qualifies as hedging instruments the change in the fair value of the
forward contract related to the variation of the spat exchange rate. Changes in the forward points are excluded from the hedging relationship
and are recognized in financial result.

Fair value hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value of an asset or a liability recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which is not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position, it is a fair value
hedge. The instrument is remeasured at fair value in earnings, with the gains or losses arising on remeasuremeant of the hedged portion of
the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, cr, as part of a forecasted transaction relating to 2 non-financiat asset
or liability, at the initiat cost of the asset or liability

Cash flow hedge

When the derivative financia} instrument hedges cash flows, it is a cash flow hedge. The hedging instrument is remeasured at fair value and
the portion of the gain or loss that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized through charges and income directly recognized in
equity, whereas its ineffective portion is recognized in earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liabitity,
they are recognized at the initial cost of the asset or liability. When the hedged item is realized, accumuiated gains and losses recognized in
equity are released to the Statement of Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item.

Net investment hedge

When the derivative finangial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, it is recognized in the same way as a cash flow
hedge. Derivative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting
gains and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement of the underlying instrument.

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editarial content rights (including sports, audiovisual and film rights) are recognized in
EBIT. In ali other cases, gains and losses arising on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recegnized in other financial charges
and income.

1.3.8 Other liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivendi has a legal obligation {statutary, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive abligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the obtigation can be reliahly estimated. Where the effect of the time value ol money is material,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
mongy. If the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estimated, no provision is recorded and a disclosure is made in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensians, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficiaries who meet the required conditions. Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and multi-employer plans, or defined benefit
pians, which are generally managed via group pension plans. The plan funding palicy implemented by the group is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations.

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year.
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various instruments such &s insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
securities, excluding Vivendi shares or debt instruments.

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. This
method is based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivendi until retirement,
expected changes in future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivendi maintains & pensian plan. The
assumptions adopted in 2017 and 2018, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 17. A provision is recarded
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in the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuarial value of the related benefits {actuarial liability) and the
fair value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuarial gains and losses.

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows:

¢ the service cost is included in selling, generat and administrative expenses. It comprises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized in profit and 1oss, and gains and losses on settlement;

« the financial compenent, recorded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retaired for the valuation of the henefit obligation; and

= the remeasurements of the net defined benefit fiability (asset), recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified to
profit and loss, mainly congist of actuarial gains and losses, i.e., changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
plan assets resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments {representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuarial assumptions applied te previous valuaticns and the effective impact).

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset is recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions.

Some cther post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage {mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuarial calculation comparabie to the method used for pensien provisions.

On January 1, 2004, n accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains and losses against consoiidated
equity.

1.39  Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax hase value of assets and liabilities and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give rise o temporary differences. Pursuant to the lishility method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of:
» deferred tax assets, when the tax base value is greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving); and
» deferred tax liabilities, when the tax base value is fower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset wiil be realized or the liability
settled, based on tax rates (and tax regulaticns) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date. They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in line with any changes in applicable tax rates.

Deterred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax toss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it is
probable that a taxabie profit will be avaiiable, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference is
generated by initiaf recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date.
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or loss.

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it is more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. When assessing the probability of a taxable
profit being available, account is taken, primarily, of prior years' results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to occur in the
future and the tax strategy. As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carried forward is to a large extent judgment-
based. If the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or
decrease the ¢arrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact cn the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Earnings of the group.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability results from gocdwill or
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, tax income or [oss.

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the fallowing conditions are satisfied: the parent, invester or venturer is able to
contro! the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earings, if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity.
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1.3.10 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders’ interests by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company’s performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several
share-based compensation plans (share purchase plans, performance share plans and banus share plans} or other equity instruments based
on the value of the Vivendi share price (stock aptions], which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash. Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares is
contingent upon the achisvement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date.

in addition, Daitymotian has set up 2 long-term incentive plan for certain key executives. This plan will be settled in cash and the value will
be derived from the growth of Dailymotion’s enterprise value.

Please refer to Note 18 for details of the features of these plans and for the status of the plans initially granted by Gameloft S.E. and by
Havas.

Share-hased compensation is recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This expense is spread over
the vesting period, i .e., three years for stock option plans and for performance share plans (two vears for performance shares granted before
June 24, 2014), and twe years for Vivendi’s bonus share plans, other than in specific cases.

Vivendi uses a hinomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments. This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate correspending to the risk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining empioyed within the group until the exercise of their rights.

However, depending on whether the instruments granted are equity-settied or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the expense will
differ:

Equity-settled instruments:
« the expected term of the aption granted is deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term;
« the value of the instruments granted is estimated and fixed at grant date; and
« the expense is recognized with a corresponding increase in equity.

Cash-settled instruments:

» the expected term of the instruments granted is deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument for
vested rights. and tc the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of the
instrument for unvested rights;

« the value of instruments granted is initially estimated at grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment
date and the expense is adjusted pro rata teking intc account the vested rights at each such reporting date,

» the expense is recognized as a provision; and

+ moreover, as plans settled in cash are primarily denominated in US doilars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate.

Share-based compensation cost is allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivaient
instruments granted to their managers and employees.

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivendi shares which are in the process
of vesting is reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

In accordance with RS 1, Vivendi elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004. Consequently, all share-based
compensation pians for which rights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with iFRS 2,

14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, nor-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directars and companies aver which the latter exercise exclusive control, joint
contral, or significant influence.

The transactions with subsidiaries over which the group exercises control are eliminated within the intersegment transactions (a list of the
group’s major consolidated entities is set out in Note 24). Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidiaries of the group, aggregated
in operating segments, are conducted on an arm's length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered by third
parties. The operating costs of Vivendi SA’s headquarters, after the ailocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses,
are included in the Corporate operating segment.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 56



Thursday February 14, 2019

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivendi ard its subsidiaries prepare detailed reports on all material contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent cbligations, for which they are jointly and severally liable. These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by serior manzgement on a regular basis. To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are carried out, including (but not limited to} the review of:
+ minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisary Board in respect
of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures;
« pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions;
« pending litigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels;
« tax examiner’s reports and, if applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years;
« insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted;
» related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments; and more generally
= major contracts and agreements.

16  New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS standards anc IFRIC interpretations issued by the iASB/IFRS IC as of the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statemants, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivendi has not elected for an earlier application, the main standard which may
have an impact on Vivend is IFRS 16 — Leases.

IFRS 16 was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016, endorsed by the EU on Octaber 31, 2017 and published in the Gfficiai Journal of the EU
an Noverber 9, 2017, and mandatorily applies for financial years commencing on or after January 1, 2019.

Licenses of intellectual property granted by a lessor and right held by a lessee under licensing agreement are not within the scope of
IFRS 16, Vivendi mainiy focused on the accounting of real estate leases contracts for which Vivendi is the lessee.

On a preliminary basis, Vivendi determined that the lease liability, estimated as of January 1, 2019 in accordance with IFRS 16, would
amount to approximately €1.3 billion, which does not include at this stage the potential impact of the consolidation of Editis as from
February 1, 2019, Assessment of the final impact of the application of IFRS 16 on the Statement of Earnings, the aggregate comprehensive
income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows {presentation}), and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements will be finalized during the year ended December 31, 2019.

Vivendi has applied IFRS 16 with retrospective effect from January 1. Z019 using the modified retrospective approach and without
restatement of the comparative periods in the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 2 Maijor events

21  Opening of Universal Music Group's share capital

The sale process for up to 50% of Universal Music Group's share capitat to one or more strategic partners is moving forward:
« corporate structure reorganization was completed at the end of 2018,
¢ launch of Vendor Due Diligence at the beginning of 2019; and

+ mestings were held with the pre-selected banks. The final selection of the financial advisors that will assist Vivendi in finding the
best partners for Universal Music Group should be completed in the coming weeks.

Afloor price will be set for the entry of partners into Universal Music Groug’s share capital.

22  Acquisition of Editis

Foilowing the share purchase agreement entered into on November 15, 2018 with the Spanish group Planeta, based on an enterprise value
of €900 million. on January 31, 2019, Vivendi completed the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Editis, the second-largest French-
language publishing group, representing an €833 million outflow, including the repayment of Editis’s debt, The French Competition Authority
had authorized the transaction unconditionally on January 2, 2019. Vivendi has fully consolidated £ditis since February 1, 2019.

Editis recorded revenues of approximately £750 million.

Vivendi and Editis share a recognized expertise in the development and management of rights to cultural works and share the same passion
for managing creativity and talent, This acquisition is a logical step in the building of a large content, media and communications group. It
alsc marks the return of this French publishing pewerhouse to a European group with a global reach.

Arnaud de Puyfontaine, chairman of Vivendi's Management Board, has taken on the additional rcle of Chairman of Editis's Board of
Directars. Pierre Conte has been confirmed as Chief Executive Officer.

Editis encompasses around 50 prestigious publishing houses (e.g., Nathan, Robert Laffont, Julliard, Plon, Belfond, Presses de la Cité, Pockst
or Solar). With a large portfolio of internationally-acclaimed authors, 4,000 new books published each year and a catalogue of mare than
45,000 titles, Editis employs 2,400 people and has leading positions in the fields of fiction, children’s books, non-fiction, graphic and
illustrated books, educational and reference books. Through its subsidiary Interforum, it is also a leader in book selling/distribution.

23 Sale of interest in Ubisoft

On March 20, 2018, Vivendi announced the sate of its entire 27.27% interest in Ubisoft (30,489,300 shares) at a price of €66 per share,
representing an aggregate amount of €2 hillion. This interest had been acquired by Vivendi over the past three years for €794 million.

In connection with this sale, Vivendi received €1,511 million on March 23, 2018 (sale of 22,898,391 shares) and €869 miliion on October 3,
2018 {sale of 1,040,909 shares}. The balance of the sale proceeds that remains to be received by Vivendi amounts to €429 miltion under the
forward sale of its remaining interest in Ubisoft (6,550,000 shares) which will occur on March 5, 2019. As of December 31, 2018, Vivend]
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, a receivable on share disposal for such amount of the forward sale.

Vivendi has given an undertaking to Ubisoft to sell all the shares it owns by March 7, 2019, the settlement date. In addition, Vivendi made
the commitment to refrain frem purchasing Ubisoft shares for a period of five years.

Vivendi realized & capita! gain of €1,213 million on the sale of the interest in Ubisoft on March 26, 2018. However, of this amount, only the
portion corresponding to the revaluation of the interast in 2018 (€53 million), was reccrded in the Statement of Eamings for the year ended
December 31, 2018, in accordance with the new IFAS 9 accounting standard, applicable since January 1, 2018. The remaining portion of the
capitai gain {£1,160 million} corresponded ta the revaluation of the intersst until December 31, 2017, which was recorded in “charges and
income directly recognized in equity” as of December 31, 2017, in accordance with the former IAS 39 acceunting standard, and reclassified
as retained earnings as of January 1, 2018, as part of the initial application of the IFRS 8, Under 1AS 39, which was appiicable until
December 31, 2017, it would have been reported to profit or loss as part of the sale that occurred during the first hatf of 2018.
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24  Sale of interestin Fnac Darty

On January 16, 2018, Vivendi entered into a hedging transaction to protect the value of its 11% interest in Fnac Darty. The hedge involved an
over-the-counter instrument combining a forward sale, based on a reference price of €81 per share and a share market loan. Vivendi had
retained the option to settle this transaction either in cash or in shares at maturity.

On July 2, 2018, Vivendi decided to settle the transaction in shares, which were delivered on July 10, 2018. On Juiy 12, 2018, Vivendi
received a cash payment of £267 million corresponding to the hedge price of €30.61 per share, after making an initial investment in May
2016 of £159 million, i.e., €54 per share.

Mr. Stéphane Roussel and Mr. Siman Gittham, members of Vivendi's Managemant Board, have agreed to remain membars of Fnac Darty's
Board of Directors.
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Note 3 Segment data

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of its husiness segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating performance indicators (segment earnings and cash flow from aperations). Income from operations and EBITA reflect the earnings
of each business segment.

The operating segments presented hersunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivendi's Management Board,

Vivendi's main businesses are aggregated within the following operating segments:

Universal Music Group: saie of recorded music {digital and physical). exploitation of music publishing rights, as well as artist
services and merchandising.

Canal+ Group: publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV and free-to-air channels in France, Peland, Africa and
Asia, as well as production, sales and distribution of movigs and TV series.

Havas: communications group covering all the communications disciplines {creativity, media expertise and healthcare/wellness).
Gameloft: creation and publishing of downioadable video games for mabile phones, tablets, triple-play boxes and smart TVs.

Vivendi Village: Vivendi Ticketing {in Europe and the United States through See Tickets, Digitick and Paylogic), the companies that
own and manage all Paddington intellectual property rights {except for the publishing rights), live performance through Glympia
Production, Festival Production, the venues in Paris [L'Olympia and Théatre de L'Euvre) and in Africa {CanalQOlympia), as well as
MyBastPro, which was sold on December 21, 2018.

New Initiatives: Dallymotion {video content aggregation and distribution platform), Vivend Content (new content creation unit) and
Group Vivend; Africa {development of ultra-high-speed Internet service in Africa).

Corporate: centrai services.

Intersegment commercial operations are cenducted on an arm's-length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties.

31

Main aggregates of the Statement of Earnings by operating segment

Revenues by activity

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 7018 2017
Intellectual property licensing 6,508 6.171
Subscription services 4,474 4,493
Advertising, merchandising and other 3,008 1,898
Elimination of intersegment transactions {58) (44}
Revenues 13,932 12,518

Revenues by geographic area

Revenues are sroken down by customer locaticn,

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros} 2018 2017

France 4,280 3% 4,402 35%
Rest of Europe 3282 24% 2,871 23%
Americas 4,395 31% 3527 28%
Asia/Oceania 1,373 0% 1178 10%
Africa 602 4% 540 4%
Revenues 13,932 100% 12,518 100%
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Main aggregates of the Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

fin millians of euros) 2018 2017
Revenues
Universal Music Group B.023 5673
Canal+ Group 5,166 5198
Havas 2319 1211
Gameloft 793 320
Vivendi Village 123 109
New Initiatives 66 51
Elimination of intersegment transactions {58) {44)
13,932 12,518
Income from operations
Universal Music Group 948 798
Canal+ Group 123 348
Havas 25 135
Gameloft 4 10
Yivendi Village {9) {6)
New Initiatives 79) (87
Corporate 110 {101}
1,429 1,098
Restructuring charges
Universal Music Group (29) (17}
Canal+ Group {28) {49}
Havas {30} (15)
Gamelofl 4 1]
Vivendi Village {2) {2)
New Initiatives {3 13)
Corporate {19 i
{115} {88)
Income/{charges) related to share-based compensation plans
Universal Music Group 4 (8
Canal+ Group {3 (6}
Havas 12 (3
Gameloft Z (5}
Vivendi Village - -
New Initiatives - -
Corporate 5] 8
(22} {31}
Other non-current operating charges and income
Universal Music Group {11} (11}
Canal+ Group 2 6
Havas {1 {6)
Gameloft - -
Vivendi Village 2 {100
New Initiatives 17} {2
Corporate 11 13
{14) {10)
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA}
Universal Music Group 802 761
Canal+ Group 400 300
Havas 215 1
Gameloft z 4
Vivendi Village {9} (18]
New Initiatives {99) {92
Corporate (123) {97}
1288 969
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Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from aperations

{in millions of euros}

EBIT {a)

Adjustments

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a}
Reversal of rasarve related to the Sscwrities Class Action litigation in the United States a)
Income from equity affiliates - operational {a}

EBITA

Adjustments

Restructuring charges (a)

Charges related to share-based compensation plans

(Other non-current operating charges and income

Income from operations

a. Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings.

32  Statement of Financial Position by operating segment

Segment assets and liabilities

{in mitlions of euros)
Segment assets (a)
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group
Havas
Gameloft
Vivendi Village
New tnitiatives
Corporate
of which investments in equity affiliates
listed equity securities {t)

Segment liehilities {c)
Uruversal Music Group
Canal+ Group

Havas

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives
Gorporate

&  Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, equity affiliates, financial

assets, inventories and trade accounts receivable, and other.

b.  The decrease in the amount of listed equity sacuritias mainly related to the sale of Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft {on March 20, 2018},
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Year ended December 31,

2018 2017

1,182 1,018
LN 122

2 2
- 127)

{7} {146}
1,288 969
115 88
22 3

14 10
1438 1098

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2018

8.715 8517
1624 7,636
5,301 5319
706 713
251 225
542 951
5,392 8,296
3,130 4,242
1.363 3751
29,531 31.252
4,320 3617
2451 2533
3678 3,761
70 n

167 139

70 B4

933 857
11,689 11,172

Fnac Darty (on July 10, 2018} and Telefonica (in November and December 2018): please refer to Notes 2 and 12.

¢ Segment liabilities include provisions, other non-current liabilities, and trade accounts payable and other.

Additional operating segment data is presented in the following Notes: Note 9 ”Goodwill” and Note 10 "Content assets and commitments”™,
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Segment assets by geographic area

{n millions of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018

France 10,050 34% 11,509 37%
Rest of Europe 8.911 30% 10,082 32%
Americas 9.487 32% 8,724 28%
Asia/Oceznia 812 3% 720 2%
Africa 21 1% 217 1%
Segment assets 29,531 100% 31,252 100%

Capex, depreciation and amortization

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017
Capital expenditures, net {capex net} {a)
Uriversal Music Group 110 63
Canal+ Group 166 144
Havas 38 21
Gameloft 6 6
Vivendi Village 7 "
New Initiatives 10 13
Corporate 4 1

kL 259
Increase in tangible and intanaible assets
Universal Music Group 127 73
Canal+ Group 192 138
Havas 37 21
Gameloft 6 7
Vivendi Village 7 15
New Initiatives 10 q
Corporate 1 1

380 264
Depraciation of tannible assets
Universal Music Group 46 53
Canal+ Group 133 154
Havas kil 20
Gameloft [ 8
Vivendi Village 4 2
Naw Initiatives [ 6
Corporate 1

234 243

Amortization of intangible assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group B -

Canal+ Group 72 6
Havas 8 4
Gameloft 1 1
Vivend Viilage - 13
New Initiatives 75 10
Corporate - -

106 94
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business comhbinations
Universal Music Group 80 84
Canal+ Group 16 12
Havas - 1
Gameloft 14 21
Vivend Village - 7
New Initiatives 1 ?
Corporate _

111 122
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Year ended December 31,
{inn millions of euras! 2018 207
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group _
Canal+ Group - ?
Havas . .
Gamgloft
Vivendi Village
New Initiatives 2
Corporate

2 2

a. Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

Note 4 EBIT

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

fin riltiens of euros) Note 2018 207
Safaries 2538 1,962
Social security and other employment charges h37 451
Capitalized personnel casts (16) (19)
Wages and expenses 3.059 2,398
Share-based compensation plans 18 22 31
Employee benefit plans 17 88 )
Other 52 3
Personne! costs 321 2,529
Annual average number of full-time eguivalent employees {in thousands) 416 321

Additional information on operating expenses
Advertising costs amounted to €371 million in 2018 {compared to €379 mitlion in 2017).

Fxpenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €102 million
in 2018 (compared ta £104 million ia 2017).

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €274 million in 2018 {compared to
€202 million in 2017). This increase of £72 million mainly resulted from the consolidation of Havas on July 3, 2017.

Research and development costs amounted to a net charge of €135 million in 2018 (compared to €154 milkion in 2017}

Taxes on production

Taxes on production amcunted to €318 million in 2018 (compared to €149 million in 2017), of which €33 million related to taxes on television
services {compared to £63 million in 2017).

Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest

{in millions of euros) Year ended Decermber 31,
{Charge)/ncome Note 2018 2017
Interest expense on burrowings {a) 18 {64) (63)
interest income from cash, cash equivalents and investmenis 17 15
Intarest {47} {53)
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facifities issued {2) {2

(49) {55}

a.  Included the annual coupor of the €700 million bond issued by Vivendi SA and maturing in December 2019 for £34 million in 2018 and in
2017 {please refer to Note 19.2),
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Other financial income and charges

Year ended December 31,

{in milliens of euros) Note 2018 2017
Capital gain on financial investments 377 (& 12
Effect of undiscounting assets (b) 18 5
Expected return on plan assets related to employes benefit plans 1772 1 10
Foreign exchange gain 10 7
Change in value of derivative instruments 2 8
Other - 1
Other financial income 418 3
Wiite-down of the Telecom Italia shares accounted for undar the equity method 112 {1,066) -
Downside adjustment on financial investments - (47)
Effect of undiscounting liabilities (b) Z0) 12}
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 177 {77} 224
Fees and premiums on borrowings and eredit facilities 1ssued {2} {2)
Foreign exchange Ioss {10) {9)
Other {56} {51)
Other financial charges {1,181) (143)
Net total {763) {100)

a  Other financial income included the revaluation between January 1 and December 31, 2018 of the interests in Spotify and Tencent
Music for an aggregate amount ¢f £312 million, as well as in Ubisoft for €53 miltion (please refer to Note 2.3), reported to profit or loss
in accordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018.

b In accordance with appiicable accounting standards, where the effect of the time value of money is material, assets and liabilities are
initially recorded in the Statement of Financial Position in an amount relating to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses. At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabtlities is adjusted to account for the passage
of time,

Note 6 Income taxes

6.1  French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and, up until Cecember 31, 2011 inclusive, it benefited from the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System pursuant to Article 208 guinguies of the French Tax Code. As from January 1, 2012, Vivendi SA benefits only from the
French Tax Group System.

« Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi is entitled to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses of the
French subsidiaries that are at feast 95% owned, directly or indirgctly, by it. As of December 31, 2018, this mainly applies to Universal
Music Group, Canal+ Group, Havas and Gameloft entities in France, as well as the companies involved in the group's development
projects in France (e.g., Vivendi Vitlage and Dailymotion).

e Up until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System enabled Vivendi to obtain a tax autherization. This allowed the
company to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned,
directly or indirectly, by it and that were also located in France or abroad. This authorization was granted for an initial five-year period -
from January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2008 - and was then renewed, on May 19, 2008, for a three-year period - from January 1, 2009 to
Decamber 31, 2011, As a reminder, on July B, 2011, Vivendi lodged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its
authgrization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year period - from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014.

+ In2011, pursuant to changes in French Tax Law, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was terminated as of September 8, 2011, and
the deduction for tax losses carried forward was capped at 60% of taxable income. Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carried
forward has been capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest limited to 85% of financial charges, net {reduced
further to 75% as from January 1, 2014).

The French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems have the following impact on the valuation of Vivendi's tax attributes {tax
losses, foreign tax receivables and tax credits carried forward):

« In 2012, Vivendi, considering that it was entitled to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System up until the end of the authorization
period granted by the French Ministry of Finance (i.e., until December 31, 2011), filed a contentious ¢laim far a £366 million refund in
respect of fiscal year 2011. In a decision dated Octeber 25, 2017, marking the end of legal proceedings brought before administrative
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courts, the French Council of State {Consel! d'Etat) 1ecognized that Vivendi had a legitimate expectation that it would be afforded the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for the entire period covered by the authorization, including for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011, Given that the power of final adjudication is vested in the French Councif of State and that its decision is not subject
to appeal, the amount of €366 mitlion paid to Vivendi, coupled with moratorium interest of €43 million, were definitively acquired by
Vivendi. As a result, Vivendi recorded a tax income of €409 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017

« Morecver, considering that Vivendi's foreign tax receivables available upon the exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System may
be carried forward after the end of the authorization period, Vivendi requested a refund of the tax paid in respect of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2612. On May 8, 2013, Vivendi received a refund of £201 million, which was subsequently chailenged by the tax
authorities in connection with a tax audit. Consequently, Vivendi provisioned €208 million for the assaciated risk in its Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, increasing the amount to €221 million as of December 31, 2013. In its Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained and increased this provision by €11 million (the amount of
additional default interest), totaling an amount of €232 million. This was subseguently decreased te €228 million as of December 31,
2015 after the deduction of ordinary tax credits. In connection with this audit, on March 31, 2015, Vivendi made a payment of
€321 million, relating to the €221 million and €11 million rmentioned above. This amount increased a further €89 million due ta additiona!
penalties.

« On June 79, 2015, after the tax audit was completed, Vivendi challenged the tax authorities in regard to the tax payment, the default
interest and the penalties, for which no provision had been accrued upon the recommendation of its advisars. Vivendi has since brought
this case before the Administrative Court of Montreuil. On March 16, 2017, the Administrative Court of Montreuil ruled in favor of
Vivendi, Pursuant to this decision, on April 18, 2017, Vivendi received (i} a €315 miltion refund relating to the principal tax amount dus in
2012 218 million), as well as default interest (€10 million) and additional penalties (€87 million), and (i) moratorium interest
{€31 million), which totaled €346 million. The Ministry appealed this decision with respect to the principal tax amount due; therefore, in
its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, Vivendi maintained the provision relating to the principal refund
{€218 million), the default interest (€10 million), and the maratorium intergst (€23 million), i.e., a total provision of £251 million. Given
that the Ministry’s appeal did not include penalties (€87 milfion). Vivendi recorded a tax income of €3 million in its Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2017, relating to the portion of moratorium interest irrevocably eamed by Vivendi, On November 22, 2018, the
Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal quashed the March 16, 2017 decision of the of the Administrative Court of Montreuil and
ordered Vivendi to pay the amount of the additional cantributions to which it was subiject far the year ended December 31, 2012.
However, it granted discharge of the default intarest charged to Vivendi. In its financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2018, Vivendi recorded a net income of due to the discharge of default interest (€10 million) and the corresponding
moratorium interest (€2 million}, reducing the total amount provisioned to £239 million (€218 million with respect to the principal amount
and €21 million with respect to moratorium interest). On December 31, 2018, Vivendi filed an appeal with the French Council of State
requesting the quashing of the decision of the Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal. On February 11, 2018, pursuant to a decision of
the Versaiiles Administrative Uourt of Appeal, Vivendi received d 1equest for repayment from the tax authorities in the amount nf
€239 million. Vivendi has 30 days to satisfy this request. Considering that the amount is provisioned in Vivendi's Financiai Statements,
this payment will have no impact on the Staterent of Earnings.

+ (OnJune 15, 2017, following the Administrative Court of Montreuil ruling of March 16, 2617, Vivendi made a claim for the repayment of
the tax amount due for the year ended December 31, 2015 (€203 million). Vivend! recorded & provision as of December 31, 2017 in the
amount of the refund requested (€203 mitlion) and maintained this provision in its Financiai Statements for the year ended December 31,
2018 pending the decision of the French Council of State { Conseil d ‘Etaty mentioned above.

» In the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, the tax results of the subsidiaries comprised within the scope of
Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System are calculated based on estimates. As a result, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31,
2018 could not be reliably determined. As of December 31, 2018, taking into account the impact of the estimated 2018 tax results and
before the effects of the ongoing tax audits an the amount of tax attributes (please refer to Note 6.5], it is anticipated that Vivendi SA
will likely be able to achieve €781 million in tax savings from tax attributes (based on the income tax rate applicable as of January 1,
2019, e, 32.02%). At a rate of 25.83% applicable in 2022, it is anticipated that Vivendi would achieve £630 miltion in tax savings from
tax attributes.

» Vivendi SA values its tax attributes on the basis of one year's forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget. On this basis, in
2019, it is anticipated that Vivendi will likely be able to achieve tax savings of €114 million from the French Tax Group System (based on
the income tax rate applicable in 2019, i.e., 32.02%).
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Pravision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area

Provision for income taxes

{in millions of euros) Year ended December 31,
(Charge)/Income 2018 2017
Current
France (16} 572 Ial
Rest of Europe {68} {37)
United States {98} (b {18}
Rest of the world {98} {87)
{280) 432
Deferred
France 12 116} (¢}
Rest of Europe {89) (d) -
United States {c) (11} fe 34 (e}
Rest of the world 11 ]
(717) (71
Provision for income taxes {357) 355
a. Included a current tax income of €409 million from litigation relating to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System of Z011, where
Vivendi SA secured a favorable settlement. It also included the current tax income of €243 million relating to the refund received by
Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries of the amounts paid in respect of the 3% tax on dividend distributions.
b. In2018, it included a federal tax charge which reflected the impact of the tax reform in the United States as from January 1, 2018.
¢. Included a deferred tax charge of -€106 million relating to the write-off of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward by
Havas in France.
d. Inaccordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 9, applicable since January 1, 2018, it included the deferred tax charge relating to
the revaluation through profit or loss of the interest in Spotify and Tencent Music for an aggregate amount of -€72 million.
e. Included a net deferred tax income of €79 million following changes in the federal corporate tax rate applicable in the United States as

from January 1, 2018.

The tax reform initiated in 2017 introduces significant changes in the calculation of the corporate tax in the United States. As from
January 1, 2018, the federal corporate tax rate has been reduced from 35% ¢o 21%. However, this rate reduction is accompanied Dy a
widening of the taxable base through the intreduction of a minimum tax on income earned in countries with low-tax rates {minimum tax
on global intangibie low-taxed income "GILTI") and the introduction of a tax mechanism expenditures that erode s the tax bases (base
erosion and anti-abuse tax "BEAT"). More generally, the new law limits the deduction of expenses previcusly deductible without
fimitation. The impacts of this new legislation recorded as of December 31, 2817 and December 31, 2018, reflect our best estimate
pending the publication of instructions commenting on this reform and clarification on the interpretation of certain previously issued
instructions. The amounts recorded wifl therefore be adjusted in 2019, particularly in the light of changes in our interpretations and
assumptions, as well as further clarifications or instructions from the US legislator or the US tax autherities.

Income tax paid

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2018 2017

France (76} 622 (a)

Rest of Europe (47) (20)

United States (43) {53}

Rest of the world (96) (78)

Income tax {paid/collected (262) Ll

a. Included an inflow of €346 million as part of the litigation settlement relating to foreign tax receivables utilized by Vivendi SA in fiscal

year 2012, as well as a €223 million inflow relating to the refurd to Vivendi SA of amounts paid in relation ta the 3% tax on dividend
distributions.
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6.3  Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,
(in millions of euros, except %) 2018 2017
Earnings {before non-controlling interests} 157 1,249
Eliminations
Income from equity affiliates 129) {146)
Earnings from discontinued operations - -
Provision for income taxes 357 {355}
Earnings {rom continuing operations hefore provision for income faxes 385 748
French statutory tax rate 34.43% 34.43%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate {133) (258)

Reconciliation of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes

Earnings tax rates differences 212 fa) 41
Impacts of the changes in tax rates {2) 89 o
Use ar recogrition of tax losses 22 178
Depreciation or non-recognition of tax losses {98) (258) (&)

Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and the Consolidated Glabal Profit

Tax Systems @ 3

Adjustments to tax expense from pravious years 8 9

Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial investments or businesses 18 -

Favorabie settlement of the litigation related to the Consolidated Globai Profit Tax System of 2011 - 408 (o)

3% tax on Vivendi SA's dividends - {8)

Refunds with respect to the 3% tax on dividends paid by Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries - 243 (&)

Write-down of the Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method {367} () -

Other {215) {93)

Provision for income taxes {357) 355

Effective tax rate 82.6% 47.5%

a.  Included for 2018, a favorable rate effect following the change in the federal corporate tax rate applicable in the United States. The tax
reform initiated in 2017 introduces significant changas in the calculation of the corporate tax in the United States. As from January 1,
2018, the federal corporate tax rate has been reduced from 35% to 21%. However, this rate reduction is accompanied by a widening of
the taxable base through the introduction of a minimum tax on income earned in countries with low-tax rates {minimum tax on globa!
intangible low-taxed incame "GILTI"} and the introduction of a tax mechanism expendilures that erade s the tax bases (base erosion and
anti-abuse tax "BEAT"). More generaliy, the new law limits the deductien of expenses previously deductibie without limitaticn. The
impacts of this new legislation recorded as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, reflect our best estimate pending the
publication of instructions commenting on this reform and clarification on the interpretation of certain previously issued instructions.
The amounts recorded will therefore be adjusted in 2019, particularly in the light of changes in our interpretations and assumptions, as
well as further clarifications or instructions fram the US legislator or the US tax authorities.

b. Included a net deferred tax income of €79 millian following changes in the federal corporate tax rate applicable in the United States as
from January 1, 2018.

¢.  Included a deferred tax charge of €119 million corresponding to the write-off of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carriad
torward by Havas, primarily in France.

d.  Related to a current tax income of €409 million, a result of the litigation relating to the Consolidated Giobal Profit Tax System of 2011,
where Vivendi SA secured favorable settlement (please refer to Note §.1).

e. Related to a current tax income of £243 mitlion from the refund to Yivendi and its subsidiaries of amounts paid in relation to the 3% tax
on dividend distributions (please refer to Note 6.5},

f. In 2018, the result inciuded the write-down of the value of the Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method, for

€1,066 mitfion, non-taxable.
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6.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net

Year ended December 31,

lin mitlions of euros) 2018 2017
Opening balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net 38 (@ 26
Consolidation of Havas - 106
Provision far income taxes {77} {77
Charges and income directly recorded in equity {13 7
(Other business combinations - 1Z7)
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other {26) 15
Ciosing balance of deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net {78) 36

a  Asof January 1, 2018, deferred tax assets included the impact of the restatements related to the application of IFRS 8 for +£2 million
iplease refer to Note 28.2).

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{ir millions of euras) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Deferred tax assets
Recogrizable deferred taxes

Tax attributes - Vivendi SA Tax Group (al {b) 781 875
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a}{c) 214 233
Tax attributes - Havas Group {a) (d) 274 315
Tax attributes - Other subsidiaries (a} 279 441
Other 693 589
Of which non-deductible provisions 14 94
employee benefits 159 186
working capital 177 156
Total gross deferred taxes 2241 2,453
Deferred faxes, unrecogmized
Tax attributes - Vivendi SA Tax Group {a) (b} (657} {755)
Taxattributes - US Tax Group {al {c) (214} {233}
Tax attributes - Havas Group (a) (d} (249} 1297}
Tax attributes - Other subsidiaries {a) {255} {396}
Other {181) {145)
Total deferred tax assets, unrecognized {1.,566) {1,826}
Recorded deferred tax assets 675 627

Deferred tax liabilities

Asset revaluations {g} (335} {340)
Other 418) (249)
Recorded deferred tax liabilities (753) (589)
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities), nat (78) 38

a  The amounts of tax attributes in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years. In jurisdictions which are significant
ta Vivendi, mainly France and the United States, tax retumns are filed or May 1 and September 15 at the iatest of the following year,
respectively. As a resuit, the amount of tax attributes shown in this table and the amount reported to tax authorities may differ, and if
necessary, may need to be adjusted in this table at the end of the following year.

b Related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group (please refer to
Note 6.1}, i.e., €781 million as of December 31, 2018 {compared to €875 million as of December 31, 2017}, in respect of tax tosses only,
taking into account the estimated impact (-£36 million) of 2018 transactions (taxable income and use or expiration of tax credits) and the
change in the income tax rate in France, which was reduced from 34.43% to 32.02% as from January 1, 2019 {-€58 million}, but before
taking into account the final contingent outcome of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 5.5). In France, tax losses can be carried
forward indefinitely and Vivendi considers that the foreign tax receivables can be carried forward for @ minimum period of five years
upon exit from the Consclidated Global Profit Tax System.
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¢ Primarily related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax credits carried forward by Universal Music Group, Inc. in the
United States as head of the US Tax Group, i.e., $244 million as of December 31, 2018 {compared tc $278 million as of December 31,
2017}, taking into account the estimated impact (-$34 milfion) of 2018 transactions, but before taking into account the final contingent
outcome of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6.5}, The cumuiative ameunt of ordinary tax losses carried forward by the group in
the United States was fully consumed as of December 31, 2017.

d  Asof December 31, 2017, Havas recorded a deferred tax charge of -€119 miilion from the write-coff of deferred tax assets reiating 1o tax
losses carried forward, primarily in France. Havas SA’s Tax Group ended on December 31, 2017. As from January 1, 2018, Havas SA and
its subsidiaries located in France have been included in Vivendi SA's Tax Group.

e These tax liabifities, stemming from asset revaluations and resulting from the purchase price allocation of entities acquired by the
group, are cancelled upon amartization or divestiture of the related assets and do not and will not generate any current tax liabilities,

6.5  Tax litigation

In the normal course of business, Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries are subject 1o tax audits by the relevant tax authorities in the countries in
which they conduct or have conducted business. Varigus tax autherities have proposed adjustments to the financial results filed by Vivendi
and its subsidiaries for fiscal year 2017 and prior years, under statutes of limitation applicable to Vivend! and its subsidiaries. The potential
charges that may result from these audits give rise to provisions to the extent that they are considered probable and quantifiable. Regarding
ongoing tax audits, no provision is recorded where the impact which may result from an unfavorable outcome cannot be reliably assessed. To
date, Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits are unlikely to have a material impact on the group’s financial position or liquidity.

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Giobal Profit Tax System, the tax audit for fiscai years 2006, 2007, 2008, 7009 and 7010
is still ongoing, as are the tax audits for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, relating to Vivendi SA or its tax group. Under these audits, the tax
authorities challenged Vivendi's right to use its foreign tax receivabies for the payment of its 2012 tax obligation year. Similarly, Vivendi
requested the reimbursement of its 2015 tax payment by contentious claim, requesting the deduction of these foreign tax receivables. In any
gvent, the impact in relation to the use of foreign tax receivables upon exit from the Global Profit Tax System of 2012 and 2015 were
recorded as pravisions for €239 million and €203 million, respectively.

More specifically. regarding the tax audit for fiscal years 2008 to 2011, Vivendi SA is subject to a rectification procedure far which the tax
authorities challenge the accounting and fiscal treatment of NBC Universal shares received in consideration of the sale of Vivendi Universal
Entertainment shares in 2004. Additionaily, the tax authorities challenged the deducticn of the €2.4 billion loss recorded as part of the sale
of these shares in 2010 and 2011, The National Direct Tax System (Commission Nationale des Impéts Directs) before which proceedings
were brought, rendered its opinion on December 9, 2016, which was notified to Vivendi SA on January 13, 2017, in which it declared the
discontinuation of the adjustments suggested by the tax authorities. Morecver, as the disagreement found its basis in an administrative
doctrine, Vivendi asked for the opinion to be cancelled on the grounds that it was tantamaount to adding 10 the law. On May 29, 2017, the
French Council of State (Conseifl d'Ftat] favorably received Vivendi's appeal for misuse of authority. This audit is still ongoing and Vivendi
Management beligves that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under
audit,

In respect of the US Tax Group, the tax audit for fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010 were settled through a tax reimbursement of $6 million.
The tax audit for fiscal years 2011, 2012, and 2013 is angoing. On January 31, 2018, Vivendi was informed by the LS tax autherities that
fiscal years 2014, 2015 and 2016 were under audit. Vivendi Management believes that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for
determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit.

Regarding the additional tax contributicn of 3% on dividend distributions paid by Yivendi SA for a total amount of €214 million in relation to
the dividends paid in fiscal year 2013 and in fiscal years 2015 to 2017, these contributions were challenged before the tax authorities and
the Administrative Court of Montreuil. Foflowing & decision of the French Constitutional Council (Consed! constitutionnel} dated October 6,
2017, pursuant to which it determined that the 3% tax on dividend distributions was unconstitutional, the tax authorities proceeded to carry
out a rebate of the litigious contributions and to their refund. Consequently, Vivendi withdrew from its actions before the Administrative
Court. In addition, in accordance with applicable law, these refunds gave rise to the payment of moratorium interest to Vivendi, to be applied
through the effective restitution date. I its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, Vivendi SA recorded a tax income of
€207 million from the litigation settlement, and moratorium interest of £24 million. Regarding the tax contributions paid by Canal+ Group
{€4 million) and Havas (€7 million), these contyiputions have been challenged before the tax authorities. Canal+ Group and Havas were
reimbursed, with moratorium interest of €1 million.

Regarding the dispute over the validity of the merger between SFR and Vivendi Telecom International (VTI) dated December 2011, which
entails a potential challenge of the integration of SFR within the Vivendi tax group in respect of fiscal year 2011, SFR was informed, in a
letter dated November 8, 2017 that the tax authorities were withdrawing their adjustment proposal, confirming ¥ivendi’s position that it had
solid fegal grounds upon which to challenge the tax authorities’ position.
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With regard to the Havas Group, Havas SA filed a contentious claim for the refund of the withholding tax paid by the company between 2000
and 2002 on the redistribution of dividends from European subsidiaries (i.e., €38 million). Following the filing of the case before the
Administrative Court, the Paris Court of Appeal and the Versailles Court of Appeal, on July 28, 2017, the French Council of State (Conseif
d'Ftaf) found that the appeal in cassation lodged by Havas against the decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal was inadmissible. This
decision irrevocably ended the tax litigation and prevented Havas from receiving & refund of the withholding tax. To restore Havas's right to
compensation, three combined actions were instituted: (i) a claim before the European Commission, (i} a filing before the Eurcpean Court of
Human Rights, and {iii) a ciaim for compensation under an action for damages against the state. Vivendi Management befieves that it has
solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit.

In addition, under Havas SA and Havas International’s tax audits for fiscal years 2002 to 2005, the French Administration rectified the tax
result of Havas SA tax group, thereby reducing the overall deficit reported by the tax group by €287 million. This rectification was challenged
before the tax authorities. following filings made before the Administrative Court of Montreuil and the Versailles Court of Appeal, on
July 12, 2617, the French Council of State {Consei! d'Ftatl overturned the Court of Appeal’s ruling, which was unfavorable to Havas, and
remanded the case to that same court. On August 28, 2017, Havas filed an appeal before the Versailles Court of Appeal. In a decision dated
July 3, 2018, the Versailtes Court of Appeal confirmed Havas's positions and decided to restore Havas SA's deficit results of €267 million,

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31,

2018 2017

Basic Dilyted Basic Diluted
Eamings {in millions of euros)
Earnings from continying operaticns attributabte to Vivendi SA shareowners 127 127 1,218 1182 fal
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners - - - -
Earnings attributable 10 Vivendi SA shareowners 127 127 1,218 1,182
Number of shares {in millions)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b) 12635 12635 12527 1,252.7
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 5.1 - 48
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 1,263.5 1,268.6 1.252.7 1,251.5
Eamings per share {in euros)
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendt SA sharecwners per share 010 010 0.97 094
Earnings from discontinued operations attributzble to Vivendi SA shargowners per share - - - -
Earnings atiributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 010 0.10 097 084

a. Related only to the impact for Vivendi of Telecom ltalia’s dilutive instruments, calculated based on the financial information publicly
disclosed hy Telecom ltalia with a three-month reporting lag (please refer to Note 11.2).

b.  Net of the weighted average number of treasury shares (38.5 million shares in 2018, compared to 37.5 million shares in 2017).
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Details of changes in equity related to other comprehensive income

items not subsequently

} ] seguently rectassified to profit or loss
reclassified to profitor loss liems 10 be subsaq ¥ ed toprofitor

Actuaria! Unrealized gains/(losses)
Financal
yains/(losses) assets 2t fair Foreign Other .
related to . . comprefiensive Other
employge  Valvetvough - Available-  Hedging EUTENSY o come from comprehensive
) other for-sale ingtruments Total translation i ;
defined camprehensive iti {b) adjustments equity income
benefit pians income secunties ! affiliates, net

{in millions of euros} {al
Balance as of Decamber 31, 2016 (247} - 489 L 533 365 n3 764
Charges and income directly recognized
in equity 29 - 850 (c 35 685 {848} {31 {165)
1tems to be reclassified to profit or loss na - - (3) {3) - - 3
Tax effact - 2 1 3 - - 3
Consolidation of Havas {54) - - - - {14) i {69)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 (272) - 1,141 k) 1218 (497} 81 (d) 530
Restatements refated to the application
of IFRS 9 (e} - {198) {1,141} 1 11,140) - - 11,338}
Rastatements related to the application
of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 hy equity
affiliates . - - - - - i 2
Balance as of January 1, 2018 (272) {198} na 73 8 (497} 83 (806)
Charges and income directly recognized
in equity 4] {224} - 3 3 2728 (164} mn
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss . 7 - - - - - 17}
Tax effect 10 ] - - - - - 112)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 (242) (431§ na 81 81 {268} (81} {d} {342)

na: not applicable.

a.  Please refer to Note 17.

b. Please refer o Note 137,

¢ Included unrealized capital gain on Vivendi's listed equity portfolio.

d. Included forcign currency translaticn frem Telecom Itaiia for -£70 millicn as of December 31, 2018, comparea to +£111 million as of
December 31, 2017,

e Notably included the reclassification te retained earnings of the €1,160 million unrealized capital gain as of December 31, 2017 relating
to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft {please refer to Note 2.3).
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Note 9 Goodwill

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Goodwill, gross 26,804 26,084
Impairment losses {14,366) {14.000}
Goodwill 12,438 12,084

9.1 Changes in goodwill

Changes in foreign

December 31, 2017 Impairment losses Bu;megs gusrency translation December 31, 2018
combinations adjustments and
{in millions of evros} other
Universal Music Group 4736 - 14 227 fal 4977
Cangl+ Group 4576 - 3 (4 4,595
Havas 1878 - 42 20 1,940
Gameiaft 583 - 8 - 591
Vivendi Village 103 - 23 b} (1} 125
New Initiatives 208 {1} 3 - 210
Total 12,084 {1) 113 242 12,438
Changes in foreign
December 31, 2016 Impairment losses Buglnegs currency uansiation December 31, 2017
combinations adjustments and

{in mitlions of eures) other
Universal Music Group 5.401 - 13 {678} (a) 4,736
Canal+ Group 4573 - i {8) 4576
Havas - - 1,918 (o {40} 1,878
Gameloft 609 - {26) td) - 583
Vivendi Village 196 - {65} (e} (28} ) 103
New Initiatives 208 - - - 208
Total 10,987 - 1,851 {754} 12,084

a  Primarily included the foreign currency translation of the dollar {USD) against the eurc.

b.  Notably included the provisional goodwill attributable to Paylogic, a ticketing and technology company acquired by Vivends Village on
April 16, 2018.

¢ Related to the carrying value of Havas's goodwill acquired by Vivendi on July 3, 2017

d. Relatad to the purchase price for Gameloft as of June 29, 216, which was allocated to the technology and the game engines
(€42 million; useful life estimated at 3 years) net of the resulting deferred tax liabilities (€15 million), based on analyses and estimates
prepared by Vivendi. The final amount of goodwill attributable to Gameloft amounted to €583 millien.

¢ Related to the purchase price for Paddingten as of June 30, 2016, which was allocated to the brand (E77 million; indefinite useful life}
net of the resulting deferred tax liabilities (€12 million), valued based on analyses and estimates prepared by Vivendi.

f  Notably related to the sale of Radionomy on August 17, 2017
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92  Goodwill impairment test

In 2018, Vivend! tested the value of goodwill allocated to its Cash-Generating Units (CGU) or groups of CGU applying valuation methads
consistent with previous years. Vivendi ensured that the racoverabte amount af CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value
{including goodwilll. The recaverable amount is determined as the higher 6f the value in use determined by the discourted value of future
cash flows {Diseountad Cash Flow method {DCF)) and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data {stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, comparisan with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent acquisition transactions).
For a description of the methods used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1.3.5.7.

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGU

Operating Segments  Cash Generating Units {CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Universal Music Group ~ Recorded music
Music publishing Universal Music Group {a}
Artist services and merchandising
Canal+ Group Pay-TV in Mainland France

Pay-TV in France (mainfand and
—- gyerseas), Poland, Africa and Asia, and
free-to-air T in France {3}

Canal+ International (b}
nc+ {Poland)
Free-to-air TV in France

Studiccanal Studiocanal
Havas Spain [t} Spain (c}
North America ] North America
France France
Qther territorigs Other territories
Gameloft Gameloft Gameloft
Vivendi Village See Tickets See Tickets
Digitick Digitick
Paylogic {d} ~ Paylogic [d)
_L'Olympia L'Olympia
Paddington Paddingten
CanalQlympia CanalOtympia
New nitiatives Datlymation Dailymaticn
Vivendi Content Vivendi Content
Group Vivendi Africa Group Vivendi Africa

a. Corresponds to the level of monitoring retum on investisnls,
b.  Relates to pay-TV in France cverseas, Africa and Asia.
¢ Includes entities under the same management,

d. As of December 31, 2018, no goodwill impairment test attributable to Paylogic was completed given that the acquisition date of
Faylogic {April 16, 2018) was close to the firanciat closing date.

During the fourth quarter of 2018, Vivendi performed a goodwill impairment test on each CGU or group of CGU, on the basis of valuations of
recoverable amounts determined through internal valuations or with the assistance of third-party appraisers. As & result, Vivendi
Management concluded that, as of December 31, 2018, the recoverable amount for each CGU ar group of CGU tested exceeded their carrying
value.
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Presentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

The value in use of each CGU or group of CGU is usually determinad as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow
projections consistent with the 2019 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments. These forecasts are
prepared on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions: discount rate, perpetual growth rate and EBITA as
defined in Note 1.2.3, capital expenditures, the comgpetitive and regulatory environments, technological developments and level of
commercial expenses. When the business pian of a CGU or group of CGU is not available at the time of the re-examination of the value of
goodwill, Vivendi ensures that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value on the basis market data only. The recoverable amount
used for the relevant CGU or group of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with the main key assumptions set out
below.

Operating segments  CGU or groups of CGU tested zgjaéuanon Mmz%i? Zlg;sé:ount Ratzgﬁ}? Pezrg;e;ual Gmm;ol;ie_;te
DCF &
Universal Music Group  Universal Music Group na (b} comparables na (b} 8.00% na {b) 2.125%
model
Canal+ Group Pay-TV in France {mainland and DCF &
overseas), Poland, Africa and Asia, na (c} comparables  nafg) el na {c} {d)
and free-to-air TV in France model N
Studiocanal DCF OCF 8.00% 8.80% 0.50% 0.50%
Havas Spain OCF OCF §.03% 7.90% 200%  2.00%
North Amenca OCF DCF 8.10% 8.20% 200%  2.00%
France DGk OCF 7.90% 7.80% 2.00% 2.00%
DCF & DCF &
Gameloft Gameloft comparables  comparables 850% 8.50% 2.00% 2.00%
model model
Vivendi Village See Tickets DCF OCF 11.00% 11.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Paddington DCF DCF B.60% 49.00% 1.00% 1.00%
DCF & DCF &
New Initiatives Dailymaotion comparatles  comparables 11.50% 11.50% 2.00% 2.00%
mode! model

na: not applicable.

a. The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been ebtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows.

b To achieve the highest possible valuation for Universal Music Group, given the favorable change in the international music market,
driven in particular by the strong development of subscription streaming services, Vivendi stated in 2018 that it is willing to sale up to
50% of Universal Music Group's share capital to one or more strategic partners and that such process could be completed within an
18-month timeframe.

¢ Based on multiple valuations observed in recent acquisitions, Vivendi considered that Canal+ Group’s recoverable amcunt exceeded its
carrying value. Canal+ Group did not update its business plan at year-end 2018, given the uncertainties around its program offering
fallowing the expiration of the League 1 football rights in France in 2020.

d. Discount rates and perpetual growth rates applied in 2017 to test this group of UGT were as follows:

Discount rate Perpetua! growth rate
2018 2017 2018 2017
Pay-TV

Mainland France ic) 6.70% fc) 1.00%
France overseas {c) 7.70% fc) 1.00%
Africa fc) 11 20% fc) 2.00%
Poland {c) 7.00% lc) 1.50%
Vietnam (c} 8.720% {c 2.00%
Free-to-asr TV in France c} 8.10% ] 1.00%

With respect to free-to-air TV in France, the recoverable amount was determined on the basis of market data (comparable listed
companies and comparison with the value attributed to similar companies in recent acquisition transactions).

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financiat Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 Vivendi / 75



Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

Thursday February 14, 2019

December 31, 2018

Discount rate

Perpetual growth rate

Discounted cash flows

increase in the discount rate
in order for the recoverabie

Decrease in the perpetual growth
rate in order for the recoverable

Decrease in the discounted cash
flows in order tar the recoverable

Applied amatiit ta bg equal ta Applied amount to be equal t¢ amauit ta be equal to
rate tha carrying amount rate the carrying amount the carrying amount
(in %) {in number of points) {in %} {in number of points} {in %]
Universal Music Group {a} ha na na na na
Cana'+ Group (b}
Pay-TV in France fmainland and
overseas), Poland, Africa and Asia,
and free-to-air TV in France na na na na na
Studiocanal 8.00% +2.02 pts 0.50% -3.78 pts -23%
Havas
Spain B03% +7.40 pts 2.00% -16.65 pts -57%
North America B.10% +6.77 pts 2.00% 12,72 pts -52%
France 7.80% +6.90 pts 2.00% -12.36 pts -54%
Gameloft {c} na na na na na
Dailymotion {¢) na na na na na
December 31, 2017
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth Decrease in the discounted cash
in order for the recoverable rate in order for the recoverable flaws i order for the recoverable
Applied amount to be equaltc  Applied amount to be equal to amount to be equal to
1ate the carrying amount 1ate the carrying amaunt the carrying amount
{in %) {in number of points) {in %) [in number of paints) {in %)
Universal Music Group 9.00% +B68pts 2125% 212518 -57%
Canal+ Group
Pay-TV in France {mainland and
overseas), Africa, Poland and
Vietnam, and free-to-air TV in France {d +1.45 pts {d) -3.07 pts -19%
Studiocanal 8.80% +1.67 pts 050% -2.48 pts -20%
Havas
Spain 7.90% +7.88 pts 2.00% -15.06 pts -58%
North America 8.20% +4.05 pts 2.00% -6.89 pts -39%
France 7.80% +6.13 pts 200% -10.24 pts -53%
Gameloft (¢} na na na na na
Dailymation (c} na na na na na

na: not applicable.
@ Please refer to reference b. in the table above,

h.  Please refer to reference c. in the table above.

c.  The acquisitions of Gameloft and Dailymotion, on June 29, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively, were part of Vivendi's strategy to
build a global content and media group. Gameloft and Dailymotion were fully conselidated into the group and they are currently being
reconfigured. With the assistance of a third-party appraiser, Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amounts of Gameloft and Dailymotion
as of December 31, 2017 and as of December 31, 2018, which were determined using standard valuation methods {the value in use,
determined as the discounted value of future cash flows, and the fair valie, determined on the basis of market data: stock market
prices. comparable listed companies. comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent acquisition

transactions) were at least equal to their value at the acquisition date.

d.  For a presentation of the applied rates, pleasa refer to the table in reference d. above.
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Note 10

10.1 Content assets

{in mitlions of eurog)

Music catalogs and publishing rights
Advances to artists and repertoire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Film and television costs

Sports rights

Other

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current content assets

{in millions of euros)

Music catalogs and publishing rights
Advances to artists and repertaire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Film and television costs

Sports rights

Other

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current content assets

Changes in content assets

{in miltions of euros)
Opening balance

Content assets and commitments

Thursday February 14, 2019

December 31, 2018

Content assets,

Accumulated amortization

Content assets

gross and impairment fosses

8,523 (7,153} 1,364

1,045 - 1,045

20 (20) -

6,792 (6,107} B85

437 - 437

48 (39) g

16,865 {13,325) 3540
{1.381) 35 11,346)
15,484 (13,290} 2,194

December 31, 2017

Content assets,

Accumulated amortization

Content assets

Qross and impairment |0sses
8105 {6.767) 1,338
704 - 704
2 {21) -
6,503 (6,713 790
408 - 408
42 {35) 7
15,783 (12,536} 3247
(1177 17 (1,160)
14,606 (12,519} 2,087

Amoriization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations
Amgrtization of content assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses on content assets acquired through business combinations

Increase
Decrease
Business combinations

Changes in forzign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing balance

Year ended December 31,

2018

3247 3,223

[49) {27)

{79) (83)

2737 2,182
(2.597) {2637

3 36
278 (127}

3,540 3241

10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position: content liahilities

Content liabilities are mainly recorded in "Trade accounts payabie and other” or in “Other non-current liabilities” whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable,

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018 Tota! minimum future

Due in payments as of

fin millions of euros) Total 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 December 31, 2017

Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 2,049 2,037 12 - 1,843

Film and television rights {a) 169 159 - - 139
Sparts rights 434 434 - - 468
Creative talent, employment agreements and others 297 177 118 1 132
Content liabilities 2,949 2817 13 1 2,582
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Off-balance sheet commitments given/{received}

Minirnum future payments as of December 31, 2018 Tatal minimum future
Due in payments as of

{in millicns of euros) Total 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 Becember 31, 2017
Film and television rights {a} 2,630 1,134 1,494 2 2724
Sports rights 1,735 (b} 942 782 1 2022
Creative talent, employment agreements and athers {c} 1,172 h42 530 40 1,112
Given commitments 5,537 2,618 2 866 53 5,858
Film and television rights [a} {188) {91} {97) - {212
Sports rights {7 {3 (4} - {18}
Creative talent, employment agreements and athers {c} not available
Other (3) {1 {2} -
Received commitments (198} (95} (103} - (228)
Total net 5339 2,523 2,163 53 5,630

a.  Mainly includes contracts valid over several years for movies and TV production broadcasting rights (mainly exclusivity contracts with
major US studios), pre-purchases of rights in the French cinema industry, Studiocanal’s fitm production and co-production commitments
(given and received), and Canal and nc+ multichannel digital TV package broadcasting rights. They are recorded as content assets when
the broadcast is available for initial release or after the initial significant payment. As of December 31, 2018, provisions recorded in
respect of these commitments amounted to €26 million {compared to €27 miflion as of December 31, 2017).

In addition, these amounts do not include commitments under contracts for channel diffusion rights and nan-exclusive distribution of
channels, in respect of which Canal+ Group did not grant or receive minimal guaranteed amounts. The variable amount of these
commitments cannat be reliably determined and is not reparted in either the Statement of Financial Position or in the commitments and
is instead recorded as an expense for the period in which it was incurred. Based on an estimate of the future subscriber base at Canal+
Group. given commitments would have increased by a net amount cf £407 million as of December 31, 2018, compared to £630 miilion
as of December 31, 2017. These amounts notably inciuded the renewal of the distribution agreement with belN Sports on July 11, 2018,
for a four-year period.

Moreover, on November 8, 2018, Canal+ Group announced the renewal of its May 7, 2015 agreement with all the cinema professional
organizations {ARP, BLIC and BLOC), extending until December 31, 2022 a historic partnership of more than 30 years between Canal+
and the French cinema. Pursuant to this agreement, SECP [Société d'Edition de Canal Plus) undertook to invest 12.5% of its annual
revenues every year in the financing of European cinematographic works. With respect to audiovisual, pursuant to the agreements
entered into with producers’ and authors’ organizations in Frange, Canal+ Group is required to invest 3.6% of its total net annuai
revenue in the financing of heritage waorks every year. Only films for which an agreement in principle is made with producers are
accounted for in the off-balance sheet commitments, as it is otherwise not possible to reliably determine a future and total estimate of
commitments under agreements with cinema professional organizations and with producers’ and authors’ organizations.

b.  Notably included broadcasting rights held by Canal+ Group to the following sport events:
« the French professional Soccer League 1, for the season 2019/2020 for the two premium lots (€549 mill:on);
» the English Premier League, on an exclusive basis in France and in Poland, for the three seasons 2019/2020 to 2021/2022,
awarded on October 31, 2018;
¢ the National French Rugby Championship “Top 14", on an exclusive hasis, for the four seasons 2018/2020 to 2022/2023; and
= Formula 1, Formula 2 and GP3 racings, on an exclusive basis, for the seasons 2019 and 2020.
These commitments will be accounted far in the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or ugon an initial
significant payment.

¢ Primarily relates to UMG, which routinely commits to pay agreed amounts to artists and other parties upon delivery of content or ather
products {"Creative talent and employment agreements”}. Untif the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or until the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment. While the artist or the other party is
obligated to deliver content or another product te UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be reliably
determined and, thus, is not reported in received commitments.
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Note 11  Investments in equity affiliates

11.1  Main investments in equity affiliates

Thursday February 14, 2019

As of December 31, 2018, the main companies accounted for by Vivendi under the equity method were as follows:

e Telecom ltalia; fixed and mobile telephony operator in ltaly and Brazil;
«  Baniiay Group Holding: producer and distributor of television programs; and
s Vevo: premium music video and entertainment piatform.

Voting interast Net carrying vaiue of equity affiliates

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018 December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Telecom Italia (a) 23.94% 2394% 3,130 4,242
Banijay Group Holding (b} 31.4% 31.4% 145 142
Vevo 49.4% 49.4% 81 80
Other na na 62 62
3418 4,526

na: not applicable.

a. As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held 3,640 million Telecom ltalia ordinary shares with voting rights, i.e., 23.94%, representing
17.15% of the total share capital. Based on the stock market price as of December 31, 2018 (£6.4833 per ordinary share}, the market
value of this interest amounted to €1,758 million. For an analysis of the value of Vivendi's interest in Telecom italia as of December 31,

2018, please refer to paragraph 11.2 below.

b.  On December 21, 2018, the halance of the "new CRAN 1" issued by Baniiay Group Holding was early redeemed in cash for €25 million.
On July 8, 2017, a portion of this bond had heen early redeemed in cash for £33 million and converted into Banijay Group Holding shares

{bringing Vivendi's interest in Banijay Group Holding from 26.2% to 31.4%].

Change in value of investments in equity affiliates

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of guros) 2018 2017

Opening balance 4,526 (a) 4,416
Acquisitions - a0
Sales - -
Write-downs {1,068) (b} -
Income from equity affiliates {c) 129 146
Change in other comprehensive income {164} {32}
Dividends recaived {7 (6
Other - {24)
Closing balance 3,418 4,540

a  Inaccordance with the new IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 accounting standards, the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2018 was restated by

equity affiliates (please refer to Note 28.2).

b.  Vivendi wrote-down the velue of its interest in Telecom ltalia for £1,066 million (please refer below).

¢ Primarily included Vivendi's share of Telecom Ralia's net eamings for €122 million in 2018 (please refer below), compared to

€144 millien in 2017.

11.2 Telecom ltalia

Equity accounting of Telecom ltalia

As of December 31, 2018, with no change compared to December 31, 2017, Vivendi held 3,640 million Telecom itaiia ordinary shares,
representing 23.94% of the voting rights and 17.15% of the total share capital of Telecom ltalia, while taking into account non-voting
savings shares with privileged dividend rights. Since December 31, 2017, the following main events ocourred:

s On March 22, 2018, with effect from April 24, 2018, the three members of Telecom Italia’s Board of Directors representing Vivendi
resigned, including Mr. Arnaud de Puyfontaine, Executive Chairman of Tefecom Italia’s Board of Directors since June 1, 2017.
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e On May 4, 2018, Telecom ltalia's Shareholders’ Meeting appointed five board candidates out of the ten candidates proposed by
Vivendi, including Messrs. Arnaud de Puyfontaine and Amos Genish. Vivendi's board candidate slate had 47% of the votes cast
compared to 49% of the votes cast for Elliott's slate which obtaired ten directors.

s (OnMay 7, 2018, Telecom ltalia's Board of Directors unanimously appointed Mr. Amos Genish as Amministratore Delegato (Chief
Executive Officer) of Telecom ltalia. On this occasion, Vivendi reaffirmed its long-term commitment to Telecom Rtalia. As a
reminder, Vivendi supported the 2018-2020 industrial plan announced by Mr. Amos Genish on March 12, 2018, which was
unanimously approved by Telecem ltalia’s Board of Directors.

¢ On May 16, 2018, Telecom ltalia’s Board of Directars considered that Vivendi was no longer exercising “management and
coordination activities” |attivita di direzione e coordinamento, according to Article 2497-bis of the Italian Civil Code) over Telecom
Italia and consequently terminated the “management and coordination activities” that had been exercised by Vivendi since July 27,
2017.

« On November 13, 2018, Telecom ltalia’s Board of Directors revoked the executive powers of Amministratore Defegato held by
Mr. Amos Genish, who remains a member of the Board of Directors.

¢  On December 14, 2018, Vivendi requested the Telecom italia Board of Directors to convene a Shareholders’ Meeting as soon as
possible to vote for the appointment of rew statutory Auditors. Vivend: also requested that the agenda of the Shareholders’
Meeting includes a vote on the dismissal of five Board members from the Elliott list.

Notwithstanding the change in the governance of Telecom Iltalia in 2018, and the subsequent decrease of Vivendi's influence over Telecom
Italia’s Board of Directars, Vivendi continues to consider that it has the power to participate in Telecom Italia's financial and operating policy
decisions, particularly given the 23.94% voting rights it holds in Telecom ltalia, and, as a result, it is deemed to exercise a significant
influgnce over Telecom Italia. To account for this decrease of influence over Telecom italia in 2018, Vivendi has been recording its share of
Telecom ltalia’s net earnings as “income from equity affiliates — non-operational”. In 2017, it was recorded as “income from equity affiliates
— operaticnal”.

Vivendi's share of Telecom Italia’s earnings

Vivendi relies on Telecom ltalia’s public financial information to account for its interest in Telecom italia under the equity method. Given
Vivendi's and Telecom ltalia’s respective publicaticn dates of their financial statements, Vivend: always accounts for its share of Telecom
ltalia’s net eamings with a three-month reporting lag. Therefore, for fiscal year 2018, Vivendi's eamings take inta account its share of
Telecom ltalia’s net earnings for the fourth quarter of 2017 and for the first nine months of 2018, i.e., a total of €122 million, which was
calculated as follows:

» 8 million, attributable to Vivendi's share of Telecom Italia’s profit for the fourth quarter of 2017, calculated based on the financial
information for the year ended December 31, 2017, as publicly disclosed by Telecom ttetia on March 6, 2018;

o E174millien, attributable to Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia’s profit for the first nine months of 2018, calculated based on the
financial information for the first nine months of 2018, as publicly disclosed by Telecom italia on November 8, 2018; and

¢ -£60 million, excluded from adjusted net income, relating to the amortization of intangible assets related to the purchase price
allocation for Telecom ltalia.

In addition, Vivendi's share of Telecom Italia's charges and income directly recagnized in equity amounted to €168 million in 2018, including
-£130 million related to foreign currency transiation adjustments.

Value of Vivendi's interest in Telecom Italia as of December 31, 2018

As of December 31, 2018, the stock market price of Telecom Italia ordinary shares (€0.4833) decreased compared to the average purchase
price paid by Vivend: (€1.0709). In particular, Vivend: has observed the significant decrease in the stock market price of Telecom Italia since
May 4, 2018, the date of Telecom }talia’s Shareholders Meeting during which the Board of Directors’ composition was changed and a new
Chairman was appointed. Consistent with previous fiscal year-ends, Vivend! tested the value of its interest in Telecom ltalia, to determine
whether the recoverable amount exceeded its carrying value. With the assistance of a third-party appraiser, Vivendi used the standard
valuation methods: the value in use, determined as the discounted value of future cash flows; the fair value, determined on the basis of
market data: stock market prices, comparable fisted companies and comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in
recent acquisition transactions. Notwithstanding Vivendi's expected improvement of Telecom ltalia’s cutlook, Vivendi wrote-down the value
of its interest accounted for under the equity method for €1,086 million, notably to take into actount the uncertainty affecting Telecom
Italia’s governance, which intreases the non-execution risks associated with the company's industrial plan given Vivendi's lower power to
participate in Telecom ltalia’s financial and operating policy decisions, and to take into account the changes in Telecom Italia’s competitive
and regulatory environment. Therefore, in Vivendi’s Consolidated Financiai Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, the value of
Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method was €3,130 million.
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Financial information related to 100% of Telecom italia

The main aggregates of the Consolideted Financial Statements, as publicly disclesed by Telecom Italia, are as foliows:

Nina months Annual
Financial Statements Financial Statements
fin millions of eurns) as of September 30, 2018 as of December 31, 2017
Date of publication by Telecom ltakia: November 8, 2018 March 8, 2018

Non-current assets 54,038 58,452
Current assets 9533 10,331
Total assets 63,571 58,783
Total equity 21,807 23.783
Non-current liabilities 79,062 32.612
Current liabilities 12,608 12 388
Total liabilities 63,571 58,783

of which net financial debt (a} 26,127 26,0891
Revenues 14,077 19,828
EBITDA (a} 5,778 7,790
Earnings attnbutable to Telecom Italia shareowners {868) 1121
Total comprehensive income/{loss) attnbutable to Telecom ltalia shareowners {1,530 527

a.  Non-GAAP measures {"Alternative Performance Measures”), as publicly disclosed by Telecom ltalia.
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Note 12 Financial assets

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
tin millions of euros} Tota! Current Nan-current Total Current Nan-current
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Term deposits {a) 549 549 - 50 50
Level 1
Bond funds {a) 50 50 - 75 25 -
Listed equity securtties 788 . 789 1,956 - 1.956 b
Other financial assets 5 5 - 5 g -
Level 2
Unlisted equity secunties - - - 348 - 348
Derivative financial instruments 38 18 22 18 4 15
Levet 3 - Other financial assets {c} 44 - 44 62 - 62
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (d}
Level 1 - Listed equity securities 936 - 936 1,798 - 1,798
Level 2 - Unlisted equity securities 20 - 20 13 - 13
Level 3 - Unlisted equity securities 47 - a7 47 - 47
Financial assets at amertized caost 714 (e 478 244 317 54 263
Financial assets 3,192 1,090 2,102 4,640 138 4,502

The three classification levels for the measurement of firancial assets at tair value are defined in Note 1.3.1.
a. Relates to cash management financial assets, included in the cash position: please refer to Note 14.
b. Related to Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft, which was reclassified as "fair value through profit or loss” as of January 1, 2018.

. These financial assets notably included the fair value of the bond redeemable into either shares or cash (ORAN 2) subscribed to by
Vivendi in 2018 in connection with its investment in Banijay Group Holding. As of January 1, 2018, they also included the balance of the
bond redeemable into either shares or cash {“new” ORAN 1) which was early redeemed in cash (€25 million) on December 21, 2018.

g These assets relate to listed and non-listed equity securities, which Vivendi decided to classify as “fair value through other
comprehensive income”. These financial assets had heen classified as "financial assets available-for-sale” until December 31, 2017.

e  Asof December 31, 2018, these financial assets notably included:
s areceivable of €429 million on the forward sale of the remaining interest in Ubisoft {please refer to Note 2.3);
e a bond redeemable in cash subscribed to by Vivendi in 2016 in connection with its investment in Banijay Group Holding for
€55 million; and
« 2 €70 miltion cash deposit made in March 2017 pursuant to an agreement to purchase a piece of land on the Tle Seguin, in the
Parisian suburb Boulogne Biillancourt.
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Listed eguity and financial assets portfolio

Becember 31, 2018

‘ . Average Stock ‘ Change in Cumula_tive o
Number of Vating Ownership Carrying unrealized Sensitivity
shares held interest interest purchase ma_rket value value‘over capital at+/-10 pts
price {a} price the period {b) gainvlloss [t)

{in thousands) {€/sharg) {in millions of euros)
Mediaset 340,246 9.99% (o) 28.80% 370 274 934 (165} {325) +93/-93
Ubisoft {d) 6.550 5.23% 5.80% 3198 na 429 na na na
Other 791 440 532 +79/-79
Total 2,154 215 307 +172/-172

December 31, 2017
. Cumulative
Numberof  Voting  Ownership  fverage o Stock e L Changein e Sensitivity
shares held interest interest ”“TC“BSB mar ket vaiue va\ue_over capital at +/-10 pts
price [a) price the period (b} gainlass) (b)

{in thousands) {€/share) {in millions of euros)
Mediaset 340.246 79.94% (c) 28.80% 370 323 1,099 {300} (1600 +110/-110
Ubisoft 30,489 29.04% 21.27% 26.12 64.14 1,956 379 1,160  +195/-195
Telefonica {e) 48,247 0.95% 0.95% 11.56 813 400 {34) {169) +40/-40
Fnac Darty (f) 2.945 11.05% 11.05% 54.00 100.70 297 108 138 +30/-3C
Other 3 - (2) -
Total 3,754 703 967 +375/-375

na: not applicable.
a Includes acquisition fees and taxes.

b As from January 1, 2018, these amounts {before taxes) are either reparted to profit or loss, or recorded as other comprehensive income
not subseguently reclassified to profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. As of December 31, 2017, under |AS 39, they were recorded as
other charges and income directly recognized in equity.

¢.  The partnership agreement entered into between Vivendi and Mediaset on April 8, 2016 is the subject to litigation. As of December 31,
2017, Vivendi held 340,246 thousand Mediaset shares, representing 29.94% of the voting rights. On Apri! 9, 2018, in compliance with
the undertakings given to the AGCOM, Vivendi transferred the portion of its voting rights in excess of 10% to an independent ltalian
trustee {please refer to Note 23).

d. As part of the sale of its entire 27.27% interest in Ubisoft {i.e., 30,489 thousand shares), 6,550 thousand shares wil! be sold on March 5,
2019 in a forward sale (ptease refer to Note 2.3). As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, a receivable on share disposal for the amount of such forward sale (€429 mitlion).

e. In November and December 2018, Vivendi sold on the market its Telefonica shares for an aggregate amount of €373 million. In 2018,
Vivendi received €11 million in dividends from Telefoniza, compared to €20 million in 2017.

f OnJuly 2, 2018, Vivendi decided to settte in shares the hedging transaction entered into in January 2018 regarding its interest in Fnac
Darty. The settlement was completed on July 10, 2018 and Vivendi received cash proceeds of €267 miltion on July 12, 2018 {please
refer to Note 2.4).

Equity market value risks

As part of a sustainable investing strategy, Vivendi built an equity portfolio comprising listed and non-listed French and European companies
in the telecommunication and media sectors that are leaders in the production and distribution of content.

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held & portfolio of listed non-controlling equity interests, including a receivable of £428 million on the
forward sale of the remaining interest in Ubisoft (please refer to Note 2.3} As of December 31, 2018, the aggregate market value of this
portfolio was approximately £3.9 billion (before taxes). Vivendi is exposed to the risk of fluctuation in the value of these interests: as of
December 31, 2018, the net unrealized capital gains or losses with respect to the interests in Telecom ltalia, Mediaset, Spotify and Tencent
Music, represented a net unrealized capital loss amounting ta approximately €1.8 biilion (before taxes}. A 10% uniform decrease in the value
of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative impact of approximately £2.5 billion on Vivendi's financial position; a 20% uniform
decrease in the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative impact of approximately £2.9 billion on Vivendi's financial
position,
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Note 13  Networking capital

Changes in net working capital

Changes in Divestitures Cr}zrr\ggsnm
January 1, operating Business N progress currency Other (c December 31,
2018 (3) working  combinations or ‘ 2018
capital {b} completed trgnslataon
{in millions of euros) adjustments
Inventories 177 29 - - 3 13) 206
Trade accounts receivable and other 5,208 B5 28 (17) {6} 38 514
(f which trade accounts receivable 3,828 {29) 14 (9 {15 57 3,640
trade accounts
receivable write-offs {182) {20} - 3 - 2 {197)
Working capital assets 5,385 L 28 (L1]] {3) n 5,520
Trade accounts payable and other 9,019 64 60 {3 38 393 9,572
Other nen-current liabilities 226 2 {1 - 4 17 248
Working capital liabilities 9,245 66 59 i3) 43 410 9,820
Net working capital {3.860) 2 {31) (14) {46} (377) {4,300)
Changes in Divestitures Cr;z;f:;eirn
December 31, operating Business in progress currer?cy Other tc) December 31,
2016 working  combinaticns or - 2017
N capital (b} completed tre}nsJatmn
{in millions of euros) adjustments
Inventorigs 123 {24} 91 - {10} (3) 177
Trade accounts recefvable and other 2,273 453 2,836 (i {12} {147} {31 5218
Of which trade accounts receivable 1.340 416 2242 {7} {102} £1) 3828
{rade accounts
recervable write oifs {163} 5 {23/ - 5 4 (1724
Working capital assets 2.39% 475 2,727 {12) (157 (34) 5,395
Trade accounts payable and other 5,614 746 3,067 (e} 123) {350} (35) 9,018
Other non-current liabilities 126 6] 35 - (4] 75 276
Working capital liahilities 5,740 140 3,102 {23} (354) 40 9,245
Net waorking capital {3,344) (265) (375) 11 197 (74) {3,850)

a. Asof January 1, 2018, net working capital included the restatements related to the applicaticn of IFRS 9 for -£10 million {please refer to
Note 28.2).

b. Excludes content investments made by Canal+ Group and Universal Music Group.
¢ Mainly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures and other investments.
d Included €2,628 million relating to the integration of Havas.

e. Included €3,043 million relating to the integration of Havas.

Trade accounts receivable and other
Credit risk

Vivendi does not consider there to be a significant risk of nan-recovery of trade accounts receivabies for its business segments: the large
individual customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business segments [mainly
Universal Music Group, Canal+ Group, Havas and Gameloft), enable Vivendi to minimize the rigk of credit concentration related to trade
accounts receivable.

Havas provides advertising and communications sarvices to a wide range of clients operating in various industry sectors around the world.
Havas grants credit to all qualified clients. It does not believe it is exposed to any undue concentration of credit risk related to either a
specific country or client. Consequently, concentrations of cradit risk on accounts receivable are limited. in 2015, Havas selected a leading
credit insurer to cover its main client credit risks worldwide. Deployment of this credit insurance cover began in July 2015 and continued
since then, including in 2018.
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Trade accounts payable and other

{in millions of euros) Note  December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Trade accounts payabie 4,938 4,909
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 10.2 2,037 1,830
Other 2,597 2,280
Trade accounts payable and other 9,572 9,019

Note 14  Cash position

Vivendi's cash position comprises cash and cash equivalents, as well as cash management financial assets classified as current financial
assets. As defined by Vivendi, cash management financial assets relate to financial investments, which do not satisfy the ¢riteria for
classification as cash equivalents set forth in IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, which satisfy ANC and AMF position
expectations expressed in November 2018.

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

{in milfions of euros) Carrying value Fair value Level (a) Carrying value Fair value Level (a)
Term deposits 548 na na 50 na na
Bond funds and other 50 50 1 25 25 1
Cash management financial assets 599 15

Cash 438 na na 389 na na
Term deposits and current accounts 1,999 na na 1,257 na na
Money market funds 1,306 1,306 1 275 275 1
Bond funds 50 50 1 30 30 1
Cash and cash equivalents 3793 1,951

Cash position 4,332 2,026

na: not applicable.

a. level 1 corresponds to a measurement based on quoted prices in active markets (the three classification levels for the measurement of
financial assets at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1).

In 2018, the average interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0.50% (compared to 0.40% in 2017},

Investment risk and counterparty risk

Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash poeling) of all controlled entities (i) which are not subject to local regulations restricting the
transfer of financial assets, or (i) which are not subject to other agreements,

As of December 31, 2018, the group’s cash position amounted to €4,392 milfion (compared to £2,026 million as of December 31, 2017), of
which £3,354 million was held by Vivend: SA {compared to £1,072 million as of December 31, 2017).

Vivendi's investment policy mainly aims to minimize its exposure to counterparty risk. Consequently, Vivendi allocates a portion of the
amounts availabe within (i) mutual funds with a low risk class (1 or 2} as defined by the European Securities and Markets Authority's (ESMA)
synthetic risk and reward indicator (SRRI} which comprises seven risk classes, and {ii) credit institutions with high long-term or short-term
credit ratings {at least A-{Standard & Poor's)/A3(Moody’s} and A-2(Standard & Poor's)/P-Z{Moody’s), respectively). Morecver, Vivendi
allocates investments among selected banks and limits the amaunt of each such investment.

Liguidity risk

As of February 11, 2019 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018), Vivendi considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash surpluses, net of the cash
used to reduce its debt, as well as the cash available through undrawn bank credit facilities (please refer to Note 19.3) will be sufficient to
cover its operating expeanses and investments, fts debt service {including redemption of bonds), the payment of income taxes, the distributicn
of dividends and any potential share repurchases under existing authorizations, as well as its investment projects, if any, for the next
12 months.
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Note15  Equity

Changes in the share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands} December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Number of shares comprising the share capital {nominal value: €5.5 per share) 1,306,234 1,296,059
Treasury shares {38,264} (39.408)
Number of shares, net 1,262,970 1,256,651
Number of voting rights, gross 1,387,389 1,513,250
Treasury shares {38,264) (39,408)
Number of voting rights, net 1,349,625 1,473,842

On July 18, 2018, Vivendi made a capital increass of €100 million, by issuing 5 186 thousand new shares through an employse stock
purchase plan and leveraged plan (please refer to Note 18).

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi's share capital amounted to €7,184,288,078, divided inte 1,30B,234,196 shares. In addition, as of
December 31, 2018, 7.2 million stock options and 4.8 million performance shares were outstanding, representing a potential maximum
nominal share capital increase of €66 million (i.e., 0.92%).

Share repurchases

On April 19, 2018, the General Shareholders’ Meeting renewed the authorization given to Vivendi's Management Board to repurchase shares
of the company within the limit of 5% of Vivendi's share capital and at a maximum price of €24 per share.

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi held 38,264 thousand treasury shares, representing 2.93% of its share capital {compared to 3.04% of its
share capital as of December 31, 2017),

Among the resolutions to be submitted to a vote at the Shareholders” Meeting to be held on April 15, 2014, the shareholders will be asked to
approve two resolutions relating to share repurchases:
¢ The renewal of the authorizations granted to the Management Board by the Sharehalders Meeting of April 19, 2018 to repurchase
shates of the company within the limit of 10% of the share capital at a maximum purchase price of €25 per share, and to reduce
the company’s share capital within the limit of 10% by cancelling the shares acquired.
«  Granting to the Management Board authorization te purchase shares of the company by way of a public share buyback offer (OPRA]
within the limit of 25% of Vivendi's share capital at a maximum purchase price of €25 per share, and 10 cancel the shares acquired.

Shareholders’ dividend distributions

On February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Beard meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and the aliocation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended), the Management Board decided 1o propose to
sharehalders the payment of an ordinary dividend of £0.50 per share representing a total distribution of approximately €634 million. This
propased distribution was presented to, and appraved by, Viverdi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 14, 2019, and will be
submitted to the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting to be heid on April 15, 2019 for approval.

On April 24, 2018, with respect to fiscal year 2017, an ordinary dividend of €0.45 per share was paid (following the coupon detachment cn
April 20, 2018), representing a total distribution of €568 million.
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{in millions of euros)

Employee benefits (a)

Restructuring costs (b}

Litigations

Losses on onerous contracts
Contingent liabilities due to disposat (c}
Cther {d)

Provisions

Deduction of current provisions
Non-current provisions

Note

23

Thursday February 14, 2019

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

537 146

55 53

247 260

¥ 61

20 8

813 785

1,869 1.927
{438) (412}

1.431 1,515

3. Included deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€661 million as of December 31,
2018 and €712 miilion as of December 31, 2017}, but excluded employes termination reserves recerded under restructuring costs.

b, Primarily included provisions for restructuring at UMG (€13 million as of December 31, 2018, compared to €9 million as of December 31,
2017} and at Canal+ Group (€40 million as of December 31, 2018, compared to €30 mitlion as of December 31, 2017).

¢ Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions. These arovisions are not significant and the amount
is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivendi.

d  Notably included the provisions with respect to the 2012 and 2015 French Tax Group System (€238 mitiion and €203 million as of
December 31, 2018, respectively), as well as litigation provisions for which the amount and nature are not disclosed because such

disclosure coudd be prejudicial to Vivendi.

Changes in provisions

{in miltions of euros)
Opening balance
Addition

Utilization

Reversal

Business combinations

Divestitures, changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing bhalance

Year ended December 31,

2018 07
1,927 214
280 451
(231 {270) fal
(123) {503) (&)
- 172
16 {64)
1.869 1,927

a  Notably included the reversal of reserve related to the securities class action in the United States for an aggregate amount of

€100 million (please refer ta Note 23).
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Note17  Employee benefits

17.1  Analysis of expenses related to employee henefit plans

The table below provides information about the cost of employse benefit plans excluding its financial component. The total cost of defined
benefit plans is set forth in Note 17.2.2 below.

Year ended December 31,

tin- millions of euros) Note 2018 2017

Employee defined contribution plang 62 46
Employee defined benefit plans 1722 26 23
Employee benefit plans 88

This cost increase was primarily due to the full-year effect of the consolidation of Havas since July 3, 2017: €32 million for employee defined
contribution plans (€17 million in 2017) and €6 million for employee defined benefit plans (€3 miltion in 2017).

172 Employee defined benefit plans
17.21 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis

Discount rate, expected return oa plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 1.3.8 and have been applied cansistently for several years. Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of campensation
increase} are company specific. Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent advisors and are reviewed by Yivendi’s Finance department. The discount rate is therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields on notes issued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and maturities identical to that of the valued
plans, generally based on relevant rate indices. The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a hest estimate by
Vivendi’s Finance department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments.

In accordance with amended I1AS 19, the expected return on plan assets is estimated using the discount rate used to value the abligations of
the previous year.

In weighted average

Pension benefits Pusl-retiremant benefits

2018 207 2018 2017
Discount rate (a) 2.3% 2.2% 39% 37%
Rate of compensation increase 17% 1.5% na na
Duration of the benefit obligation {in years) 15.0 155 88 94

na: not applicable.

a. A b0 basis point increase (or & 50 hasis point decrease, respectively) to the 2018 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 miiflion in pre-tax expense (or an increase of €1 miflion, respectivelyj and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €84 million {or an increase of €87 million, respectively),

Assumptions used in accounting for pension benelits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
208 m7 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2007
Discount rate 4.00% 375% 275% 250% 1.50% 150% 1.50% 1.50%
Rate of compensation increase [weighted average) na na 3.50% 3.50% 1.75% 1.75% 3.47% 3.25%

na: not applicable.

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement henefits, by country

United States Ganada
2018 2017 2018 2012
Discount rate 400% 3.75% 375% 350%
Rate of compensation increase na na na na

na: not applicable.
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Equity securities 13% 12%
Debt securities 21% 20%
Diversified funds 10% 15%
Insurance contracts 39% A%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 16% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets.

These assets do not include occupied buitdings or assets used by the group nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend:.

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benafits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 6.7% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and older categories in 2018, to 4.4% in 2026 for
these categories. In 2018, a ong-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obiigations by €6 million and the pre-tax expense by £0.3 million. Conversely, & one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €5 million and the pre-tax expense by £0.2 million.

17.2.2  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement henefits Total

tin millions of euros) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current service cost 7 24 - - 27 24
Past service cost (2) {2) - - 12) (2)
{Gains)/losses on settlements - - - - - -
Other 1 1 - - 1 1
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 26 23 - . 26 23
Interest cost 22 17 5 5 27 22
Expected return on plan assets {11 (10) - - 1) {10}
Impact on other financial charges and income 1 7 5 5 16 12
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss 37 30 5 5 42 35

In 2018, benefits paid amounted to {i) €50 million with respect to pensions (€90 million in 2017), of which €17 million paid by pension funds
{€63 million in 2017}, and (i) €8 mition paid with respect to post-retirement benefits (E11 million in 2017).
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17.2.3  Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

The consolidation of Havas on July 3, 2017 resulted in a net provision of €104 million corresponding to historical carrying values reported in
Havas's Consoiidated Statement of Financial Position, stemming from benefit obligations valued at €254 million less the value of plan assets
for €150 miflicn.

Changes in value of benefit obiigations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

Employes defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2018
Benefit Fair value of plan Net
obhgation assets {provision)/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position

{in millions of euros) Note (A) (B) {BIA}

Opening balance 1,253 549 (104}
Current service cost 27 (27}
Past service cost {2) Z
{Gains}/losses an settlements - - -
Other - {1 (1

Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses {26)
interest cost 27 27
Expected retum on plan assets " i
Iimpact on ather financial charges and income {18)

Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss (a2)
Exparienca qains/losses) {a) {7} ] 2
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions {9 g
Actuarial gains/losses] related to changes in financial assumotions {bi {32} 3z
Adjustment reiated to asset ceiling - -

Actuarial gains/{losses} recognized in other comprehensive income 43

Contributions by plan participants 3 3 -

Contributions by employers - o8 58

Benefits paid by the fund 17 17

Benefits paid by the employer {42 {42}

Business combinations - -

Divestitures of businesses

Transfers - -

Foreign currency translation and other 4 (3} {7

Closing balance 1,205 553 {652)

of which wholly or partly funded benefits 739
wholly unfunded benefits (c) 406

of which assets related to employee benefit plans g
provisions for employee benefit plans (d) 16 {661}
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Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2017
Benefit Fair value of pian Net
abligation assets {provision}/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position

{in millions of eLros) Note {A) (B} {BHA
Opening balance 1179 432 (697}
Current service cost 24 {24)
Past service cost (2} 2
[Gains)/losses on settlements - - -
Other - {1) {1}
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 23}
Interest cost 72 (22}
Expected return on plan assets 10 10
Impact on other financial charges and income 12}
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss {35}
Experience qains/losses) (a) 25 {301 {55}
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions {10 10
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions {g) {87} 87
Adjustment related to asset ceiling -
Actuarial gains/{losses} recognized in other comprehensive income {42}
Contributions by plan participants 3 3 -
Contributions by employers - 63 63
Benefits paid by the fund (63} {63) -
Benefits paid by the employer {38] {38) -
Business combinations 2 - {2
Consolidation of Havas 254 150 {104)
Divestitures of businesses - - -
Transfers - -
Foreign currency transfation and other {56) (27) 29
Closing balance 1.253 549 (704}
of which whally or partly funded benefits 834
whalfy unfunded benefits {c) 415
of which assets related to employee benefit plans 8
provisions for employee benefit plans (d} 15 {712)

a. Includes the impact on the benefit obligations resulting from the difference between actuarial assumptions at the previous year-end and
effective benefits during the year, and the ditference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets during the vear.

b Included £29 million attributable to an increase in discount rates, of which €23 million relating to the United Kingdom and €4 miltion
relating to the United States.

. In accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, such
olans principally comprised supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-retirement benefit
plans in the United States.

d  Included a current liability of €51 million as of December 31, 2018 {compared to €53 million as of December 31, 2017).

e. Included -£72 million attributable to an increase in discount rates, of which -€5 million relating to the United States, -£19 million
relating to the United Kingdom, -€19 million relating to Germany and -€24 milkion relates to France.
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Pension henefits (a) Post-retirement benefits (b} Total
December 31, December 31, December 31,
lin millions of guros) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 07
Benefit obligation
US companies 113 18 107 111 220 229
UK companies 432 469 Vi 2 434 47
German companies 184 192 - - 184 192
French companies 278 268 3 3 282 n
Other 75 78 10 12 85 90
1,083 1,125 122 128 1,205 1283
Fair value of plan assets
US companies 52 54 - - 52 54
UK companies 395 398 - - 395 398
German companies ? 2 - - 2z 2
French companies 52 43 - - 52 43
Cther 52 52 - - 52 62
553 549 - - 553 549
Underfunded obligation
US companies {6%) {64) {107) (111) {168) {175)
UK companies (c} {37 71 {2} {2) {39) {73)
German companias (1829 (190} - - {182) {190}
French companies 1227} {225) {3} {3) (230} (223)
Other (23) (26) (10) {12} {33} (38)
{530) (576} {122} {128) (652) (704)
a.  No employee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and underfunded obligations

17.2.

For 2

under these plans.

Primarily relates to medical coverage {hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States. In accordance with current regulations in relation to the funding policy
of this type of plan, the plan is not funded. The main risks for the group relate to changes in discount rates as well as increases in the
cost of benefits (please refer to the sensitivity analysis described in Note 17.2.1).

In December 2017, the UMPGS fund in the United Kingdom purchased a buy-in insurance policy, covering pension benefits. This
insurance policy is an asset to the UMGPS plan. It was purchased following the exercise by some beneficiaries of the right to exit the
UMGPS plan against a payment in cash. Vivendi continues to underiake the benefits with regards ta the remaining beneficiaries of the
pian. In principle, the benefit cbligations are equal to the plan’s assets, and no net pension liability is recorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

4 Benefits estimation and future payments

019, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivendi to retirees are estimated at €44 million in respect of pensions, of which

€27 million relates to pension funds and €9 million relates to post-retirement benefits.

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi (in nominal value for the following
10 years} are as follows:

{in mi
2018
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

. ) I
Pengion benefits Post-retrement

llions of euros) benafits
4 10
58 10
43 9
60 9
53 9
2028 283 40
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Note 18  Share-based compensation plans

18.1

18.1.

Plans granted by Vivendi

1 Equity-settled instruments

Transactions relating to outstanding instruments that occurred in 2017 and 2018 were as follows:

Stock options Performance shares
Number of gutstanding Weighted average strike price Number of outstanding
stack options of cutstanding stock options performance shares
{in thousands} {in euros) {in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2016 24,620 191 3216
Granted - na 1,548
Exercised / lssuad {4,811 {a} 176 (342)
Forfeited {6,557 247 na
Cancelled {50) 202 {119)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 13.202 16.8 4,303
Granted - na 1,536
Exercised / {ssued (4,989) (a) 17.9 )
Farfeited (968) 20.2 na
Cancelled - na {378) b

Balance as of December 31, 2018 7,245 [c) 15.6 4,790 (d)

Acquired / Exercisable as of December 31, 2018 7,245 156 -

Rights acquired as of December 31, 2018 - na 418

na: not applicable.

a.

d

In 2018, beneficiaries exercised stock options at the weighted average stock market price of €273 (compared to €21.1 for stock options
exercised in 2017).

At its meeting held on February 15, 2018, after a review by the Corporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the
Supervisory Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives set for the cumulative fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017 for the
performance share plan granted in 2015 It was confirmed that nct all the criteria had been met. The final grant of the 2015
performance share plan represented 75% of the initial grant, as adjusted. Consequently, 243,464 rights to performance shares, which
were granted in 2015, were cancelled and 42,500 of the cancelled rights were for members of the Management Board. |n addition,
134,520 rights were cancelled due to the termination of employment of certain beneficiaries.

At the stock market price on December 31, 2018, the cumulated intrinsic value of remaining stock options toc be exercised was
estimated at €41 million.

The weighted-average remaining pericd before delivering performance shares was 1.7 years.

Please refer to Note 15 for a description of the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options and
performance shares.

Outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2018

Range of stike prices Nurmber Weighted average strike Weightgq average
price remaining life
(in thousands} {tn euros) (in years}
Under £15 1,087 11.9 3.3
£15-€16 2,558 15.8 1.3
£16-€17 2,305 181 03
£17-€18 1,315 17.2 23
More than €18 - - -
7,245 15.6 15
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Performance share plans

On May 17, 2018, Vivendi granted to employees and executive management 1,632 thousand performance shares, of which 175,000 were
granted to members of the Management Board On February 23, 2017, Vivendi granted to employees and executive management
1,644 thousand performance shares, 200,000 of which were to members of the Management Board.

As of May 17, 2018, the share price was £23.03 and the expected dividend yield was 1.95% {compared fo £16.95 and Z2.36% as of
February 23, 2017, respectively). After taking into account the cost associated with the retention period of the shares {described below), the
discount for non-transferability was set at B.1% of the share price as of May 17, 2018 {compared to 8.4% in 2017). Conseguently, the fair
value of each granted performance share was estimated at £19.85 {compared to €14.37 in 2017), corresponding to an aggregate fair value of
the plan of €32 million (compared to £22 million in 2017).

Subject to satisfaction of the performance criteria, performance shares definitely vest at the end of a three-year perfod, subject to the
presence of the beneficiaries in the group (vesting period), and the shares must be held by the beneficiaries for an additional twao-year period
{retention period). The compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The accounting methods that are
applied to estimate and recognize the value of these granted plans are described in Note 1.3.10.

Satisfaction of the objectives that determine the definitive grant of performance shares is assessed over a three-year sensecutive period
based on the foltowing performance criteria;
» Internal indicators {with a weighting of 70%):
- the group's earnings before interest and income taxes - £BIT (35%); and
- the group’s cash flow from operations aftar interest and income tax paid - CFAIT (35%.
= External indicators (with a weighting of 30%) tied to changes in Vivendi’s share price compared to the STOXX® Europe Media index
{20%) and to the CAC 40 index {10%)

The granted shares correspond to the same class of common shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, and as a result, at the end of
the three-year vesting period, beneficiaries will be entitled to the dividends and voting rights attached to these shares. The compensation
cost recognized corresponds to the estimated value of the equity instruments granted to the beneficiary, and is equal to the difference
between the fair valug of the sharas to be received and the aggregate discounted value of the dividends that were not received over the
vesting period.

In 2018, the charge recognized with respect to all performance share plans amounted to £16 million, compared to €18 million in 2017.
18.1.2 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

On July 19, 2018 and July 25, 2017, Vivendi made capital increases through employee stock purchase plans and leveraged plans which gave
the group’s employees and retirees an opportunity to subscribe for Vivendi shares.

These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restrictions during a five-year period, are subscribed to at a discount of up to 15%
on the average apening market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days preceding the date of the Management Board meeting
which set the subscrigtion price for the new shares to be issued. The difference between the subseription price for the shares and the share
price on that date represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries. In addition, Vivendi applied a discount for non-transferability during a
five-year period, which is deducted from the benefit granted to the employees. The value of the subscribed shares is estimated and fixed at
the date on which the subscription price for the new shares to be issued is set.

The applied valuation assumptions were as fotlows:

2018 2007
Grant date June 18 June 22
Data at grant date:
Share price (in eurps) 2157 2058
Expected dividend yield 2.09% 1.94%
Risk-free interest rate 011% -0.21%
b-year interest rate in fine 381% 393%
Repo rate 0.36% 0.36%
Discount for non-transferability per share 17.49% 18.44%

Under the employee stock purchase plan {ESPP), 734 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2018 through a company mutual fund (Fonds
Commun de Placement d'Entreprise) at a price of £19.327 per share {compared to 651 thousand shares at a price per share of €16.25 in
2017). In 2018, no charges were recognized, as the benefit granted, which is equal to the positive difference between the subscription price
and the stock price at the end of the subscription period on Jung 18, 2018 {discount of 10.40%) was lower than the discount for non-
transferability (17.49%). In 2017, the benefit granted {71 .00%) was higher than the discount for non-transferability (18.44%) and the charge
recognized with respect to the ESPP amounted to €1 million.
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Under the leveraged plan, 4,259 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2018 through a company mutual fund at a price of €19.327 ger share
(compared to 7,587 thousand shares at a price of £16.25 in 2017). The feveraged plan entitles employees and retirees of Vivendi and its
French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivendi shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted
subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain {calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan) equal to 10 shares
for each subscribed share. A financial institution mandated by Vivendi hedges this transaction. In addition, 193 thousand shares were
subscribed for as part of an employee shareholding plan impiemented for employees of the group’s Japanese subsidiaries (compared to
922 thousand shares as part of a similar ptan for employees of the group’s American subsidiaries in 2017}, In 2018, the charge recognized
with respect to the leveraged plan ameuntad to nearly €1 million, compared to €5 million in 2017.

Transactions carried out in France and foreign countries through company mutual funds (fonds Commun de Placement d'Entreprise. employee
stock purchase and leveraged plans) resulted in a capital increase cn July 19, 2018 of an aggregate value of £100 million {including issue
premium}, compared to €68 million on July 25, 2017.

18.2 Restricted and performance share plans granted by Havas

The restricted and performance share plans were valued based on the stock market price of Havas shares as of the date of the Board of
Directors’ meeting that approved the grant of these shares. Subject to satisfaction of the performance criteria for certain plans, shares
definitely vest at the end of a period of 36 to 51 months, subject to the presence of the beneficiaries in the group.

As of December 31, 2018, Havas's outstanding plans were as follows:

e On January 19, 2015, the Board of Directors granted 2,420 thousand performance shares for the employees and directors of
Havas SA and its subsidiaries in France and abroad.

¢ 0On March 19, 2015, the Board of Directors granted 70 thousand performance shares te Mr. Yannick Bolloré, Chief Executive Officer
of Havas SA.

+ On August 27, 2015, the Board of Directors granted a plan of 120 thousand performance shares to all employees cof French
companies.

« On May 10, 2016, the Board of Directors granted three plans for a total of 2,784 thousand restricted shares and performance shares
to the group’s senior executives and managers in France and abroad, including 90 thousand shares for Mr. Yannick Bollore.

¢ OnJuly 21, 2018, the Board of Directors granted 148 thousand restricted shares to all emptoyees in France.

o 0On February 28, 2017, the Board of Directors granted 1,699 thousand restricted shares to the group’s senior executives in France and
abroad.

In Tight of both the implementation of the mandatory squeeze-out resulting in the absence of liquidity for Havas shares and the change of
control of Havas to Vivendi, Vivendi's Supervisory Board resolved that the restricted and performance shares granted by Havas would be
replaced by Vivendi shares, on the basis of 0.44 Vivendi share for every ane Havas share.
In 2018, heneficiaries of Havas restricted or performance shares have beer individually given the option of being definitivety granted the
corresponding shares initially granted to them, subject to having entered into a liquidity contract with Vivendi, which contains:
« aput option, giving such beneficiaries the right to sell their Havas restricted and performance shares to Vivendi within thirty calendar
days from the first business day following the date of vesting of their Havas restricted and performance skares; and
« a call option, giving Vivendi the right to acquire the relevant Havas restricted and performance shares within fifteen calendar days
following the expiry of the exercise period of the abovementioned put option.
The exercise price of these options will be the cash equivaient, for one Havas share, of the market value of 0.44 Vivendi share calcuigted on
the basis of the average stock market price for Vivendi shares on Euronext Paris, weighted by the daily trading volumes on the regulated
market of Euronext Paris, during the ten trading days preceding the date of vesting of Havas restricted and performance shares.
By way of derogaticn, given the proximity of the vesting period applicable to a plan that had been granted on January 29, 2014 {vested an
April 29, 2018}, this exercise price was equal to the tender offer price, i.e., €9.25 per Havas share, for the beneficiaries of this plan.

As of December 31, 2018, 2,297 thousand Havas shares were subject to a liquidity agreement and will therefore be granted to the
beneficiaries subject to their presence upon maturity of each plan, and then acguired by Vivendi. 3570 thousand Havas shares wilt be
exchanged for approximatively 1,671 thousand Vivendi shares (on the basis of 0.44 Vivendi for every cne Havas share).
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Transactions relating to outstanding shares that have occurred since July 3, 2017 ithe date on which Vivendi took control of Havas) were as
follows:

Number of outstanding shares
{in thousands)

Balance as of Decembar 31, 2016 -
Resuiting fram the business combination 8275

Forfeited -
Cancelled (342)
Balance as of December 31, 2017 7,933
Forfeited (1,719} {a}
Cancelled {347)
Bzlance as of December 31, 2018 5,867

a.  With respect to the plan granted on January 29, 2014 and which expired on April 28, 2018, 870 thousand shares were paid in cash by
Vivendi at a price of £9.25 per share and 849 thousand Havas shares were exchanged for 374 thousand Vivendi shares, on the basis of
(.44 Vivendi share for every one Havas share in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plan described above.

In 2018, the charge recognized in respect of all restricted and performance share plans granted by Havas amounted to €10 million, compared
1o €4 miilion in the second half of 2017.

18.3 Restricted share plans granted by Gameloft S.E.

The restricted share plans of Gameloft S.E. (“Gameloft”) were valued on the basis of the stock market price of the Gameloft share as of the
date of the Board of Directors meeting that approved the grant of restricted shares, taking into account the retention period on the shares
following vesting. The definitive grant of shares tc beneficiaries is conditional upon the beneficiary’s employment contract with the company
being continuously in force throughout tha entire vesting period, of two or four years depending on the plan.

Transactions on outstanding restricted shares that oscurred in 2017 and 2018 were as follows:

Number of outstanding
restricted shares
{in thousands}

Balance as of December 31, 2016 1,333
Issued 1553}
lorfeited -
Cancelled {4B)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 734
issued {306
Forfeited -
Cancelled 187)

Balance as of December 31, 2018 341 {3

a.  The weighted-average remaining period befera delivering restricted shares was 0.96 year.

in the second haif of 2018, the beneficiaries approved the liquidity agreement proposed by Vivendi. The number of shares referred to in this
agreement was 1,606 thousand shares.

18.4 Dailymotion’s long-term incentive plan

In 2015, Vivendi implemented a fong-term incentive plan for a five-year period for certain key executives of Vivendi. This plan is tied to the
growth of Datlymotion’s enterprise value compared to its acquisition value, to be measured as of June 30, 2020, based upon an independent
expertise. In the event of an ingrease in Dailymotion’s value, the amount of the compensation with respect to the incentive plan is capped at
a percentage of such increase, depending on the beneficiary. Within the six months following June 30, 2020, the plan will be settled i cash,
if applicable.

in accordance with IFRS Z, a compensation expense must be estimated and accounted for at each reporting date until the payment date. As
of December 31, 2018, no charges were accounted for with respect ta this plan, unchanged compared 1o prior years.
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Note 19  Borrowings and other financial liabilities and financial risk management

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
{in millions of euros) Note  Total Long-term  Short-term Total Long-term Short-term
Bonds 192 4,050 3,350 700 4,150 4,050 100
Short-term marketatle secunties issued - - - - - -
Bank overdrafts 98 - 98 75 - 75
Accrued interest to be paid 17 - 17 18 - 18
Bank credit facilities (drawn confirmed} 18.3 - - - - - -
Cumulative effect of amortized cost 181 (14 (13} {1 (18) {18} -
Other 65 10 55 141 12 129
Borrowings at amortized cost 4,216 3,347 869 4,366 4,044 322
Commitments 1o purchase non-controlling interests 14 98 16 144 103 41
Derivative financial instruments 187 5 3 3 33 23 (& 10
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 4,336 3448 888 4,543 4,170 73

a  Inaccordance with IFRS 9, the fair value of the optiens pursuant to which Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay may redeem the bonds
in shares was reclassified as a reduction of financial assets as from January 1, 2018 {please refer to Notes 1Z and 28.2).

19.1  Fair market value of borrowings and other financial liabilities

December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
- Carrying Fair market Level {a) Carrying Fair market Level (2]
{in millions of euros) value value value value
Nominal value of borrowings 4,230 4,384
Cumulative effect of amortized cost {14 {18)
Borrowings at amortized cost 4216 4,29 na 4,366 4,506 na
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 114 114 3 144 144 3
Derivative financial instruments 5 6 2 33 33 2
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 4,336 4,411 4,543 4,683
na: not applicable.
a.  The three classification levels for the measurement of financial liabilities at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1.
192 Bonds
Interest rate (%) Matwity  December 31,2018 January 1, 2018
{in miihons of euras) nominal effective
Bonds issued by Vivendi SA
£850 million {September 2017 {a) 0.875% 0.99% Sep-24 850 B850
€600 million {November 2018) (a) 1.125% 1.18% Nov-23 600 600
£1 billion (May 2016) {a) 0.750% 0.50% May-21 1.000 1.000
£500 million {May 2016 {a) 1.875% 1.93% May-26 500 500
£700 million | December 2009} (bl 4.875% 4.85% Dec-19 700 700
Bonds issued by Havas SA
€400 miliion {December 2015) (a) 1.875% 1.94% Dec-20 400 400
£100 million {July 2013} (a} 3.1725% 3.1725% Jul-18 - el 100
Nominai value of bonds 4,050 4,150

a. Bonds listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange.
b.  Bonds listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
¢ This bond was fully redeemed at maturity in July 2018.

On March 22, 2017, Vivendi set up a €3 billion Euro Medium-Term Note {EMTN) program giving Vivendi full flexibility to issue bonds. This
program was renewed on March 23, 2018 and filed with the AMF (Autorité des marchés financters) under visa n®18-090 for a 1Z-month
period. Its renewal was approved by the Management Board on January 21, 2019.
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Bands issued by Vivendi SA contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and rights of payment (pari-passu
ranking). They also contain an early redemption clause in the event of a change of cantrol if, as & result of any such event, the long-term
rating of Vivendi SA g downgraded below investment grace status (Baa3/BBB-).

Bonds issued by Havas contain an early redemption clause in the event of a change of control”.

19.3 Bank credit facilities

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi SA had a €2 billion undrawn syndicated bank credit facility, maturing on October 29, 2021. Taking into
account the absence of short-term marketable securities issued and backed by this bank credit facility, €2 billion of this facility was available
as of December 31, 2018. At the end of each half-year, Vivendi SA was required to comply with a Proportianate Financial Net Debt” to
EBITDA’ financial covenant over a 12-month rolling period, not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loan. Non-compliance with this covenant
could result in the early redemption of the bank credit facility if it were drawn, or its cancellation. As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi SA was
in compliance with its financial covenant.

On January 18, 2019, Vivendi SA’s syndicated bank credit facifity was amended for an amount of £2.2 billion and its maturity was extended
to January 16, 2024 {with two one-year extension options). In addition, committed bilateral credit facilities granted by leading banks were
signed by Vivendi in January 2019, for an aggregate available amount of €1 .2 bitlion maturing in January 2024.

All these credit facilities are no longer required to comply with financial covenants but they contain customary provisions relating to events
of default and covenants applicabte to Vivendi in terms of negative pledge and merger transactions.

As of February 11, 2019 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018), €3.3 hillion of Vivendi SA’s facilities were available, taking into account the short-term marketable securities
issued and backed by these credit facilities for €100 million.

On February 11, 2018, Vivendi's Management Board adopted a proposal to increase the maximum amount of Vivendi SA's short-term
marketable securities program autharized by the Bangue de France to €3.4 billion. This proposal was presented to, and approved by,
Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 14, 2019.

In addition, Havas SA has committed gredit facilities, undrawn as of December 31, 2018, granted by leading banks for an aggregate amount
of €510 millien, including €330 million maturing in 2020, €30 milfion maturing in 2021 and €150 million matuting in 2023. These credit
facilities are required to comply with the following financial covenants at each annual closing date:

» Adjusted EBITDA" to Net interest expense’ ratio must be higher than 3.5"; and

e Adjusted Net Debt’ to Adjusted EBITDA ratio must be lower than 3.

As of February 11, 2019 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018), £3.7 billion of Vivendi group’s {Vivendi SA and Havas SA) facilities were available, taking into account the short-
term marketable securities issued and backed by these credit facilities for €240 million.

*In the bonds issued in May 2016 and November 2016, Bolioré Group was carved out of the change-of cantrol provision.
* Change of control is defined as the settlement/delivery of a tender offer fellowing which one or more individual(s) or legaf entitie]s) which does/do niot belong to Bolloré Group
and Vivendi, acting i 1solation or in concert, acquirefs) over 50% of Havas SA’s share capital or voting rights.
" Relates to Financial Net Debt as defined by Vivend), plus derivative financial instruments whose underlying instruments are not Financial Net Debt items and commitments to
purchase non-controfling interests.

Aelates to EBITDA as defined by Vivendi plus dividends received from unconsolidated companies.
' Corresponds, on the basis af Havas's consolidated financial statements as of December 31 of each year, to income from operations plus imtangitle and tangible fixed asset
depreciation and amortization, stock option charges and other compensation as defined try IFRS 2.
' Corresponds, on the basis of Havas's consolidated financial statemeants as of December 31 of each year, to the total amount of financial expenses minus interest income,
exciuding net provisions on financial assets and financial expenses in connection with the repurchase or the restructuring of the convertible bond lines.
" This covenant does not apply to the credit facilities meturing in 2023,
' Corresponds. 3t @ given date and on the basis of Havas's consolidaied financial statements, 1o convertible bonds and other borrovengs and fingncial Liabilities fexcivding
convertible bonds ta be redgemed in shares) minus cash and cash equivalents as recorded in Havas's consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS.
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194 Borrowings by maturity

{in miflions of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Maturity

<1 year 3l 869 21% 322 7%
Between 1 and 2 years 403 3% 703 16%
Between Z and 3 years 1.003 24% 406 9%
Between 3 and 4 years 1 - 1,007 23%
Between 4 and b years 601 14% - -
> 5 years 1,353 32% 1.952 45%
Nominal value of borrowings 4,230 100% 4,384 100%

a.  Asof December 31, 2018, short-term borrowings (with a maturity period of less than one year) notably included Vivendi's bond maturing
in December 2019 for €700 million, as weli as bank overdrafts for €98 million. As of January 1, 2018, they notably included Havas SA's
bend, which expired on July 11, 2018 far €10C million, as well as bank overdrafts for €75 million.

The average “economic” term of the group’s financiat debt, calculated based on the assumption that available medium term credit lines may
be used to redeem the group’s shortest term borrowings, was 5.3 years as of December 31, 2018 {taking into account the rew bank financing
signed in January 2019), compared to 5.0 years as of December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2018, the future undiscounted cash flows related to borrowings and other financial liabilities amounted to £4,558 million
(compared to €4.862 million as of January 1, 2018) with a carrying value of €4,336 million (compared to £4,543 millicn as of January 1, 2018)
and are set out in Note 22.1 in the group’s contractual minimum future payments schedule.

19.5 Interest rate risk management

Vivendi’s interest rate risk management seeks to reduce its net exposure to interest rate increases. Therefore, Vivendi uses, if needed, pay-
floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps. These instruments thus enable the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows
related to interest payments on borrowings.

As of December 31, 2018, the nominat value of borrowings at fixed interest rate amounted to €4,097 million (compared to €4,218 million as
of December 31, 2017) and the nominal vaiue of borrowings at floating interest rate amounted to €133 million (compared to €166 million as
of December 31, 2017).

As of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, Vivendi did not subscribe to any pay-floating or pay-fixed interest rate swaps.

19.6  Foreign currency risk management

Breakdown by currency

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018
Euro - EUR 4111 7% 4,288 8%
US dollar - USD 8 - 1 -
Other 1 3% 85 2%
Nominal value of borrowings hefore hedging 4,230 100% 4,384 100%

Currency swaps USD 693 1.334

Other currency swaps {71 192

Net total of hedging instruments (a) 6822 1.526
Euro - EUR 4733 112% 5814 133%
US dollar - USD (685} -16% (1333} 31%
Other 182 4% {97) 2%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 4,230 100% 4,384 108%

2. Notional amounts of hedging instruments translated into euros at the closing rates.
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Foreign currency risk

The group’s foreign currency risk management is centralized by Vivendi SA’s Financing and Treasury Cepartment for all its controlled
subsidiaries, except if, during a transition period, an acquired subsidiary is authorized to pursue, at its leval, spot and forward exchange
transactions. This policy primarily seeks to hedge budget exposures (at an 80% level} resulting frem menetary flows generated by operations
performed in currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments (at a 100% level), primarily reiating to the acquisition
of editorial content (e.g., sports, audiovisuzl and film rights) and certain capital expenditures (e.g., set-top boxes), realized in currencies other
than the euro. Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a maturity period of less than one
year. Considering the foreign currency hedging instruments set up, an unfavorable and uniform eturo change of 1% against all foreign
currencies in position as of December 31, 2018, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings (arourd €1 miflion}. In
addition, the group may hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and liahilities.
Moreover, due to their non-significant nature, net exposures related to subsidiaries’ net working capital {internal flows of rovalties as well as
external purchases) are generally not hedged. The associated risks are settled at the end of each month by transtating the amounts into the
functional currency of the relevant operating entities.

The following tables set aut the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group; the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be received and the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered at contractual exchange rates:

December 31, 2018

Notional amounts Fair value
fin millions of euros) Total UsD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the evro {408) {(131) {170) {62} {45} 3
Purchases against the euro 1,727 947 128 133 524 19 2
Other - {235) 100 94 4 5 1
1,319 576 58 165 520 24 6
Breakdown by accounting categary gf foreign curiency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro {33) {1} {18} - (16} - -
Purchases against the eurg a7 45 - - 47 4 -
Other - (23 14 - 9 - -
59 21 {2) - 40 [ -
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro {313} {130) {154 - {29) - 3
Purchases against the euro 913 780 - 133 - 13 1
Other - [136) 86 49 1 5 1
600 514 {68) 182 (28) 18 5
Economic Hedging (a)
Sales against the euro (62) - (62) - .
Purchases against the guro 122 " 128 - 477 2 1
Other - [78) - 45 31 - -
660 L) | 123 {17) 508 2 1
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January 1, 2018

Notional amounts Fair value

{in mullions of euros) Total Usb PLN (GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {362} {73} (132) {30) {1271 2 3
Purchases against the euro 2,094 1,548 93 193 260 3 26
Other - 68 {95} Z 25 - 4

1,732 1,543 (134) 165 158 5 3
Breakdown by accounting cateqory of foreign currency hedaing instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro {79 - {7 (1) {61} 2
Purchases against the euro 50 23 - 2 25
Other - 16 {16} - - -

{29) 39 {23) {9) (36) 2 -
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the guro (281} {73) {125) {19) {64) - 3
Purchases against the euro 83N 781 - 106 4 1 19
Other - 86 (79) 2 {9) - 3
610 794 {204} 89 {69) 1 25

Economic Hedging {a)
Sales against the euro {2) - - - {2} - -
Purchases against the eurg 1.153 744 a3 85 3 2 7
{(ther (34) - - 34 - 1

1,151 Mo 93 85 263 2 8

a. The economic hedging instruments relate to derivative financial instruments that are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

(AS 9.

In addition, the depreciation of the British pound (GBP} against the euro, following the referendum held cn June 23, 2016 endorsing the
United Kingdom's exit from the European Union {"Brexit™), mainly impacted Universal Music Group’s revenues in 2017. In addition, Vivendi
has thorcughly reviewed the impact of interest and foreign exchange rate changes on the group’s debt and financial assets, as well as on
pension funds, ard a report was submitted to Vivendi's Audit Committee to that effect. As of the date of this report, no significant impact on
Vivendi's consolidated financial position has been recognized, Other potential effects that could impact the group as a result of the Brexit
will be assessed once tha terms of the United Kingdom’s departure from the European Union are known.

19.7 Derivative financial instruments

Value on the Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros)

Interest rate risk management

Foreign currency risk management

Other

Derivative financial instruments

Deduction of current derivative financial instruments
Non-current derivative financial instruments

Note
19.5
19.6

December 31, 2018

January 1, 2018

- {8l

Assets Liabilitias Assets Liabilities
24 ] 5 33
14 - 14
38 6 19 33
(7] {3 {4 {10}
ki 3 15 23

a Inaccordance with IFRS 8, the fair value of the options pursuant to which Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay may redeem the bonds
in shares was reclassified as a reduction of financial assets as from January 1, 2018 {please refer to Notes 12 and 28.2).
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Cash Flow Hedge

Net Investment

Interest rate risk Foreign cusrency Hedge Total
fin milligns of suros) management risk management
Balance as of December 31, 2016 2 3 19 44
Charges and income directly recognized in equity - {7 42 35
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss 12} {1 {3)
Tax effect - 1 - 1
Balance as of December 31, 2017 - (4) 81 1
IFRS 9 restatements - 1 - 1
Balance as of January 1, 2018 - {3) 81 78
Charges and income directly recognized in equity - 3 3
ltems to be reclassified to profit or Joss
Tax effect - -
Balance as of December 31, 2018 - - 81 81

198 Creditratings

As of February 11, 2019 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year

ended December 31, Z018}, Vivendi's credit ratings were as foilows:

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Outlook

Standard & Poor's Long-term corperate debt BBB } Stable
Senior unsecured debt BBB

Moody's Long-term senior unsecured debt Baa? Stable

Note20  Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

201 Adjustments

{in millians of eurog)

Items related to operating activities with no cash impact

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Change tn provision, net

Other non-cash items fram EBIT

Gther

Reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States
Income from equity affiliates - operational

Praceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

Adjustments

20.2 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2018, there was no significant investing and financing activities with no cash impact.

Year ended December 31,

Note 2018 2017

3 153 467
(25} 131
4 (6}
23 - (27)
1" 7) {146)
7 2

[e) 253

On July B, 2017, & portion of the “new ORAN 1" issued by Banijay Group Holding was eariy redeemed in cash for €39 million and converted
into Banijay Group Holding shares, bringing Vivendi's interest in Banijay Group Holding from 26.2% to 31.4% (please refer to Note 11.11.
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Note21  Related parties

Vivendi's related parties are the corporate officers, who are members of Vivendi's Superviscry and Management Boards, and other related
parties including:

« companies fully consolidated by Vivendi. The transactions between these companies have been eliminated for the preparation of

Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements;

= companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence;

« all companies in which corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights;

« minority shareholders exercising & significant influence aver the group's subsidiaries; and

« Bolloré Group's related parties, as Vivendi has been fully consolidated by Bolloré Group since April 26, 2017.

211 Corporate officers

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is currently comprised of 12 members, including an employee shareholder reprasentative and an emplayee
representative. It is made up of six women, i.e., a ratio of 55% (in accordance with Law n®2011-103 of January 27, 2011, the employee
representative is not taken intc account for the calculation of this percentage). In 2018, the composition of the Supervisory Board has
changed as follows:
« onApril 19, 2618, Vivendi's General Shareholders' Meeting appointed Ms. Michéle Reiser as a member of the Supervisory Board for
a four-year term, and renewed the terms of office of Ms. Afiza Jabis, Ms. Cathia Lawson-Hall, Ms. Katie Stanton and Mr. Philippe
Bénacin as members of the Supervisory Board for the same period; and
« following the Shareholders' Meeting of April 18, 2018, Vivendi's Supervisory Board unanimously appointed Mr. Yannick Bolloré as
Chairman, replacing Mr. Vincent Bolioré, who remains a member of the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board alse confirmed
Mr. Philippe Bénacin as Vice-Chairman.

With respect to fiscal year 2018, the gross compensation ¢f the Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to €400,000, including
directors’ fees of €60,000, allocated as follows
« the gross compensation of Mr. Vincent Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board until Apri) 19, 2018, amounted to €122,376,
including directars’ fees of €20,000; for 2017, the compensation of Mr. Vincent Bolloré as Chairman of the Supervisory Board
amounted to £400,000, including directors’ fees of €60,000; and
= the gross compensation of Mr. Yannick Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board since April 19, 2018, amounted to €277.624,
including directors” fees of £40,000.

In addition, as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Havas, a Vivendi subsidiary. Mr. Yannick Bolloré received a fixed compensation, as
well as benefits in kind, totaling a gross amount of £1,058,993 in 2018 {no variable compensation was paid in 2018 with respect to fiscal
year 2017), compared to £1,408,993 in 2017 (fixed and variable compensation). On May 17, 2018, Mr. Yannick Bolloré benefited from an
aflocation of 18,000 Vivendi's performance shares, subject to the satisfaction of the performance ¢riteria Iplease refer to Note 18.1.1).

The gross amount of directors’ fees paid 10 the other members of the Supervisory Board with respect to fiscal year 2018 was an aggregate
gross amount of £1,140,00C {compared to €1,1%7,600 with respect to fiscal year 2017).

Moreover, on March 26, 2018, the services contract between Mr, Dominigue Delport and Vivendi terminated, as did his membership on the
Corporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee of Vivendi's Supervisory Board, although he remains a member of the
Board. Under the terms of the services contract, since October 1, 2015, Mr. Dominique Celport had been providing assistance and advice
regarding the creation and use of new digital content as part of the development of Dailymotion. As a result of the termination of this
contract, Mr. Dominique Delport no longer benefits from the long-term incentive plan tied to the growth of Dailymotion’s enterprise value
compared to its acquisition value and no longer has any operational responsibilities within the group. Under the services contract,
Mr. Dominique Delport received a gross amount of €75,00C in 2018, compared to €300,000 in 2017,

Finally, as an employee of Havas Media France {subsidiary of Havas SA), Mr. Dominique Delport received & total gross compensation of
€1,775,437 in 2018 (compared to €1,446,312 in 2017).
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Management Board

The Management Board is currently comprised of seven members. At its meeting held on May 17, 2018, the Supervisory Board, upon the
recomimendation of the Carporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, unanimously approved the renewal for a four-
vear period of the term of cffice {which expired on June 23, 2018) of each member of the Management Board and its Chairman.

In 2018, the gross compensation paid by the Vivendi group to the Management Board members amounted to €9.6 million (compared to
£8.7 million in 2017). This amount inciuded:
+ fixed compensation of £€5.3 million {compared to £4.9 miilion in 2017);
» variable compensation of €3.6 million paid in 2018 with respect to fiscal year 2017 (compared to £3.4 million paid In 2017 with
respect to fiscal year 2016);
» other compensation and directors’ fees paid by controlled subsidiaries; and
» benefits in kind.

The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans granted to the members of the Management
Board amounted to €3.3 million in 2018 {compared to €3.7 million in 2017).

The Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 14, 2019, confirmed that the performance criteria applying to the growth rate of rights
under the group defined benefit supplemental pension plan had been met with respect to fiscal year 2018. The charge recorded by Vivendi
refated to vested rights urder pension commitments in favor of Management Board members amounted to €7.0 million {compared to
€8.7 million in 2017). As of December 31, 2018, the amount of net pension obligations toward the Management Board members amounted to
£44.4 million {compared to €43.0 million as of December 31, 2017).

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr. Amaud de Puyfontaine waived his employment contract. in accordance with the resolutions
approved by the General Sharsholders’ Meeting held on April 17, 2015, he was granted entitlement to severance compensation in the event
of the involuntary termination of his employment, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions. At its meeting held on February 14,
2019, the Supervisory Board, upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Cammittee, decided:
s 10 ingrease from 80% to 80% the minimum achievemant level of performance objectives conditioning the payment of the severance
compensation; and
« 1o revoke his right to maintain all rights to performance shares, These rights may be maintained, if appropriate, pro rata to the
duraticn of his presence within the Group during the vesting period, subject to the satisfaction of the refated performance criteria.
At its meetings hefd on May 17, 2018 and July 30, 2018, after having examined the impact of the termination of his executive duties with
Telecom ltalia on April 24, 2018%, the Supervisory Board. upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Nominations and
Remuneration Committes, decided (i} to no longer apply a pro rata factor to his reference compensation for 2018, (i) to increase the fixed
part of his reference compensation to €1,400,000 for 2018, the performance criteria and thresholds used to determine the variable part
remain unchanged, and (i) to pay him a single amount of €390,000.
On May 17, 2018, the Chairman of the Management Board received an annual grant of 50,000 performance shares.

The report on corporate governance that will be in chapter 3 of the 2018 Annual Report will contain a detailed description of the
compensaticn policy, setting cut the prirciples and criteria for determining, distributing and attributing the fixed and variabie components of
the overall compensation and the benefits of any kind attriputable to Vivendi SA’s corporate officers in connection with their term of office.
This chapter wifl also contain details of the fixed and variable components of their compensation and the benefits of any kind paid or
attributed to the corporate officers with respect to fiscal year 2018.

21.2 Bolloré Group

On February 16, 2018, Bolloré Group, which keld 34.7 million call options on Vivendi shares, announced that it had exercised Z1.4 million
optians, representing 1.7% of Vivendi's share capital, at an average exercise price of £16.57, which had been previously set in October 2016.
This transaction did not change Bolleré Group's reported interest in Vivendi given the assimilation of these options pursuant to
Article L. 233-9 |, 4° of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce).

On March 2, 2018, Bolloré Group acquired 2 million Vivendi shares on the markat at a price of €20.425 per share. Since that date, and until
June 25, 2018, Bolloré Group acquired 57.3 million Vivendi shares on the market at an average price of €20.95 per share.

On June 25, 2018, Bolloré Group crossed the 25% threshold of Vivendi's share capital and held 325,133,093 Vivendi shares, representing
415,565,937 voting rights, i.e., 25.01% of the share capital and 29.20% of the gross voting rights. Upon crossing this 25% threshold of
Vivendi's share capital and in accordance with Article L. 233-7, paragraph VII of the French Commercial Code {Code ds commerce) and Article
22317 of the AMF's General Reguiations {Réglement Généradl, Mr. Vincent Bolloré bath for himse!f and for Compagnie de Cornouaitle, which

- Efimination of the payment by Telecom ltalia of his fixed compensation with respect 1o fiscal year 2018 as from that date and non-payment of his variable compensation with
respect to fiscal year 2017.
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he controls and with whom he is deemed by law to be acting in concert, made the following statement of intent with respect to Vivendi for
the next six months (please refer to AMF notice No. 218C1161, dated July 2, 2018):

e on.June 25, 2018, Compagnie de Cornouaille acquired 1,044,622 additional shares which were financed using its available cash;

» the declarant has not entered into any agreement establishing a concerted action with respect to Vivendi;

= the declarant contemplates continuing to purchase Vivendi shares depending primarily on market opportunities;

» since April 26, 2017, the declarant aiready meats the criteria for exclusive control in accordance with [FRS 10, but not those set by
Article L.233-3 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce); the declarant wishes to continue strengthening its control
without Faunching a public tender offer for Vivendi;

e the investment in Vivendi reflects Bolloré Group's confidence in Vivendi's capacity to develop and its willingness to support Vivendi
in its strateqy;

= the declarant does not contemplate any of the transactions referred to in Article 223-17 |, 6° of the AMF's General Regulations
(Reglement Général), subject to the potential transactions regarding Universal Music Group (UMG) recently mentioned by Yivendi;

» the declarant holds 13,344,830 call options that enable it to acquire 13,344,830 Vivendi shares, at any time until June 25, 2019,
and it plans to exercise them depending, in particular, on market conditions;

« the declarant is party to a temporary sale agreement, as borrower, in respect of 34,700,000 Vivendi shares carrying an equal
amount of voting rights; the declarant is not a party to any other temporary sale agreement; and

= the declarant plans to request additional appointments to the company’s Supervisory Board.

Between June 26 and December 27, 2018, Bolloré Group acquired 41 6 milfiion Vivendi shares an the market at an average price of £21.30
per share. On Octeber 18, October 25, and December 21, 2018, Bolloré Group declared that it had early returned a total of 23.5 million
Vivend shares of the 34.7 million temporarily held. As of December 27, 2018, Bolloré Group declared that it held 343,224,948" Vivend|
shares representing 395,657,787 voting rights, i.e., 26.28% of Vivendi's share capital and 28.51% of the gross voting rights.

In light of the analysis conducted by Bolfloré Group, following Vivendi's General Sharsholders’ Meeting held on April 25, 2017, of other facts
and circumstances that indicate its ability to direct the relevant activities of Vivendi, Bolloré Group determined that the conditions of controf
within the meaning of IFRS 10 were fulfilled. The sharsholding in Vivendi, which had previously been accounted for using the equity method
since October 7, 2016, was fully consolidated from April 26, 2017.

In addition, an April 24, 2018, as part of the payment of the dividend by Vivendi to its shargholders with respect to fiscal year 2017, Bolloré
Group received a dividend of €134 million (compared to a dividend with respect to fiscal year 2016 of £92 millian paid in 2017).

Moreover, on July 3, 2017, Vivendi acquired the 59.2% interest in Havas held by Bolloré Group for £2,.317 million paid in cash. This
transaction is regulated by the procedure applying to related-party agreements and the price of €9.25 per share was submitted to a third-
party appraisal in accordance with appticeble laws and regulations. Since July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolidated Havas and the
transactions between Havas and Vivendi's other subsidiaries are eliminated within the intersegment transactions.

21.3  Other related-party transactions

Vivendi's other refated parties are companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influerce (i.e., primarily Telecom ltalia, Banijay
Group Holding and Vevo: please refer to Note 11) and companies in which Vivendi's corporate officers or their close relatives hald significant
voting rights. They notably included Bolloré Group and its subsidiaries, either directly or indirectly controlled by Mr. Vincent Bolloré, a
member of Vivendl's Supervisory Board, and his family. Moreover, as Bolloré Group has fully consolidated Vivendi since April 26, 2017,
Vivendi's refated parties also include Bolleré Group's related parties (in particular Mediobanca).

In addition, certain Vivendi subsidiaries maintain business relationships, on an arm’s-length basis, involving non-material amounts, with
Quinta Communications Group (controlled by Mr. Tarak Ban Ammar, a member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board), Groupe Nuxe {controlled by
Ms. Aliza Jabés, a member of Vivendi's Supervisory Board} and Interparfums (controtled by Mr. Philippe Bénacin, Vice Chairman of Vivendi's
Supervisory Board}.

In addition, the table below also includes the transactions with Havas Group and its subsidiaries (previously 58 2% held by Bolloré Group and
whose Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Yannick BoBoré, Chairman of Vivendi's Supervisory Board) until the consolidation of
Havas in Vivendi's Financial Statements on July 3, 2017.

“Including (i} 11,225,000 Vivend: shares temporarily held by Compagnie de Cornouaille pursuant to a temporary share sale agreement (imtially in respect of 34,700,000 Vivendi
shares for its benafit), which may be returned, in wholg or in part, at any time untif June 26, 2013, and (i} 13,344,830 Vivendi shares as a result of off-market acquisition of
physically-settied calf options that are exercisable at any time until June 25, 2019 and classified as assimilated shares by Compagnie de Cornouaille pursvant to Article L.233-
31, 4° of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce)
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{in millions of euros)
Assets
Non-current content assets
Non-current financial assets
Of which Baniay Group Holding and Lov Banisay bonds
Trade accounts recgivable and other
Of which Bolloré Goup
Telecom italia fa}
Banifjay Group Holding (b)
Mediobanca {c)
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other
Of which Boitoré Growp
Banijay Group Hoiding {b)

Off-balance sheet contractual obligations, net
Of which Banifay Group Holding (b

Statement of earnings
Operating income
Of which Bolloré Groug
Havas Group {d]
Telecom Htalia (a)
Banijay Group Holding i)
Medicbanca (c}
Quinta Communications (e}
Other finterparfums and Groupe Nuxe) {f)
Operating expenses
Of which Bolloré Group
Havas Group {d)
Banijay Group Holding (b
Quinta Communications (e}
Cther finterparfums and Groupe Nuxe) ff]

Advertising transactions
Of which revenue made through Havas's agencies (d)

media purchases made through Havas's agencies (d/

na: not applicable.
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December 31, 2018

January 1, 2018

1

1

86 103
73 3z
60 66
5 4

28 34
z z
3 5

28 Al
13 in
10 8
168 183
140 180
Year ended Decerber 31,
2018 2017

236 214
8 5

na 3
24 15
z 2

] -

z z
(108 (136)
24) {12}
na {26/
{52} {60)
na 26
na {36}

a  Certain Vivendi subsidiaries have rendered operating services to Telecom ltalia and its subsidiaries, on an arm's-length basis {mainly
communication services and music sales): operating income of €14.8 miltion for Havas (£6.9 million for the second half of 2017),
€4 4 million for Universat Music Group (6.3 million in 2017), 4.2 million for Gameloft (€1.4 miflicn in 2017) and €0.9 million for Vivendi

Content (€0.1 million in 2017).

b Vivendi and its subsidiaries {mainiy Canal+ Group) entered into production and program purchase agreements with certain Banijay

Group Holding subsidiaries on an arm's-iength basis.

¢ Certain Havas Group subsiciaries have rendered communications services to Medicbanca and its subsidiaries on an arm's-length basis.

d  Asfrom July 3, 2017, Vivendi has fully consolidated Havas and the transactions between Havas and Vivendi's other subsidiaries have
been eliminated within the intersegment transactions. During the first half of 2017, certain Havas Group subsidiaries have rendered

operating services 1o Vivendi and its subsidiaries on an arm’s-length hasis. Regarding Canal+ Group:

= a5 part of their advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions with Canak+ Group through media

agencies for an aggregate amount of €25 million for the first half of 2017,

e as part of the advertising campaigns promoting Canal+, Canalsat and Canalplay, Canal+ Group purchased media from major media

companies through Havas Group and its media agencies for €34 million far the first haif of 2017;

« media and production services, broadcasting rights and fess were realized by Havas Group and its subsidiaries for £12 mitlion for

the first half of 2017; and
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Havas Group and its subsidiaries designed and developed advertising campaigns promating Canal+ Group for €5 million for the first
half of 2017,

e.  Canal+ Group scld rights to Studiocanal cataleg movies to Quinta Communications, notably Paddington Z, representing an operating
income of €1.7million in 2018 {compared tc €1.9 million in 2017). In addition, on Octcber 8, 2015, Studiocanal and Quinta
Communications entered into an agreement to sell video, TV and Video-on-demand exploitation rights in France and in other French-
speaking territories for 28 movies, for a five-year period. Pursuant to this contract, Canal+ Group recorded an operating charge of
£0.3 miilion in 2018 {unchanged compared to 2017},

Certain Vivendi subsidiaries maintained business relaticnships, on an arm’s-length basis, involving non-significant ameunts with
Interparfums and Groupe Nuxe.

The following censtitutes complementary information about certain related-party transactions (of which the amounts are included in the
table above):

CanalOlympia {Vivendi Village's subsidiary) and Balloré Africa Logistics (Bolloré Group's subsidiary) entered into an agreement to
take over the operations of nine Bluezones and two Bluebus lines of Boiloré Africa Logistics, for an eight-year period starting
January 1, 2018, with the aim to develop the CanalClympia’s venues network in Africa. For the occupancy of land and buildings, and
for the solar energy supply, CanalOlympia payed a rent of €3.5 million in 2018, and will pay a rent of €1 million in 2019, and then
€1 bmillion per year from 2020 to 2027. Given that CanalOlympia and Bolloré Africa Logistics have no common directors and
executive managers, this agreement is not regulated by the procedure applying to related-party agreements.

On June 2, 2017, Vivendi SA acquired a 5% interest in the Economic Interest Grouping (GIE - Groupement d'intérét économique) Fleet
Management Services, a Bolloré Group's subsidiary dedicated, among other things, to providing air transport operations, for a
consideration of €0.1 million. This acquisition entailed the correlative transfer of the corresponding share of reciprocal receivables
and payables related to the special depraciation of the GIE's assets, i.e., receivables for £1.8 million and payabies for the same
ameunt as of December 31, 2018 {(compared to £1.6 million as of December 31, 2017}, In addition, Havas acquired a 2% interest in
this GIE. In 2017, the charge recognized with respect to the use of the GIE's services by Vivendi Group amounted to €2.3 million in
2018 icompared to €1.4 million in 2017).
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Vivendi's material contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilitias include:
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» certain contractual obligations relating to the group’s business cparations, such as content commitments (please refer to Note 10.2},
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-bafance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts

and purchase or investment commitments;

« commitments related to the group’s consolidation scope made under acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or sale
commitments, contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments under sharghalders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivendi's assets;

s commitments related to the group’s finanging: undrawn confirmed bank cradit facilities as well as the management of interest rate,
fareign currency and liquidity risks (please refer to Note 19); and

« contingent assets and {igbiiities resulting from legal proceedings in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either plaintiff or

defendant (please refer to Nate 23).

221  Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

{in millions of euros) Note
Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Content liabilities 10.2
Consolidated statement of financial position items
Contractual content commitments 0.2

Commerciai commitments

Operating leases and subleases

Net commitments not recorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position

Contractual oblinations and commercial commitments

Off-balance sheet commercial commitments

fin millions of eurns}
Satellite transponders
Investment commitments
Dther

Given commitments
Satellite transponders
Other (a)

Received commitments
Net total

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018

Payments due in

Total minimum futurg
payments as of

Total 2019 2020-2023 Afer 2023  December 31, 2017
4,558 944 7212 1,402 4,862
2,949 2817 13 1 2,592
7.507 3,761 2343 1,403 7444
5,339 2,523 2,763 53 5,630

128 (210} 151 187 {1.204)
1,453 207 678 570 1,502
6,920 2,520 3,590 810 5,928

14,421 6281 5933 2213 13,312

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018

Total minimum future

Duegin payments as of
Total 2019 2020-2023 After 2023 December 31,2017
471 77 259 135 390
179 116 47 16 125
560 255 269 36 772
1210 448 575 187 1,287
124 (55) {58} {133)
{958) {543) (365} 2,358)
(1,082) {658} {424} - {2,491)
128 {219) 151 187 {1.208)

a.  Includes minimum guarantees to be received by the group pursuant to distribution agreements entered into with third parties, notably

Intarnet Service Providers and other digital platforms.

In addition, Canal+ Group entered into distribution agreements of Canal channels with the telecom cperators Free, Orange and
Bouygues Telecom. The variable arounts of these commitments, which are based on the number of subscribers, cannct te reliably
determined and are not reparted in either the Statemant of Financial Position or described in the commitments. They are instead

recorded as an expense or income in the period in which they were incurred.
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In additicn, an March 14, 2017, Boulogne Studios, a wholly-ownad subsidiary of Vivendi, entered into a bilaterat land purchase agreement
with “Val de Seine Aménagement”, the local public urban developer of the Parisian suburk Boutogne-Billancourt, for a construction project
on the fle Seguin. This purchase agreement is subject to certain conditicns precedent, in particular the procurement of a building permit. This
project would consist of building a campus of approximately 150,000 m2 which could, in five to seven years, house a group of companies
notably operating in business sectors such as media and content, as well as digital, sports and sustainable develepment, On that date, to
guarantee the satisfaction of its purchase obligations amounting to & total of approximately €330 mittian, Vivendi paid a €70 million deposit
that will be returned if the transacticn is not completed by Vivendi.

Off-balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Minimum future leases as of December 31, 2018 Total mmimum

Due in future leases as of
{in millions of euros) Total 2019 2020-2023  After 2023 December 31, 2017
Buildings 1,436 208 664 564 1,502
Other 21 3 12 6 9
Leases 1.457 21 676 510 1511
Buildings {4} |4} - - 9
Subleases {4} {4) - - (9)
Net total 1453 207 676 510 1,502

22.2  QOther commitments given or received relating to operations

Given commitments amounted cumulatively to €37 million (compared to €40 million as of December 31, 2017). In addition, Vivendi and Havas
have granted guarantees in various forms to financial institutions or third parties on behalf of their subsidiaries in the course of their
operations.

Received commitments amounted cumulatively to €10 million {compared to £9 million as of December 31, 2017}

22.3  Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivendi has granted cr received commitments to purchase or sell
securities:

« Vivendi has given an undertaking to Ubisoft to sell all the shares it owns by March 7, 2019, the settlement date. In addition, Vivendi
made the commitment to refrain from purchasing Ubisoft shares for a period of five years (please refer to Note 2.3);

+ Vivendi subscribed to bonds redesmable in shares or cash issued by Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay (please refer to
Note 11.1};

« In November and Dacember 2018, Vivendi sold on the market its Telefonica shares, pursuant to its commitment to the Brazilian
Competition Authority {CADE). This commitment remained in force as long as Vivendi simultaneously held shares of Telefonica and
Telecom ltalia, pravided that these two companies operated in the Brazilian telecom market; and

o certain liquidity rights refating to the strategic partnesship entered into between Canal+ Group, IT! and TVN as described in Note 22.5
below.

In addition, Vivendi and its subsidiaries granted or received put and call options on shares in equity affiliates and unconsolidated
investments,
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i)

{e)

" Sale of Ubisoft (October 2018)

Context
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Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

oties |

Sale of GVT {May 2015}

Sale of Marac Telecom group {May 2014}
Sale of Activision Blizzard {October 2013)

_ Characteristics (nature and amount) ]

Unlimited spaciic warranties.

Representations and warranties, limited to specifically identified tax matters, capped at
BRL 180 million

Commitments undertaken in connection with the sale

- Unhmited general warranties, and

- Tax warranties capped at $200 million, under certain circumstances

Acquisition of Botloré Group's channeis Commitments undertaken, in connection with the autharization of the acquisition, with- 2019
{September 2012) - the French Competition Autharity, and

- the French Broadcasting Authonty
Divestiture of PTC shares {December 2010) Commitments undertaken to end iitigation over the share ownership of PTC:

- Guarantees given to the Law Debenture Trust Company (LDTC), for an amount up to

18 4% for the first €125 rmillion, 46% between €125 mitlicn and €288 million, and
50% thereafter, and

- Guarantee given to Poltel nvestmant's {Elektrim) judicial administrator -
Canal+ Group's pay-TV activities in France Approval of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSatellite subject to compliance with 2018
{January 2007-July 2017) injunctions ordered by the French Competition Autharity.
Divestiture of PSG {June 2008) Unlimited specific warranties. 2018
Divestiture of UMG manufacturing ang Various commitments for manufacturing and distribution services, expired at the end of 2017
distribution operations {May 2005) January 2017,
NBC Universal transaction {May 2004} and - Braaches of tax representations; and -
subsequent amendments (2005 - 2010) - Obligation to cover the Most Favored Nation provisicns -
Sale of real estate assets (June 2002) Autenomous first demand guarantees given to Nexity, not implemented and expired in 2017

June 2017, capped at €150 million 10 tetal {tax and decennial guarantees)
Other contingent lrabilities Cumulated amount of €20 million {compared to €27 million as of December 31, 2017}, -
Acquisition of the companies that own and Gereral and specific warranties { ers and guarantees related to the 2023
manage all Paddington intellectuat property rights,  intellectual preperty)
except for the publishing rights {June 2018)
Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels Warranties capped at €120 million, not implemented and expired as of December 31, 2017

[September 2012)
Acquisition of CMI Recorded Music (September
2012}

Acquisttion of Kinowelt {Aprit 2008)
Other contingent assets

m7

~ Commitments relating to full pension obligations in the United Kingdom assumed by
Citi, and

- Warranties refating to losses stamming from taxes and litigation claims, in particular
those related to penston obligations in the United Kingdom.

Specific warranties, notably on film rights granted by the sellers

Cumulated amount of £30 million {compared to €43 million as of December 31, 2017)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities described above.

a.

The main terms of the Maroc Telecom group sale were as follows:

Vivendi gave certain customary representations and warranties to Ftisalat retating to SPT {the holding company of Marac Telecom
group), Marog Telecom and its subsidiaries. Vivendi also gave & number of specific warranties;

the indemnity amount payable by Vivend: in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its subsidiaries
was determined ir proportion to the percentage of awnership held indirectly by Vivendi in the relevant company on the clesing date
(i.e., 53% for Maroc Telecom);

Vivendi's overall indemnificaticn obligation was capped at 50% of the initial sale price, such threshold being increased to 100% in
respect of claims retated to SPT;

Vivendi's indemnification obligations in respect of these warranties, other than those related to taxes and SPT, effective for a
24-month period, expired in May 2016. Claims for tax-related indemnities could be made until January 15, 2018. The indemnity in
respect of SPT remained in effect until the end of a four-year period following the closing date {i.e., May 14, 2018); and

to guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivendi delivered a bank guarantee to Etisalat in
the amount of €247 million, which expired on February 15, 2018. This amount had been reduced to €9 million.

Vivendi had agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that couid be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in
relation to the sale of its interest in Maroc Telecom:
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a claim against Vivendi and SFR, i.e., May 14, 2018; and
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e this commitment, which also covered any amount that SFR could be required to pay to any third party other than Etisalat, has
expired in the absence of any request fram Numericable Group within the applicable statutes of limitations.

b In connection with the sale of 88% of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 [the "Closing
Date”), Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {i.e.,
representations, warranties and covenants). Vivendi, ASAC |1 LP, and Activision Blizzard undertock to indemnify each other against any
losses stemming from any breach of their respective commitments. Such indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount.

In addition, Vivend has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other liabilities of Amber Holding
Subsidiary Co. {“Amber”), the Vivendi subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, retating to periods preceding the Closing Date. Such
indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount. Tax attributes (mainly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision
Blizzard were estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefit ¢f approximately $245 million. Vivendi
agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of
$200 million limited to fiscal years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016.

As a reminder, in connection with the creation of Activision Blizzard in July 2008, Activision and Vivendi entered inte customary
agreements for this type of transaction, including tax sharing and indemnity agreements.

¢ As part of the French Competition Authority’s approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels (renamed C8 and
CStar, respectively) granted on July 23, 2012 and renewed or April 2, 2014, Vivendi and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments for a
five-year period, renewable once.
On June 22, 2017, the French Competition Autharity decided to keep, lift or revise certain commitments.
These commitments provide for restrictions on the acquisition of rights to American movies and television series from certain American
studios {Canal+ Group can henceforth enter inte output deals bundling free-te-air and pay-TV rights with two American studios) and for
French movies {the joint purchase of both free-to-air and pay-TV rights for more than 20 original French-language films per year is
prohibited), the separate negotiation of pay-TV and free-to-air rights for certain recent movies and television series, limitations on the
acquisition by C8 and CStar of French catalog movies from Studiocanal {limited to 50% of the total number and total value cf French
catalog movies purchased annually by each of these channels).
These commitments are operative until December 31, 2019. If market conditions change significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to
request that these commitments be lifted or partially or totally revised. Ar independent trustee, who was proposed by Canal+ Group
and approved by the French Competition Authority on August 30, 2017, is responsible for menitoring the implementation of the
commitments.
In addition, on September 18, 2012, the French Broadcasting Authority (Conseif Supérieur de FAudiovisuel) approved the acquisition of
the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed C8 and CStar, respectively), subject to compliance with certain commitments relating to
broadcasting, investment obfigations and transfer rights.

d. On August 30, 2006, the merger between Canal+ Group's pay-TV operations in France and TPS was authorized, in accordance with the
merger control regulations, pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and
Canal+ Group complying with certain undertakings for 8 maximum period of six years, with the exception of these commitments
concerning the availability of channels and Video-on-demand (VOD), which could not exceed five years.

On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry regarding compliance with certain undertakings given by

Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS.

On July 23, 2012, the merger was once again cleared by the French Competition Authority, subject to compliance with 33 injunctions.

These injunctions were issued for a five-year period, renewable once.

On June 22, 2017, following the reexamination of such injunctions, the French Competition Authority decided to maintain, lift or revise

certain of these injunctions.

These injunctions, which have been implemented by Canal+ Group since June 22, 2017, consist of the following main components:

« Acquisition of movie rights:
prohibition on entering into output deals for French films except if another pay-TV producer were to enter into an output deal
with any of the five main French producers/coproducers; and
disposal by the Canal+ Group of its interest in Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC ar, failing this, adoption of measures that can
“neutralize” Canal+ Group's impact on Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC.

 Distribution of pay-TV special-interest channels:
distribution of a minimum number of independent channels, distribution of any channel helding premium rights, exclusive or
not, and preparation of a reference offer refating to taking over independent channels included in the Canalsat offer including,
among other things, the assumptions and methads to calculate minimal compensation for these independent channes.

+ Video-on-demand (VOD) and subscription video-on-demand {SVCD):
prohibition on purchasing VOD and SVYOD exclusive broadcasting righzs to original French-language films owned by French right
holders and combining these rights with the purchases of rights for linear broadcast on pay-TV;
limitation on the exclusive transfer of VOD and SVOD rights to Canal+ Group from Studiocanal's French film cataiog; and
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prohibition an entering into exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet
Service Provider platforms.
These Injunctions are operative until Decembar 31, 2019. 1f market conditions change significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request
that these injunctions be lifted or partially or totally revised. An independent trustee, who was proposed by Canal+ Group and approved
by the French Competition Authority on August 30, 2017, is responsible for monitaring the implementaticn of the injunctions.

e, In connection with the sale of real estate assets to Nexity in June 2002, Vivendi granted two autonamous first demand guarantees, one
for €40 miltion and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity (SAS Nexim 1 to 6). The guarantees were not implemented
and expired on June 30, 2017.

Several guarantees given during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired. However, the time periods or
statute of limitations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to emplayees, environment and tax liabilities, in consideration of
share ownership, ar given notably in connection with the winding-up of certain businesses or the dissoiution of entities are still in effect. To
the best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims tor indemnification against such liabilities have been made to date.

In additicn, when settling disputes and litigation, Vivendi regularly delivers commitments for damages to third partias, which are customary
for transactions of this type.

Earn-out commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition of shares

Vivendi and its subsidiaries entered into agreements with certain minority sharchoiders providing for earn-out payments. They notably
included capped earn-outs payable in 2020 and 2022 under the agreement entered into in June 2016 for the acquisition of 100% of the
companies that own and manage ali Paddington intellectual property rights, except for the publishing rights.

225 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders” or investors’ agreements (primarily those relating to nc+), Vivendi holds certain rights {e.g., pre-emptive rights
and rights of first offer) that give it control over the capital structure of its consolidated companies having minority shareholders. Conversely,
Vivendi has granted similar rights to these other shareholders in the event that it sells its interests to third parties.

Moreover, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements ar the bylaws of other consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated
Interests, Vivendi or its subsidiaries have given or received certain rights (pre-emptive and other rights) entitling them to maintain their rights
as shareholder.

In addition, in compliance with Article L. 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it is hereby stated that certain rights and obligations of
Vivendi under existing shareholders’ agreements may be amended or terminated in the sveat of a changa nf rontrol of Vivendi or a tender
offer for Vivendi's shares. These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisiens.

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITland TVN

Certain liquidity rights were given at the level of nc+ under the strategic partnership formed in November 2012 in relation to television
services in Poland. Given that Canal+ Group did not exercise its call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in nc+ at market value, TVN now
has liquidity rights in the form of an initial public offering of its interest in nc+.

226 Collaterals and pledges

As of Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017, no material asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for
the benefit of third parties
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Note23  Litigation

In the normai course of its business, Vivendi is subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative cr other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”).

The costs which may result from these Legal Proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
risk and is based on a case-hy-case assessment of the risk level, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such risk if events occur
during such proceedings. As of December 31, 2018, provisions recorded by Vivend: for all claims and {itigation were €247 million, compared
to €260 miliion as of Decemter 31, 2017 [please refer to Note 16).

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Praceedings or any facts of an exceptionat nature {including any pending or threatened
proceedings in which it is & defendant), which may have or have had in the previous 12 months a material effect on the company and on its
group's financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described hergin.

The status of proceedings disciosed hereunder is described as of February 11, 2019 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that
approved the Consolidatec Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018).

LBEW et al. against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxembourg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivendi with the Paris Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002. Subsequentiy, on April 5 and
April 23, 2012, twao similar complaints were filed against Vivendi: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idahs, and the other by six German and British institutional investors. lastly, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Maragerment Corporatian also filed a complaint against Vivendi based on the same grounds. On January 7, 2015, the Paris Commercial Court
appointed a “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence their aileged hoiding of the securities. The latter filed his final reports during the first half of 2018. The first hearings on the merits
were held in the second half of 2018.

California State Teachers Retirement System et al. against Vivendi

On April 27, 2012, 67 institutionat foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivend: befere the Paris Commercial Court seeking damages for
losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivendi, between 2000 and 2002. Cn June 7 and
September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 naw plaintiffs joined these proceedings. In November 2012 and March 2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these
proceedings. On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Paris appointed a "third party” responsible for checking the standing of the
claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding of the securities. The latter filed his final
reports during the first half of 2018. The first hearings on the merits were held in the second half of 2018.

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed oy CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivendi) against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale and an award for damages following a
judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal. On December 16, 2010, the Berlin Court of Appeal confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin
Court in April 2009, which decided in CGIS BIM's favor and confirmed the invatidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore averruled
the order for CGIS BtM to repurchase the buiiding and pay damages. This decision is now final. In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for
acdditional damages in the Berlin Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009. On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regionai
Court ordered CGIS BIM to pay FIG the sum of €3.9 million together with interest from February 27, 2009. CGIS BIM has appealed this
decision. At a hearing held at the Berlin Court of Appeal on January 8, 2018, the judge proposed a settlement, the terms of which were
accepted by both parties, thereby putting an end to this fitigation.

Mediaset against Vivendi

On April 8, 2016, Vivendi entered into a strategic partnership agreement with Mediaset. This agreement provided for a swap of a
3.5% interest in Vivendi in exchange for a 3.5% interest in Mediaset and 100% of the share capital of the pay-TV company Mediaset
Premium, a subsidiary of Mediaset.

Vivendi’s purchase of Mediaset Premium was based on financial assumptions provided by Mediaset to Vivendi in March 2016. These
assumptions raised some questions within Vivendi, which were communicated to Mediaset. The agreement signed on April 8, 2016 was
subsequently subject to a “due diligence review” {carried out for Vivendi by the advisory firm Deloitte), as contractually agreed. t became
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clear from this audit and from Vivendi's analyses that the figures provided by Mediaset prior to the signing of the agreement were not
realistic and were founded on an artificially-inflated base.

While Vivendi and Mediaset had been in discussions in an effort to find an alternative transaction structure to the one provided for in the
April 8, 2016 agreement, Mediaset terminated these discussions on Jufy 26, 2016 by publicly rejecting the proposal Vivendi submitted to it.
This proposal consisted of a swap of 3.0% of Vivendi's share capital in exchange for 20% of Mediaset Premium’s share capital and 3.5% of
Mediaset’s share capital and, for the balance, the issuance by Mediaset to Vivendi of bonds convertible into Mediaset shares over time.

Subseguently, Mediaset together with its affiliate RTI, and Fininvest, Mediaset's majority shareholder each filed a complaint against Vivendi
before the Milar Civil Court seeking to obtain specific performance of the April 8, 2016 agreement and the related shareholders’ agreement
as well as compensation for alleged damages. In particular, the plaintiffs claim that Vivendi did not file its notification to the Esropean
Commission with respect to the transaction and thus blocked the lifting of the Jast condition precedent to the completion of the transactian.
Vivendi maintains that despite its timely completion of the pre-notification process with the Commission, the Commission would not have
accepted a formal filing while the parties were discussing their differences.

At the first hearing held in the case, the judge invited the parties to come closer tagether to try to roach an amicable settlement to their
dispute. To this end. on May 3, 2017, the parties initiated mediation proceedings before the Chamber of National and International
Arbitration of Milan.

Despite this mediation, on June 9, 2017, Mediaset, RTl and Fininvest filed another complaint against Vivendi seeking damages totaling
€2 billion for Mediaset and RTI, and €1 billion for Fininvest, in connection with Vivendi's acquisition of Mediaset shares at the end of 2016.
According to the plaintiffs, who unsuccessfully requested that this action be consolidated with the first two, these acquisitions were carried
out in breach of the April 8, 2016 agreement, the ltalian media regulaticns and unfair competition rules. In addition, the complaint includes a
demand that Vivendi be required to divest the shares of Mediaset which were allegedly hought in breach of applicable law and the April 8,
2016 agresment. Lastly, the plaintiffs have requested that, pending such divestiture, Vivendi be enjoined from exercising its rights {including
voting rights) on such Mediaset shares.

On February 77, 2018, the Court noted the termiration of the mediation proceedings and scheduled a hearing for October 23, 2018, which
was postponed to December 4, 2018. During this hearing, Fininvest, RTI and Mediaset rarounced their ¢laim to specific performance of the
April 8, 2016 agreement, while pursuing their claim for compensation for alleged damages, in the amount of up to {i} €720 million for
Mediaset and RTI, for non-performance of the April 8, 2016 agreement, and (i} € 1.3 billion for Fininvest, for non-performance of the above-
mentioned sharehclders’ agreement, for the harm linked to the change in the Mediaset share price between July 26 and August 2, 2016 and
various damages relating to the alleged Megal acquisition of Mediaset shares by Vivendi at the end of 2016. Fininvest is also seeking
damages for an amount to be determined by the Court for harm done to its decision-making procedures ard image. The next hearing wiil be
held on March 12, 2019.

Gther proceedings related to Vivendi's entry into the share capital of Mediaset

Following Vivendi's entry into the share capital of Mediaset through open market purchases of shares during the months of Navember and
December 2016, culminating in a shareholding of 28.80%, Fininvest stated that it had filed a complaint against Vivendi for market
manipulation with the Milan publi¢ prosecutor's office and the Cansehb, the ftalian financial markets regulator.

In addition, on December 21, 2016, the AGCOM, the Italian communications authority, opened an investigation into the compatibility
between the increase in Vivendi's holdings in Mediaset’s share capital and its position as a shareholder of Telecom ltalia under Italian media
regulations.

On April 18, 2017, the AGCOM issued & decision in which it determined that Vivendi was not in compliance with the regulations. Vivendi,
which had 12 months to come into comgliance, appealed against this decision to the Regional Administrative Court of Lazio. Pending the
decision on this appeal, the AGCOM acknowledged Vivendi's proposed action plan setting out how it will comply with the decision. On
April 9, 2018, in compliance with the undertakings given ta the AGCOM, Vivendi transferred the portion of its shargholding in excess of 10%
of Mediaset's voting rights to an independent trustee. On November 5, 2018, the Regional Administrative Court of Lazio decided ta suspend
its decision and refer to the Furopean Court of Justice the analysis of the compatibility of the Itafian rule under Article 43 of the TUSMAR, as
applied by AGCOM, with the free movement principle enshrined in the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union.

Telecom ltalia

On August b, 2017, the Italian Government informed Yivendi that it was opening a formal investigation into whether certain provisions of
Law Decree No. 21 of 15 March 2012 on special powers of the Italian Government relative to the defense and naticnal security sectors
(Article 1) and to activities of strategic importance in the fields of energy, transpart and communications [Article 2), had been respected by
Telecom Italia and Vivendi. Vivendi considered the provisions of that decree inapplicable to Vivendi. In particular, (i) Article 1, concerning the
defense and national security sectors had never been hitherto declared and communicated to the market given the nature of the activities
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carried out by Telecom ftalia, and (i) Article 2, which relates to the energy, transport and communications sectors, does not apply to Vivendi
since it refers to purchases of significant shareholdings made by nan-European entities.

Additionally, and in the same timeframe as the above-mentioned investigation, on September 13, 2017, the Consob declared that Vivendi
exercises de facto control aver Telecom ltatia. Vivendi and Telecom ltalia formally contest this pesition and appealed to the competent
courts.

On September 28, 2017, the Presidency of the Council of Ministers declared that (i) the notification made by Vivendi under Article 1 of the
aforementioned legislative decree as a precautionary measure was made late and {ii) Teiecom ltalia had not made a notification under
Article 1 of the decree following a change of control over its asset that are of strategic importance in the fields of energy, transport and
communicaticns. Therefore, the Presidency of the Council of Ministers launched proceedings against Telecom ltalia for failing to make the
reguired notification under Articte 7 of the same legislative decree. Vivendi and Telecom Italia have appealed this finding.

Furthermore, by a decree dated October 16, 2017, the ltalian Government decided to exercise the special powers laid down in Article 1 of the
2012 legislative decree, relative to the defense and national security sectors. This decree imposes a number of organizational and
governance measures on Vivendi and Telecom italia and its two subsidiaries, Telecom Italia Sparkle Spa ("Sparkie”) and Telsy Elettranica e
Telecomunicazioni Spa (“Telsy"). In particular, Telecom ltalia, Sparkle and Telsy must have a division in charge of supervising all activities
related to defense and national security, which is fully autonomous and endowed with human and financial resources sufficient to guarantee
its independence, and to appoint to their governing bodies a member who is an italian citizen, who is approved by the italian Government
and who has security clearance. It also requires the establishment of a supervisory committee under the auspices of the Council of Ministers
{Comitato df monitoraggio) to monitor compliance with these obligations. On February 13, 2018, Vivendi and Telecom ltalia filed an appeal
against this decree with the Italian Presidency of the Council of Ministers.

In acdition, by a decree dated November 2, 2017, the lialian Government decided to implement the special powers conferred by Article 2 of
the 2012 legislative decree, relative to the fields of energy, transport and communications. This decree imposes on Telecom ltalia the
obligation to implement development, investment and maintenance plans for its networks to guarantee their operation and security, to
provide universal service, and, more generally, to satisfy public interest in the medium and long term, under the control of the Jomitato oi
monitoraggio, who must be aatified of any recrganization of the Telecom ltalia group’s hoidings or any project having an impact on the
security, availability and operation of the networks. On March 2, 2018, Vivendi and Telecom ltalia filed an appeal against this decree with
the Italian Presidency of the Council of Ministers.

By a decree dated May 8, 2018, the ltalian Government imposed an administrative fine of €74 million on Telecom ftalia for failure to comply
with its information obligations (failure to notify under Article 2 of Law Decree No. 21 of 15 March 2012, see above). On July 5, 2018, the
Administrative Regional Court of Lazio suspended the enforcement of such fine.

Etisalat against Vivendi

On May 12, 2017, Etisalat and EINA filed a request for arbitration before the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber
of Commerce pursuant to the tarms of the agreement for the sale of SPT/Maroc Telecom entered into on November 4, 2013, the closing of
which took pface on May 14, 2014. This request concerned several claims in respect of representations and warrarties made by Vivendi and
SFR in connection with the sale agreement. On January 3, 2019, the Arbitral Tribunal rendered its decision, rejecting Etisalat's claim for
compensation in its entirety.

Parahale Réunion

In July 2007, the Parabole Réunion filed a legal actior before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its rights to
exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauritius, and the degradation of the channeis made
available to it. Pursuant to a decision dated September 18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the
broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement channels that have substituted these channels and was ordered to replace the
TPS Foot channet in the event it is dropped. Canal+ Group appealed this decision. In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Paris Court of Appeal
partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were made
available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS. Parabote Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content of the
channels in question, On November 10, 2009, the French Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabola Réunion,

Or September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunicon filed a claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement
magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre seeking enforcement of the fine imposed by the Paris Tribunal of First Instance and
confirmed by the Court of Appeal. On November 6, 2012, Parabote Réunign expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic,
Cult and Star channels. On April 8, 2013, the enforcement magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and dectared the rest
inadmissible. He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no legal obligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming
on channels made available to Parabole Réunion and held, after noting that production of the TPS Foot channel had not stopped, that there
was no need to replace this channel. Parabole Réunion filed a first appeal against this decision an April 11, 2013. On May 22, 2014, the
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Versailles Court of Appea! declared this appeal inadmissible due to Parabole Béunion's lack of representative capacity. On February 14, 2014,
Parabote Réunion filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appeal against the April 9, 2013 decision. On April 9, 2015, the French
Supreme Court overturned the May 22, 2014 decision of the Versailles Ceurt of Appeat in which the appeal filed by Parabole Réunion on
April 11, 2013 was declared inadmissible. The case was remanded to the Paris Court of Appeal which, on May 12, 2016, upheld the decision
of the Court of First Instance and dismissed all of Parabole Réunion's claims. In a decision issued on September 28, 2017, the French
Supreme Court dismissed Parabole Réunion's appeal against the decision of the Court of Appeal of Paris.

At the same time, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and 10 pay damages. On Aprit 26, 2012, Parahcle Réunion also filed & complaint against Canal+ france, Canak+ Group and Canal+ Distribution
before the Paris Tribural of First Instance requesting the Tribunal to acknewledge the failure of the companies of the group to fulfill their
contractuai obligatiens to Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy. These two actions have been consolidated
inta a single action. On Agpril 29, 2014, the Paris Tribunal of First Instance partially recognized the admissibility of Parabole Réunion’s claim
with respect to the period following June 19, 2008 and recognized the contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the
quality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion. The Tribunat also ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole
Réunion, rejecting the assessment produced by the tatter. On June 3, 2016, the Paris Court of Appeal upheld the Aprit 29, 2014 decision of
the Paris Tribunal of First Instance. Canat+ Group filed an appeal against this decision to the French Supreme Court, which was dismissed on
January 31, 2018.

In an order issued on October 25, 2016, the Pre-Trial Judge held that the Aprit 29, 2014 decision in which Canal+ Group was ordered to
compensate Parabole Réunion established in principle a debt of the latter, even if the assessment of its amount was still to be finalized. The
Judge ordered Canal+ Group to pay the sum of €4 million as an advance. On January 17, 2017, the Paris Tribunal of First Instance ordered
Canal+ Group to pay the sum of £37,720,000, with provisional enforceability. On February 23, 2017, Parabole Réunion appealed against that
decisian to the Paris Court of Appeal. On July 20, 2017, Canal+ Group filed its response to the appeal and a cross-appeal. Due to the failure
of Parabale Réunion group to file its response within the time period prescribed by law, on December 8, 2017, Canal + Group filed a motion
raising the failure to meet such deadline and, consequently, seeking an invalidation of the expertise ordered on October 12, 2017 (see
beiow]. On Jure 7, 2018, the Pre-Trial Judge of the Paris Court of Appeai issued an order, dismissing the request for the invalidation of the
expertise underway. Canal+ Group lodged a petition for review against this order, which it withdrew in October 2018, noting the progress of
the expertise.

On May 29, 2017, Parabole Réunian raised an incidental question in order to have the court appoint an additional expert to assess the loss in
value of its business. On October 12, 2017, the Pre-Trial Judge of the Paris Court of Appeat granted this request and a judicial expert was
appointed. On December 17, 2018, Parabale Réunion raised & new incidental question before the Pre-Trial Judge of the Paris Court of Appeal
in order to have the court clarify the mission of the judicial expert who has, at this stage, haited his work.

Action hrought by the French Competition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Crange, the French Competition Authority sent Vivendi and
Canal+ Group a natification of allegations. It alleged that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivendi and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and M6, on the one hand. and with Lagardére, on the other.

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decisien in which it dismissed the allegations of coliusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group. The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distribution rights on chanrels broadcast by the greup and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive rights on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channeis to fiber optic and catch-up TV. On October 30, 2013,
the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case, but noaction has been taking since
December 2013. In April 2018, the French Compstition Authority informed Canal+ Group of the closure of the case,

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6 and France Télévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, ME and France
Télévision groups in the French-language film market. Canal+ Group claims that the defendants added certain pre-emption rights to co-
production contracts aimed at restricting competition. On Febroary 23, 2018, the French Competition Authority served a notification of
grievances on France Télévision, TF% and MB. The case will be reviewed by the French Competition Authority at its meeting to be heid on
February 13, 2013

TF1 against Canal+ Group

On May 7, 2018, TF1 filed a complaint against Canat+ Group for infringement of its neighboring rights and trademarks, as well as for unfair
competition. TF1 alleges that Canal+ Group continued the distribution of its linear channels and its associated services on ail its networks
beyond the end date of the agreement. After the parties reached an agreement, TF1 withdrew from these proceedings.
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TF1 and M6 agreements

On September 30, 2017, Canal+ Group filed summary requests before the French Council of State {Conseil d'Etat) seeking an annulment of
the decisions of the French Broadcasting Authority (Conseil Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) (the "CSA”) of July 20 and 27, 2017 relating to the
TF1 and M6 channels, respectively. These decisions renew the authorizations for the terrestrial transmission of TF1 and MB, in the context of
the requests of the two groups to obtain compensation for the cistribution of their free-to-air DTT channels, including their eponymous TF1
and MB channels. On November 26, 2018, after reaching an agreement with TF1, Canal+ Group withdrew from the preceedings against TF1.

Aston France and Strong against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authority about Canal+ Group’s decision to stop selling its sateliite
subscription called “cards only” {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satellite set-top boxes,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston). In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive refief
against Canak+ Group before the Commercial Court of Paris, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called “cards only”. On Cctober 17, 2014, the Paris Commercial
Court issued an crder denying Aston's requests. On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling in chambers, granted its requests and suspended the decision of Canal+ Group to stop selling its "cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authority rendered its decision on the merits of the case. On March 21, 2018, Canal+ Group
received the French Competition Autharity’s prefiminary assessment setting out its competition cancerns. Gn Aprii 4, 2018, Canal+ Graup
submitted to the French Competition Authority a proposal for commitments. On July 24, 2018, the French Competitior: Authority, cansidering
that the commitments, in force until December 31, 2021, met both the need to fight against piracy and maintain an alternative offer of set-
top boxes to the ones leased by Canal+ Group, decided to make them compulsory and closed the proceedings.

In addition, on January 18, 2018, Strong filed an application with the Paris Commercial Court for injunctive relief requesting the Court to
order the suspension of Canal+ Group's decision to stop marketing subscriptions on Canal Ready-labeled satellite set-top boxes {cards only)
following the above-mentioned decision of the French Competition Authority. Aston, which had not contested the commitments made by
Canal+ Group to the french Competition Authority, voluntarily intervened in this injunctive relief proceeding. A decision is expected en
February 22, 201C.

Top 14 Rughy {2619-2023)

By a letter registered on July 19, 2016, the French Competition Authority was notified by Altice of a referral regarding the practices
implemented in the tender process for the granting of broadcasting rights to Top 14 Rugby for the seasons 2019/2020 to 2022/2023. The
French Competition Authority, having formally recogrized that Altice had withdrawn its complaint, closed the case.

Canal+ Group against Numericable-SFR

On October 4, 2017, Canal+ Group filed a complaint against Numericable-SFR before the Paris Commercial Court for customer poaching and
breach of contract, in which it asked the Court to issue an injunction to stop such practices and to award damagas. After the parties reached
an agreement, Canal+ Group withdrew from these proceedings on October 9, 2018.

Touche Pas a Mon Poste

On June 7, 2017, the French Broadcasting Autharity {Conses! Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) (the "CSA"} decided to sarction C8 for a sequence
broadcast on the show “TPMP” on December 7, 2016. The CSA considered that this sequence in which the presenter of the show, Cyril
Hanouna, and one of its columnists, Capucine Anav, are seen engaging in & game on set during an "off* sequance, undermined the image of
women. The sanction consisted of the suspension of advertising broadcasts during the show, “Touche Pas & Mon Poste” and its
rebroadcasts, as well as well during the 15 minutes before and the 15 minutes after its broadcast, for a period of two weeks from the secend
Monday fallowing notification of the decision.

On the same date, the CSA sanctioned C8 for another sequence broadeast on the show "TPMP! La grande Rassrah” on November 3, 2816.
The CSA considered that this new sequence, the filming by hidden camera of Matthieu Delormeau, a columnist for the show, violated his
dignity. This sanction consisted of the suspension of advertising broadcasts during the show, “Touche Pas & Mon Poste” and its
rebroadcasts, as well as during the 15 minutes hefore and the 15 minutes after its broadcast, for a period of one week.

On July 3, 2017, following the two decisions of the CSA, C8 filed two agpeals with the French Council of State {Conseil d'ftat). GOn July 4,
2017, C8 filed two claims for compensation with the CSA which cfaims were rejected by implied decision. On November 2, 7017, C8
appealed against each of these to the Council of State. On June 18, 2018, the Council of State dismissed C8's action for annulment of the
CSA’s first decision, but granted the second application, overturning the CSA’s second decision. The Council of State's decision to dismiss
C8's action for annulment of the CSA’s first decision is the subject of an appeal pending before the European Court of Human Rights, filed in
December 2018. The claims for compensation are being reviewed by the Council of State. A decision is expecteg in the first quarter of 2019.
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On July 28, 2017, the CSA decided to sanction C8 for a sequence broadcast on the show "TPMP Baba hot line" on May 18, 2017, considering
that the channel violated the principle of respect for privacy and its obligation to fight against discrimination, and imposed a monetary fine of
€3 million.

Following this decision, on September 22, 2017, C8 filed an action for annulment before the Council of State, which was dismissed on
Jung 18, 2018. This decision is the subject of an appeal pending before the European Court of Human Rights, filed in December 2018,
Simitarly, C8 filed a claim for compensation with the CSA, whose implicit rejection of it was challenged before the Council of State on
January 25, 2018, On September 7, 2018, C8 withdrew its claim for compensation,

Rovi Guides, Inc. against Canal + Group

Rovi Guides filed a request for mediaticn before the international Chamber of Commerce for the breach by Canal+ Group of an electronic
program guide license agreement entered into in 2008 and for the non-payment of royalties related thereto between January *, 2016 and
June 30, 2017.

The mediation terminated without an agreement and Rovi Guides filed a request for arbitration on June 1, 2018.

Harry Shearer and Century of Progress Productions against Studiocanal, Universal Music Group and Vivendi

A complaint was filed in California federal court against Studiocanat and Vivendi by Harry Shearer, thraugh his company Century of Progress
Productions, in his capacity as a creator, actor and composer of the film “This Is Spinal Tap”, an American film produced and financed in
1984 by Embassy Pictures (Studiocanal is the successer to Embassy's rights). Mr. Shearer is seeking damages for breach of contractual
obfigations to provide exploitation accounts, fraud, and failure to exploit the film's trademark, and is also seeking attribution of the
trademark. On February 8, 2017, four new plaintiffs, co-creators of the film, joined the proceedings. Gn February 28, 2017, in response to the
complaint, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss, in which they asked the Court to daclare the claims of the new plaintiffs to be
inadmissible and to deny the claim for fraud. On September 28, 2017, the Court issued its decision. With respect to inadmissibility, it
dismissed the claims of three of the four co-creators as well as the fraud claim but gave permissien to the plaintiffs to file amended
complaints in their individual capacities as well as to supglement their fraud claim. On Octeber 19, 2017, a new complaint (the *Second
Amended Complaint”} was filed, which reintroduced the claims of three plaintiffs previously found to be inadmissibie and added Universal
Music Group (UMG) as a plaintiff. On December 21, 2017, UMG and Studiocanal each filed a motion to dismiss in response. By decision of
August 28, 2018, the Court (i} denied Studiocanal's motion to dismiss the plaintiffs' fraud claim. While the Court did not recognize the
existence of fraud, it left open the possibility for the plaintiffs to prove it in the subsequent proceedings on the merits; and {ii} granted some
of UMG's motions but with leave for the plaintiffs to file an amended complaint with respect to these claims. The Court also denied UMG's
motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’ application for declaratory relief to terminate and recover from UMG the copyrights in the sound recordings
from the motion picture in the United States; this point will therefore be decided in the context of the proceedings on the merits. On
September 18, 2018, the plaintiffs filed their new complaint [the "1 hird Amended Compilaint”). in parallel, the parties have decided to enter
into mediation with the first meeting to be held on March 11, 2019. The parties suspended the proceedings on the merits until the end of the
mediation.

Maitena Biraben against Canal+

Maitena Biraben challenged her termination by Canal+ for gross misconduct before the French Laber Court (Consails de Prudhommes). On
September 27, 2018, the French Labor Court rendered its decision, finding that Ms. Biraben's termination was without justified cause. The
Court ordered Canal+ to pay total amount of £3,246,456.22, representing £38,456.27 in backpay and paid jeave, £148,000 in severance pay,
£€510,000 in damages and €7,550,000 in termination compensation. Canal+ appealed against this judgment.

Investigation by the Departmental Directorate for the Protection of Populations in the Hauts de Seine

On April 20, 2018, the Departmental Directorate for the Protection of the Populations of the Hauts de Seine { Direction Départementale de fa
Protection des Populations das Hauts de Seing) (DDPPI2} ordered Canai+ Group to stop positioning enriched offers to its subscribers during
the term of their contract, a practice which the Court described as selling without pricr order. On June 19, 2018, Canal+ Group filed a notice
of appeal with the French Minister of the Economy, which was rejected on August 9, 2018. On October 5, 2018, Canal+ Group filed an appeal
with the Administrative Court of Cergy-Pontoise.

Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

In 2006, several complaints were filed before the Federal Courts in New York and Califomia against Universal Music Group and the other
music industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of COs and Internet music downloads. These complaints
have been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York. The mation to dismiss filad by the defendants was granted by the Federa!
Court on October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010. The defendants
subsequently filed a motion for rehearing which was denied. A petition was filed with the US Supreme Court which rejected it on
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January 10, 2011. On Juiy 18, 2017, the Court dismissed the motion for class certification filed by the plaintiffs who appealed against the
decision. On December 8, 2017, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals refused to hear the appeat. In Novernber 2018, the parties entered into a
settlement agreement, putting an end to this litigation.

Mireille Porte against Interscope Records, Inc., Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

Cn July 11, 2013, the artist Mireille Porte (AKA “Orlan”) filed a complaint agairst Interscope Records, Inc., Stefani Germanaotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga”} and Universal Music France with the Paris Tribunal of First Instance for the alleged copyright infringement of several of Orlan’s
artistic works. On July 7, 2016, the Paris Tribunal of First Instance denied all of Mireille Porte’s claims. Ms. Porte filed an appeal against this
decision. On May 15, 2018, the French Court of Appeat upheld the lower court’s decision.

Aspire against Cash Money Records and UMG

On April 7, 2017, Aspire Music Group filed a complaint with the New York State Supreme Court against Cash Money Records alleging breach
of contract and non-payment of profits from Drake's first six albums. Following unsuccessful negotiations, the plaintiff amended its
complaint to add UMG as a defendant on April 12, 2018. UMG filed a motion to dismiss on the grounds that it {acks privity with Aspire ang s
not liahle for Cash Money’'s contractual obligations to Aspire. The Court denied UMG’s motion to dismiss, and UMG appealed that decision.

Investigation hy U.S. federal prosecutors into husiness practices in the advertising industry

On June 11, 2018, Havas received a subpoena for documents relating to one of its Spanish subsidiaries, Havas Media Alliance WWSL. These
documents have been provided to the relevant US authorities. This request by the federal prosecutors appears to relate to business practices
involving discounts and rebates. At this stage, Havas is nct a party to any proceedings and is not being interviewed.

Investigation into the services provided by Havas Paris to Business France

On February 7, 2019, Havas Paris, a subsidiary of Havas SA, was indicted for having benefited from favoritism in an amount of £379,319. This
indictment was brought in the context of a judicial investigation opened by the Paris Public Prosecutor's Office for the offence of favoritism
allegedly committed by Business France when it organized a communication event which it entrusted to Havas Paris. Havas Paris denies the
claims against it and immediately appealed against this decision.

Glass Egg vs. Gameloft Inc., Gameloft SE, Gameloft Iberica and Vivendi SA

On August 23, 2017, Glass Egg, a company specializing in the design of 3D cars for use in video games, sued Gameloft Inc., Gameloft SE,
Gameloft Iberica and Vivendi SA in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. It is seeking damages for copyright
infringement, unfair competition and misappropriation of trade secrets. The Court allowed the plaintiff to amend its initial complaint three
times. On September 17, 2018, Gameloft Inc. responded to Glass Egg's fourth amended complaint, denying aii its claims. Discovery has
begun and is expected ta continue during the first half of 2019. In addition, in an arder dated February 12, 2018, the Court determined that it
had no jurisdiction cver Gameloft {berica and Vivendi SA. The admissibility of the complaint against Gameloft SE is remains challenged and
the Court has ordered limited discovery to determine whether it has jurisdiction.

Reti Televisive Italiane {RT1)} against Dailymotion

Since 2012, several legal actions have been filed by RT! against Dailymotion before the Civil Court of Rome. Similar to claims it has made
against other major cnline video platforms, RT! is seeking damages for infringement of its neighboring rights (audiovisual production and
broadcasting rights) and unfair competition as well as the removal of the contested content from the Dailymation piatform.
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Note 24 Major consolidated entities or entities accounted for under the equity method

As of December 31, 2018, approximately 1,140 entities were consolidated or accounted for under the equity method (unchanged compared to
December 31, 2017).

December 31, 2018 December 33, 2017
Country Accounting Voting  Ownership  Accounting Voting  Ownership
Method Interest Interest Method Interest Interest

Vivendi S.A. France Parent company Parent company
Universal Music Group, Inc. United States 4 100% 100% 4 100% 100%
Universal Music Group Holdings, Inc. United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
UM& Recordings, Inc. United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vevo United States E 45.4% 49.4% £ 49.4% 494%
Universal Music Group S.A.S. lex SIG 104) France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal International Music B.V Netherlands C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music Entertainment GmbH Germany C 100% 100% G 100% 100%
Universal Music, LLC Japan C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Universal Music France S.A.S. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music Holdings Ltd. United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
EMI Group Worldwide Holding Ltd. United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Groupe Canal+ S.A. France c 100% 160% C 100% 100%
Société d'Edition de Canal Plus France C 1060% 100% C 100% 100%
Multithématiques S.A.S. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Canal+ Intemational S.AS. France ¢ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
C8 France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Studiocanal S.A. France C 100% 100% G 100% 100%
ITI Neowision (nc+) Poland C 51% 571% C 51% 51%
VSTV (a) Vietnam c 43% 49% C 45% 49%
Havas S.A. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Health, Inc United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Media Group USA, LLC United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Worldwide New York, Inc. United States c 100% 100% C 100% 103%
BETC France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Edge, LLC United States G 100% 106% C 100% 100%
Havas Media France France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Armold Worldwide, LLC United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Paris France C 99% 99% C 99% 95%
Socialyse France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Media Group Spain, SA. Spain C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Affiperf Limited United Kingdom C 100% 100% G 100% 100%
Havas Worfdwide Chicage, Inc. United States c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gameloft S.E. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gameloft Inc. United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gameloft inc. Divertissement (anada C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Gameloft Ibenca S.A. Spain C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gameloft Software Beijing Ltd. China c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gameloft S.deRL deCV. Mexico c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vivendi Village S.A.S. France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
See Tickets United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 106%
Paylogic (b) Netherlands G 100% 100% - - -
Digitick France C 108% 100% C 100% 100%
MyBestPro {c) France - - - C 100% 97%
L'Olympia France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
CanalOlympia France C 106% 106% C 100% 106%
Olympia Production France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Festival Production France C 70% 70% c 70% 0%
Paddington and Company Ltd. United Kingdam C 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
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December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Country Accounting Voting Ownership  Accounting Voting  Ownership
Method Interest Interest Method Interest Interest

New Initiatives
Dailymotion France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Group Vivendi Africa France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Vivendi Content France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Studio+ France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Banijay Group Holding France E 3.4% 31.4% E 3.4% 31.4%

Corporate

Teiecom Italia Italia E 23.84% 17.15% E 23.94% 17.15%
Boulogne Studios France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Paltel Investment FPoland C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

C: consolidated; E: equity affiliates.

a. VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) is held at 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VTV {the Vietnamese public
television company). This company has been consolidated by Vivendi because Canal+ Group has both operational and financial control
over it pursuant to an overall delegation of power that was granted by the majority sharehotder and under the company’s bylaws.

b.  On April 16, 2018, Vivendi Village acquired Paylogic, a ticketing and technology company based in Amsterdam.
¢.  MyBestPro was soid on December 21, 2018.

Note25  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivendi SA in 2018 and 2017 to its statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms were as follows:

Deloitte et Asscciés Ernst & Young et Autres Total
Amount % Amount %

{in millions of euros} 2m8 2nm7 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 218 2017
Statutory audit, certification, consolidated and individual financial statements audit

Issuer 08 0B 8% 6% 0.7 0.7 12% 13% 13 1.3

Fully consolidated subsidiaries 9.0 88 3% 90% 37 36 64% 70% 12.7 124
Subtotal 96 94 98% 96% 44 4.3 76% 83% 1490 13.7
Services other than certitication of financial statements as required by laws and regulations (a)

Issuer - - . - 0.1 0.1 2% 2% 0.1 0.1

Fully consolidated subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - 0.1 0.1 2% 2% 01 0.1
Services other than certification of financial statements provided upon the entity's request (a)

Issuer 0.1 04 % 1% - - - - 0.1 04

Fully consolidated subsidiaries 0.1 - 1% - 13 08 22% 15% 1.4 0.8
Subtotal 0.2 04 2% 4% 13 08 22% 15% 15 1.2
Total 9.8 9.8 100% 100% 58 5.2 100% 100% 15.6 15.0

a. Include services required by law and regulation {e.g., reports on capital transactions, comfart ietters, validation of the consofidated
declaration of extra-financial performance) as well as services provided upon request of Vivendi or its subsidiaries (due diligence, legal
and tax assistance, various reports).
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Note26  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivendi S.A. has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in arder for them to claim audit exemptions, with respect to fiscal year 2018, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006.

Company Company
Name Number Name Number
Dub Dub Productions Ltd. 03034298 Trinifold Music Ltd. 01781138
EGW USD 08107589 Universal/Anxious Music Ltd. 01862328
EM.I. Overseas Holdings Ltd. 00403200 Universal/Momenturm Music [ td. 01946456
EMS(IP) Ltd. 03984454 Universal/Momentum Music 2 Lid. (2850484
EMI Group (Newco) Ltd. 07800879 Universal SRG Music Publishing Ltd. (2898402
EMI Group Electronics Ltd. 00461611 Universal Music {UK) Haldings Ltd. (3383881
EMI Group Internationat Holdings Ltd. 01407770 Universal Music Holdings (UK) Ltd. 00337803
EMI Group Worldwide 031581086 Universal Music Leisure Ltd. 03384487
EMI Group Worldwide Holdings Ltd. 06226803 Universal Music Publishing MGRB Holding UK Ltd. 05092413
EMI Ltd. 00053317 Universal SRG Group Lid. 00284340
EMI Recorded Music {Chile} Ltd. (07934340 Universal SRG Musie Publishing Copyrights Ltd. 02873472
EMI Records France Holdco Ltd. 06405604 Universal SRG Studios Ltd. 03050388
Estupendo Records Ltd. 03278620 V2 Music Group Ltd. 03205625
Mawlaw 388 Ltd. 03590255 Virgin Music Group 02259349
Reientless 2006 Ltd. 13967906 Virgin Records Overseas Ltd. 00335444
Twenty-First Artists Ltd, 01588300

Note 27

Subsequent events

The significant events that accurred between the ciosing date and February 11, 2019 {the date of Vivendi's Management Beard meeting that
approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018} were as follows:

« inJanvary 2019, Vivendi SA completed new bank financings (please refer to Note 18.3);

« on January 31, 2018, Vivendi anncunced the closing of the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Editis, the second-largest

French-language publishing group (piease refer to Note 2.2); and

« on February 11, 2019, Vivendi's Management Board decided to propose to shareholders two resolutions relating to share repurchases
which will be submitted to a vote at the General Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 15, 2019 (please refer to Note 15).
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Note28  Restatement of comparative information

In 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards

o RS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with [FRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenues, thereby ensuring comparability of the data relative to each period of 2018 and 2017 contained in this
report {please refer to Note 1); and

o FRS 9 — Financial Instruments: in accordance with IFRS 9, Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Earnings and Statement of Comprehensive Income and restated its opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2018;
therefore, the data relative to 2017 contained in this report is not comparable (piease refer to Note 1).

28.1 Restatements of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Impacts related to the application of IFRS 15 on revenues by business segment

2017
Three months Three months Three months ended  Three months ended Year ended
{in millions of ewros) ended March 31, ended June 30, September 30, December 31, December 31,
Revenues (as previously published) (A}
Universal Music Group 1,784 1,382 1,319 1,688 5,673
Canal+ Group 1.278 1.290 1,257 1421 5,246
Havas {a} - - 525 826 1,151
Gameloft 68 62 63 65 258
Vivendi Village 26 30 25 28 109
New Initiatives 10 13 n 17 51
Eliminatien of intersegment transastions {3) (31 {16) (22) 144
Total Vivendi 2,663 2,174 3,184 3,823 12,444
IFRS 15 restatements {B)
Universal Music Group - - - - -
Canal+ Group (B} il {5} (30} {48)
Havas {al - - 27 33 50
Gameloft 16 15 15 16 52
Vivendi Village - - -
New Initiatives
Elimination of intersegment transacticns - - - - -
Total Vivendi 10 8 37 19 74
Restated revenues {(A+B)
Universal Music Groug 1,284 1,382 1,319 1,688 5673
Canat+ Group 1,272 1,283 1,252 1,391 5198
Havas (a) - - hh2 659 1,211
Gameloft B4 77 78 B1 320
Vivendi Village 26 30 25 28 108
New Initiatives 10 13 " 17 51
Elimination of intersegrment transactions {3) {3) (16} (22} (44)
Total Vivendi 2673 2,782 3211 3842 12,518
a. Asareminder, Vivendi has fully consofidated Havas since July 3, 2017.
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Restatements of the Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31, 2017
IFRS 15

Published Restated
restatements

REVENUES 12,444 74 12,518
Cost of revenues (7.210) {92) {7.302)
Selling, general and administrative expenses excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations {4,118} {4.118)
Income from operations® 1.116 {18} 1,088
Restructuring charges (88} (68}
Other operating charges and income {41} 141}
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA}* 837 (18) 969
Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations (124} (124}
Reversal of reserve related to the Securities Class Action litigation in the United States 27 27
Income from equity affiliates - operational 146 146
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXES (EBIT| 1.036 {18} 1018
Income from equity affiliates - non-operational - -
Interest {53} (53)
Iricome from investments 28 29
Other financial charges and income {100} {100)

{124} - {124}
Earnings befare provision for income taxes 912 {18} 3%
Provision for income taxes 349 B 355
Eamings from continuing operations 1,261 {12) 1,249
Earmings from discontinued operations - -
Earnings 1,261 {12} 1,249
Non-controlling interests (33) (33)
EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVEND) SA SHAREOWNERS 1,228 12) 1,216
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic (in euros) 0.98 0.97
Eamnings attributabie to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted {in euros) 0.85 094
Adjusted net income* 1312 (12) 1,300
Adjusted net income per share - basic (in euros}” 1.05 1.04
Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros}* 1.01 1.00

In mitlions of euros, except per share amounts.

* non-GAAP measures.
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28.2 Restatements of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition

December 31, 2017 FRS 9 IFRS 9 and IFRS 15

Published IFRS 15 Restated restatemants festatements by January 1, 2018
{in millions of euros) ulishe restataments estate equity atfiliates
ASSETS
Goodwill 12,084 12,084 12,084
Non-current content assets 2.087 2,087 2,087
Dther intangible assets 440 440 440
Property, plant and equipment 930 930 930
Investments in equity affiliates 4,540 4540 114) 4526
Non-current financial assets 4,583 4,583 81} 4502
Deferred tax assets 519 6 575 2 627
MNon-current assets 25,283 [ 25,289 (79) (14) 25,196
Inventories 177 177 177
Current tax receivables 406 406 406
Current content assets 1,160 1,160 1,160
Trade accounts receivable and other 5218 5.218 (10} 5,208
Cursent financial assets 138 138 138
Cash and cash egquivalents 1,851 1,951 1,951
Current assets 9,050 - 9,050 {10) - 9,040
TOTAL ASSETS 34,333 3 34,339 {89) {14) 34,236
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital 7128 7128 7128
Additienal paid-in capttal 4,341 4,31 4,34
Treasury shares {670} {670) {670}
Retained earnings and other 5,857 (12) 5,845 4 {14} 6,835
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity 17,656 {12) 17,644 ] {14) 17,634
Non-contralling interests 222 272 222
Total equity 17.878 12) 17,866 4 {14) 17.856
Non-current provisions 1,515 1515 1515
Long-term borrowings and other financial
ligbilities 4,263 4,283 {43} 4,170
Deferred tax fabilities 589 589 589
Other non-current liabilities 226 726 226
MNon-current liabilities 6,593 - 6,593 {93) - 6,500
Current provisions 412 17 412
Short-term borrowings and other financial
liabilities 373 373 373
Trade accounts payable and ather 8,001 18 4,019 9,019
Current tax payables 76 76 76
Current liabilities 9,862 18 9,380 - - 9,680
Total liabilities 16,455 18 16,473 (93} - 16.380
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 34,333 6 34.339 {89} {14) 34,236
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December 31, 2017 RS 81 January 1, 2018
Avaslsble Fianeial
Totai  Current Nar- for sale assels at Total  Current Mor-
current amorlized current
{in rilbions of euros} saeuntes cost
Financial assets atfair value Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Term deposits 50 50 50 50 - Term deposits
Level 1 Level 1
Bond funds 25 25 - - 25 5 Bond funds
Listed equity securties 3,754 - 3754 11,798/ 1,956 - 1,956 Listed equity secunties
Qiher fingnoial assets 5 5 . - 5 [ Other fmancial assets
Level 2 Level 2
Unlisted equity securities 361 - kisdl i13) 348 - 348 Unlisted equity secunties
Deriva tive financial instruments 19 4 15 19 4 15 Dervatve financial nstruments
Level 3 - Other financial assets 69 69 {47} 40 B2 62 Level 3 - Other financial assets
Firancial assets at fair value through ather comprehensive income
1,794 1.798 1,798 Level 1- Listed equity securhies
13 13 13 Level 2 - Unlisted equity secunties
47 - 47 - 47 level 3- Unlisted equity securities
Fi izl asgets at izod cost 438 54 B4 {121 317 54 263 F ial assets at d cost
Financial assots 4,721 138 4583 - {81) 4,640 138 4,502 Financial assets

Financial Raport and Audited Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018

Vivend / 126



